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PART 1 & @
item 1. Business

L]
introduction

Consolidated Technology Group Ltd. (the “"Company" or "Consolidated”), through
its wholly-owned or controlled subsidiaries, is engaged in various businesses,
most of which are service related. Consolidated's principal source of revenue
for the year ended December 31, 1995 was generated by its contract engineering
and medical diagnostics subsidiaries representing 57% and 25% respectively of
roral revenue. The principal source of revenue for the year ended December 31,
1094 and the fiscal years ended July 31, 1994 and 1993, was generated by its
contract engineering subsidiaries representing 66%, 65% and 16% respectively
of rtotal revenue, which are operated by Trans Global Services, Inc. ("Trans
Global"). Trans Global provides engineers, designers and technical personnel
on a temporary basis pursuant to contracts with major corporations. 1In
September 1994 and October 1994, the Company, through wholly-owned
subsidiaries, a:guired nine magnetic resonance imaging centers and one
multi-modality diagnostic center and International Magnetic Imaging, Inc
("IMI"), which manages the operations of the Centers, and the assets of J.
Sternberg and S. Schulman M.D. Corp., ("MD Corp."), which provides the
services cf radiologists to the Centers. References in this Report to
“International Magnetic Imaging, Inc." or "IMI" refer collectively to the
business operated by the Centers, IMI and MD Corp.

The Company also manufactures and sells electro-mechanical and electro-optical
products by Sequential Electronic Systems, Inc. ("Sequential") and avionics
equipment and specialized vending machines by S-Tech, Inc. ("S-Tech")
Additionally, the Company manufactures and sells professional audio
loudspeakers by WWR Technology, Inc. ("WWR"). Through ARC Networks, Inc.
("ARC Networks"), which was acquired in December 1993, the Company offers a
range of telecommunications services to meet the requirements of its
customers. ARC Networks has a national contract with Teleport Communications
Group, Inc. ("TCG") pursuant to which it may resell local loop telephone
service offered by TCG. In June 1994, the Company also acquired Creatiiv
Socio-Medics Corp. ("CSM"), which, together with Carte Medical Corporation,
whose name was changed to CSM Corp. ("CSMC") and in February 1996 CSMC's name
was changed to Netsmart Technologies, Inc.,, offers computerized health
:nformation systems and related services to specialty care health
crganizations, such as substance abuse (drug and alcohol), mental retardation,
cevchiatric and rehabilitation treatment facilities, and entitlement programs
-~ the United States. Through 3D Technoleogy. Inc.. which was acquired in
carly 1993, and Computer Design Services, Inc. ("CDS"), which was acquired in
ticvember 1994, the Company markets and sells three dimensional imaging
croducts of both software and hardware and provides related services.
“znsolidated is engaged in negotiations to acquire other businesses which it
believes will be compatible with its present businesses, however, no assurance
can be given that such acquisitions will be consummated or that they will be
vrofitable to Consolidated.

“onsolidated provides its subsidiaries with management, marketirg, accounting,
administrative support and financing. Consolidated's revenue and net loss
raflect the consolidated revenue and results of operations of its
subsidiaries.
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set forth below is a ducri’n of Consolidated's pri al subsidiaries. .
Consolidated owns a majority or controlling interest in“®ach of its :
subsidiaries, either directly or through one or more subsidiaries. 1In certain
of the subsidiaries, the manacement of the subsidiary owns an interest, which.
does not exceed 20% in any subsidiary. 1In other subsidiaries, non-affiliated
investors own a portion of the stock. Such investors include DLB, Inc

("DLB"), a corporation controlled by the wife of Lewis S§. Schiller, chairman
and chief executive officer of Consolidated. Mr. Schiller disclaims any
beneficial interest in DLB or any of the securities owned by DLB.

Consolidated owns 49.6% of the common stock of Netsmart Technologies, Inc.,
formerly Carte Medical Corporation, which has filed a registration statement
with respect to a proposed initial public offering of its stock.

CONTRACT ENGINEERING SERVICES

Since May 1995, the principal business of Trans Global Services, Inc. ("TGS")
has been contract engineering service, In performing such services, TGS,
through its two subsidiaries, Avionics Research Holdings, InZ. ("Holdings"),
and Resource Management International, Inc. ("RMI"), aacdresses the current
trend of major corporations in "downsizing® and "outsourcing"™ by providing
engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary contract
assignment basis pursuant to contracts with major corporations. The engagement
may relate to a specific project or may cover an extended period based on the
client's requirements. TGS believes that the market for outsourcing services
such as those offered by TGS results from the trend in employment practices by
major corporations in the aerospace, electronics, energy, engineering and
telecommunications industries to reduce their permanent employee staff and to
supplement their staff with temporary personnel on an as-needed basis. TGS
seeks to offer its clients a cost-effective means of work force flexibility
and the elimination of the inconvenience associated with the employment of
temporary personnel, such as advertising, inicial in:erviewing, fringe
benefits and record keeping. Although the employees provided by TGS are on
temporary contract assignment, they work with the client's permanent
employees; however, they receive different compensation and benefits than
permanenz employees.

n providing its services, TGS engages the employees, pays the payroll and
lated costs, including FICA, worker's compensation and similar Federal and

ctate mandated insurance and related payments. TGS charges its clients for
rvices based upon the hourly payroll cost of the personnel. Each temporary
nployee submits to TGS a weekly time sheet with work hours approved by the

client. The employee is paid on the basis of such hours, and the client is

5= also offers its clients a range of integrated logistical SEupport services
«“n.ch are performed at TGS's facilities, These services, which are ancillary
tS a project, include the management of technical documents involving
technical writing, preparation of engineering reports, parts provisioning
documents and test equipment support documents, establishing maintenance
concepts and procedures, and providing manpower and personnel support. In
performing these services, TGS hires the necessary employees for its own
account and would work with the client in developing and preparing the
documentation. The payment would be made pursuant to a purchase order form the
client on a project basis and not as a percentage of the cost of the
emp.oyees. To date, the integrated logistics support business has not
generated more than nominal revenue, and no assurance can be given that TGS
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.will generate any si ficant revenue or profit .uu such services. TGS's
strategy has been di ted at increasing its customer base and providing
additicnal services, such as integrated logistics support, to its existing

.customer base. TGS believes that the key to profitability is to provide a
range of services to an increased customer base. In this connection, TGS 1is
increasing its marketing effort both through its own personnel and in

marketing efforts with other companies that offer complementary services.

TGS Services Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of TGS ("TGSC") was formed in
January 1995 to hold the stock of Holdings and RMI, which perform the same
services for their clients. Prior to January 1995, the stock of Holdings and
RMI was held by SIS Capital Corp. ("SISC"), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Holdings was formed to acquire the stock of two related
companies, Avionics Research Corporatiocn of New York and Avionics Research
Corp. cf Florida (collectively, "Avionics") in December 1993 as well as the
stock of a third company engaged in an unrelated business which is not
conducted by Avionics. Holdings engages in business only through Avionics.

TGS's largest clients for 1995 were Northrop Grumman Corporation, The Boeing
Corporation and Lockheed Ft. Worth Company which accounted for revenues of 519
million, $9 million and $6 million respectively or 54% of the total revenue of

TGS.

Avionics' largest clients for both 1994 and 1993 were Northrop Grumman
Corporation and Martin Marietta Corp., which accounted for approximately $14.5
million and $2.0 million, respectively, which represerted approximacely 57%
and 8% of the Company's revenue for the year ended December 31, 1994, and
approximately $9 million and §$3 million, respectively, which represented
approximately 65% and z2% of Avionics' revenue for the year ended December 31,
1993.

FEMI was formed in 1994 to acquire assets of Job Shop Technical Services, Inc.
“Job Shop") in November 1994. RMI conducts business under the name The RMI
During 1994, six clients of RMI and Job Shop accounted for aggregate

es of 532 million, or approximately 90% of their combined revenue for

ar. The Boeing Company and Lockheed Ft. Worth Company, which accounted
venues of 510 million and 57.5 million, or 22% and 17% of such combined

e for 13294, were the only clients which accounted for more than 10% of

combined revenue. Four other clients, three of which are in the

pace industry, accounted for aggregate revenue of $14.7 million, or 51%

e combined revenue of RMI and Job Shop for 1994.
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T35 is a Delaware corporation, incorporated in September 1993. TGS was formed.’
under the name Concept Technologies Group, Inc., and, in March 1996, its
ccrporate name was changed to Trans Global Services, Inc. Its executive
cffices are located at 1770 Motor Parkway, Hauppauge, New York 11788,
-=laphone (516) 582-9000. TGS is a holding company. All business activities
are conducted by its operating subsidiaries, Aviconics and RMI. Reference to
755 includes all of its subsidiaries, unless the context indicated otherwise,
and includes the business of Avionics and RMI priocr to their acquisition by
T3S, Avionics has been in the contract engineering business since its
crganization in 1954, and RMI commenced such business in November 1994, with
the acquisition of adsets from Job Shop.

In May 1995, TGS acquired all of the issued and outstanding stock of TGSC,
wnich was then known as Trans Global Services, Inc., in exchange for a
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controlling interest in 'ms..uring 1995, TGS sold th ock of WWR
Technology, Inc. ("WWR") to an affiliated party.

Markets and Marketing

The market for TGS's services is comprised of major corporations in such
industries as aerospace, electronics, energy, engineering, computer services
and telecommunications, where "downsizing" and “"outsourcing" have become an
increasingly important method of cost reduction. Typically, a client enters
into an agreement with one or a small number of companies to serve as employer
of record for its temporary staff, and its agreements are terminable by the
client without significant notice.

TGS maintains a computerized data base of technical personnel based upon their
qualificarions and experience. The data base, which contains more than 100,000
names, is generated through employees previously employed by TGS, referrals
and responses to advertisements placed by TGS in a variety of local media,
including newspapers, yellow pages, magazines and trade publications. Part of
its responsibilities for any engagement is the recruitment and initial
interviewing of potential employees, with the client conducting any final
interviews it deems necessary. The majority of work performed by TGS's
employees is performed at the client's premises and under the client's
direction, although TGS is the employer of record.

TGS markets its services to potential clients through its officers, management
and recruitment personnel who seek to provide potential clients with a program
designed to meet the client's specific requirements. Thi marketing effort
utilizes referrals from other clients, sales calls, mailings and
telemarketing. TGS alsc conducts an ongoing program to survey and evaluate the
clients' needs and satisfaction with the TGS's services, which it uses as part

of its marketing effort.

Although TGS has eight offices, including its main office in Long Island, New

York, throughout the United States, there are no limited geographic markets
for the Company's services. TGS has in the past established offices in new

locations when it receives a contract in the area and it cannot effectively
service such contract from its existing coffices. TGS intends to continue to
es5

tablish new offices as necessary to meet the needs of its customers.

- client will utilize contract engineering services such as those provided by
TGS when it requires a person with specific technical knowledge or
capabilities which are not available from the client's permanent staff or to
supplement its permanent staff for specific project or to meet peek load
reguirements. When the client requires personnel, it provides TGS with a
detailed job description. TGS then conducts an electronic search in its
computerized resume data base for candidates matching the job description.

Irn. addition, each branch office maintains a file of active local resumes for
candidates available for assignment in the vicinity of the branch office. The
individuals are then contacted by telephone by TGS's recruiters, who interview
interested candidates. If the candidate is acceptable to TGS and interested in
ihe position, TGS refers the candidate tc the client. An employment agreement
15 executed by the employee with TGS prior to the commencement of employment.

TGS serves pramarily ﬁhn_anrospace and electronics industries as well as the
telecommunications, banking and computer science industries and public
utilities along with numerous manufacturing companies. TGS is expanding its

Page 4




., effort to address t eneral trend of "downsiz.‘ and "outsourcing" by major
corporations on a nalTonal basis. To meet this goal, TGS has commenced a
national sales campaign addressing a broad spectrum of Fortune 500 companies,
offering a managed staffing service to those companies in the process of
downsizing and outsourcing specific functions. Since companies engaged in
downsizing seek to focus on its core business needs with its in-house staff,
TGS seeks to identify and address the needs of a specific task or department
not part of the core business for which outsourcing would be an appropriate
method of addressing the needs. In addressing these needs, TGS has conducted
marketing efforts with Manpower Internmaticnal, Inc., TAD Resources
International, Inc. and Olsten Corporation. TGS's contracts are generally
terminable by the client on short notice, generally 30 days.

Competition

The business of providing employees on either a permanent or temporary basis
is highly competitive and is typically local in nature. TGS competes with
numerous technical service organizations, a number of which are better
capitalized, better known, have more extensive industry contracts and conduct
extensive advertising campaigns aimed at both employers and job applicants.
TGS believes that the ability to demonstrate a pattern of providing reliable
qualified employees is an impcrtant aspect of developing new business and
retaining existing business.

Government Regulations

The technical services industry, in which TGS is engaged, does not require
licensing as a personnel or similar agency. However, as a provider of
personnel for other corporations, it is subject to Federal and state
regqulations concerning the employment relationship, including those relating
to wages and hours and unemployment compensation. It also maintains 401 (k)
plans for its employees and is subject to regqulations concerning such plans.

TGS does not have contracts with the government agencies. Contracts with its
clients, including major defense contrac:tors, are based on hourly billirng
ratzes for each technical discipline. The contracts are not subjact to
renegotiation or cancellation for the convenience of the government. However,
the manpower needs of each of its clients are based on the client's own
requirements and the clients needs are affected by any modification in the
client's requirements, including reducticns in staffing resulting from
cancellation or modificaticon of government contracts.

Employees

~- December 31, 1995, TGS had 1008 emplcyvees, of which 970 were contract
service employees who performed services on the client's premises and 38 were
executive and administrative. Each of TG:S's offices is staffed by recruiters
and sales managers. Each contract service employee enters into a contract with
T35 which sets forth the client for whom and the facility at which the
services are to be performed and the rate of pay. If an employee ceases Lo be
required by TGS's clients for any reason, TGS has no further obligation to the
employee. Although assignments can be for as short as 90 days, in some cases,
:t has been for several years. The average assignment is in the range of six
tc nine months. TGS's employees are not represented by a labor union, and TGS
believes that its employee relaticns are good.TGS does not have any rights to
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any patents or other prop:i’ry technology developed ’.ts employees. Under
its agreement with the clienl, all of such rights are ained by the client, *

In addition, the client typically requires the employee to sign its standard
agreement dealing with confidentiality and rights to proprietary developments..

MEDICAL DIAGNOSTICS

On September 30, 1994, Consolidated, through wholly-owned subsidiaries,
acquired eight magnetic resonance imaging ("MRI") centers and one
multi-modality diagnostic center and in January 1995, it acquired a ninth MRI
Center, |collectively, the "Centers").

Magnetic resonance imaging ("MRI") systems enhance the diagnosis of disease
and medical disorders, fregquently eliminating the need for exploratory surgery
and often reducing the amount and cost of care required to evaluate and treat
a patient. Since i%s introduction in the early 1980's, the use of MRI has
experienced rapid growth due to the technology's ability to provide anatomical
images of exceptional contrast and detail without the use of radiation or
x-ray based technologies. MRI employs high-strength magnetic. fields, high
frequency radio waves and high-speed computers to process data. In addition,
the development of pharmaceutical contrast agents, software advancements &and
new hardware peripherals continue to expand the clinical applications and
throughput efficiency of MRI technology.

MRI, which does not utilize x-ray or other radiation based technologies,
employs high-strength magnetic fields, high frequency radio waves and
high-speed computers to obtain clear, multi-planar images o! the body's
internal tissues without exploratory surgery or biopsy. In addition, MRI is
able to image a multi-planar slice of the body at any angle. These images are
then displayed on film or on the video screen of an MRI system's console in
the form of a multi-planar image of the organ or tissue. This information can
pe stored on magnetic media for future access, or "printed" on film for
interpretation by a physician and retenticn in the patient's files, enabling
health care professionals to study the patient's internal conditions in
detail. The superiority of MRI image guality compared to other imaging
modalities generally makes possible a more accurate diagnosis and often
reduces the amount and cost of care needed tec evaluate and treat a patient.

Trne major components of an MRI system are (I) a large, cylindrical magnet,
1 radio wave eguipment, and (1ii/ a computer for data storage and image
ccessing. During an MRI study. a patient lies on a table which is then
aced into the magnet. Although patients have historically spent 30 to 45
rutes inside the magnet during which time images of multiple planes are

aczuired, new software applications allow patients to spend significantly less .
=:me 1inside the magnet. Additicnal time 15 required for computer processing
¢ the images.

Cutpatient Services and Customer Base

Each Center is a fixed-site, outpatient facility that is designed, egquipped
and staffed to provide physicians and health care providers with high gquality
MEI services that historically were available only at ceaching hospitals. The
Company schedules patjents, prepares all patient billing and is responsible
for the collection of all charges. The Company is alsc responsible for

ated administrative and record-keeping functions. The Company typically
ffs its Centers with technical and administrative support personnel who
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assist physicians inJl.Eaining MR1 diagnostic s . The Centers are designed

to offer a pleasant ronment where patients are not subjected to the
admission complexities and institutional acmosphere of most hospitals.

Many physicians and other health care providers who have a need for MRI
services and equipment do not have the ability or desire to own their own
eguipment. As a result, such providers use ocutpatient MRI facilities such as
the Centers for the following reasons, among others: (I) ability to receive
comprehensive MRI services, including qualified technologists, eguipment
maintenance, insurance and equipment upgrades; (ii) desire to obtain quick
access to MRI services; (iii) lack of sufficient scan volume to justify the
capital ceost of purchasing an MRI unit; (iv) desire to use an MRI unit to
become familiar with MRI technology; (v) lack of financial capability to
purchase an MRI unit, and (vi) inability to obtain required regulatory
approval to purchase or operate an MRI unit,

In addition, many health care providers with sufficient patient utilization
and resources to justify in-house MRI unit ownership prefer to use independen:
facilities such as IMI's Centers in order to: (i) obtain the use of an MRI
system without capital investment; (ii) eliminate the need to recruit, train
and manage qualified technoclogists; (iii) retain the flexibility to take
advantage of all technological developments; (iv) avoid future uncertainty as
to reimbursement policies, and (v) provide additional imaging services when
patient demand exceeds in-house capacity.

Se: forch below is information relating to IMI's Centers.

Month and Year

Center Location Service ccmmenced
Pine Island Plantation, FL December 1986
North Miami Beach North Miami Beach, FL January 1988
Boca Raton Boca Raton, FL November 1588
South Dade Miami, FL December 198%
Canland Oakland Park, FL January 1990
San Juan San Juan, PR October 1950
ArlingTon Arlingten, VA December 1990
Fansas City Overland Park, KS October 1951
Zrlando Orlando, FL September 1992

In addizion, IMI operates Physicians Qutpatient Diagnostic Center, Ltd., a
multi-modality diagnostic center, located in Plantation, Florida.

Tne decision to refer a patient te one cof IMI's facilities generally begins
:th the treating physician, HMO/PPO or cother health care provider. IMI is
nen responsible for patient scheduling and billing the patient or third party
payor directly. IMI also arranges for board-certified radiologists to
inzerpret IMI's scans and recurns the test results to the referring physician.
IMI is not itself engaged in the practice of medicine.

‘B

Each Center generally has a full-time staff of seven to eleven employees,
typically consisting of MRI technicians, file clerks, a marketing
representative, a transcriptionist, one or more receptionists and a center
acdministrator. IMI's Centers are cpen at such hours as are appropriate for
tne local medical community. Most are open from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. each
weekday, and many of the Centers offer extended evening and weekend hours.
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Each Center is supervised b. center administrator. ‘ Center charges
patients a rfee for providing MRI studies on a per procedure or per study
basis. 1IMI pays radiologists providing diagnostic readings of a Center's MRI
scans.

IMI markets its services through open houses, lectures, symposia, direct mail
and individual visits to area physicians. Each Center uses one or more
marketing representatives, the Center's administrator and certain radiologists
who interpret IMI's scans to market its services to the local medical
community, while IMI's national accounts manager focuses on managed care
providers and third party payors.

The profitability of IMI is based substantially on the degree to which IMI can
utilize its equipment. IMI believes that a typical center must generally
average eleven to thirteen scans per day before its revenue exceeds its
expenses and that, as new referring physicians and other customers become
familiar with MRI technology and its applications, their rate of usage
generally increases. However, to the extent that competitive pressures and
third party reimhursement rates have a downward effect on IM1's revenue, the
number of daily :scans necessary to operate profitably will have to increase.

Governrment Regulations

The operation of MRI centers is subject to numerous government regulations on
both a Federal and state level. Since IMI provides services to patients on
Medicare and Medicaid, it is subject to numerous regulations affecting such
services. In addition, each state has its own regulations which may impact
IMI's operations, including regulations dealing with the corporats practice of
medicine, the referral of patients and the requirements fcr a certificate of
need. IMI believes that it is in compliance in all material respects with
applicable regulations and that the acquisition by IMI of the Centers was made
in compliance with applicable laws. 4

Competrition

The health care industry, including the market for MRI diagnostic imaging
services, 1is highly competitive and IMI anticipates that competition,
particularly for patient referrals, will intensify in substantially all of the
ireas in which the Centers are located. IMI competes with other MRI centers

s well as regional hospitals and medical cenrers which also offer such
Fwices. To a lesser extent, IMI competes with mobile MR]I service

oviders. Because of the cost of equipping and staffing an MRI center, MRI
+5 rarely offered by a sole Practitioner or by a small group practice or by a
-4r2e group practice that does not have a substantial demand for such

| 3€rvices. Each of IMI's Centers is dependent upon referrals from local
| 2hyeicians as well as from health maintenance organizations and other

-foviders. 1IMI believes that hospitals are its most significant competitors
:nd have cerrain competitive advantages, including their established community
‘osition, physician loyalty and convenience for physicians making rounds at

fie hospitals. Competition is based upon such factors as the reputation of

ne Center and reliability of the physicians who read the MRI scans, the fees
‘narged, the Center's participation in an insurance or health plan which
overs the patient, the ability to offer up-to-date MRI equipment, the
sfivenience to the patient in terms of both proximity to the patient and thr
‘Surs of service. MRI believes that its services are competitive with theo
ffered by others in the area serviced by its Centers. ‘
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_Employees . .

as of December 31, 1995, IMI had 165 employees, 128 of whom were involved in
_Center operations, 12 of whom were involved irn sales and marketing, 12 of whem
were executive and managemen:t and 13 of whom were involved in billing and
other administrative activicies. None of IMI's employees are represented bv a
labor organization, and IMI believes that its employee relations are good.

ELECTRO-MECHANICAL AND ELECTRO-OPTICAL PRODUCTS MANUFACTURING
Sequential Electronic Systems, Inc.

Sequential is engaged in the manufacture and marketing of various
electro-mechanical and electro-optical products. The principal products
manufactured by Sequential are optical encoders, encoded motors and limit

programmers.

Optical Encoders - Optical encoders are utilized in almost every manufacturing
process where measurement is required as a part of the manufacturing process.
Optical shaft angle encoders, like those produced by SES, are the types of
encoders used in such manufacturing processes. SES furnishes encoders to the
military for such applications as the launch systems for the Patriot Missile
Defense System used in "Desert Storm". SES also furnishes encoders used in
the latest state of the art NEXRAD weather system. High resolution encoders
are also used as part of a telemetric tracking antenna for the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration ("NASA").

Encoded Motors - Encoded motors are used as a tape drive motor for use in
state of the art instrumentation tape recorders. These recorders are used by
the government in anti-submarine warfare detection systems and are utilized in
seismic measurement recordings as well as other classified applications where
the data reproduction is extremely critical.

Limit Programmers - Limit programmers are utilized to replace mechanical CAM
seguencing systems for the manufacture of various consumer products.

S-Tech, Inc.

£-Tech, Inc. ("S-Tech") is a design and manufacturing facility which has two
unigue and specialized product lines which consist of, specialized vending
machines and avionics eguipment. Specialized vending is used to describe a
vending product which includes sophisticated electronic circuitry and or
computer software. The vending products presently being manufactured under

~ontract include prepaid telephone debit card machines, bill payment centers,
.nformarion kiosks and stamp machines.

~-ionics Equipment - The Avionics equipment manufactured by S-Tech consists
primarily of various cockpit instruments and oil pressure transmicters. The
majority of these products reguire a qualified product list designation

“QPL"). The QPL list consists of gualiZied products, with a limited number
>f{ approved sources, which are purchased by the Department of Defense,
contractors and subcontractors. In many instances this QPL designation places
the company in highly advantageous competitive position as it pertains to
government contracts by limiting the number of qualified bidders. 1In
addition, S-Tech responds to "build-to-print" solicitations which are subject
to competitive bidding. These products are manufactured in accordance with
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drawings and data packages '.rided by the Department o‘efensa or other
procuring agencies.

specialized vending machines - In the vending line S-Tech designs,
manufactures and markets stamp machines and stamp booklet machines, token
vending machines and is designing and marketing vending machines for other
specialty uses, including a pre-paid telephone calling card. The Prepaid
Telephcne Calling Card Vending Machines are presently in production. S-Tech is
under contract to manufacture a Self Service Bill Payment Machine for
Cconsolidated Edison of New York and an Information Kiosk, as a subcontractor

to Objectsoft Corporation, for the City of New York.

As a manufacturer of products purchased by the Department of Defense or its
contractors, S-Tech is subject to the provisions of the procurement
regulations of the Department of Defense. These regulations generally provide
the government with the right to terminate the contract for the convenience of
the Department of Defense, and, in certain cases may include provisions for
renegotiation. The Department of Defense also has regulations pursuant to
which the Department may inspect a contractor's or subcontractor's
manufacturing facilities. Such an inspector is present at S-Tech's facility
on a regular basis. In addition, certain products may be subject to export
restrictions, which require cobtaining a permit before making any sales to
non-United States purchasers.

AUDIO VISUAL MANUFACTJRING AND SERVICES

WWR Technolegy, I1Inc.

WWR Technology, Inc. ("WWR") was acquired in May 1995 in connection with the
acquisition of Trans Global Services, Inc. WHWR was originally incorporated in
1992 for the purpose of acquiring the professional products business segment
of the Klipschitm) loudspeaker line from Klipsch and Associates, Inc. ("KA",.
WWR acquired the inventory, tooling, eguipment and certain licenses from KA as
part of such purchase. The predecessor to KA was founded in the mid 1940's by
Pau. W. Klipsch and has established itself as a leader in loudspeaker design
and innovaticn. FKA's primary market traditionally has been the home high
fide.:ty loudspeaker business. Concurrently, it has developed a reputation as
2 manufa--urer of rugged, well designed loudspeakers for the professional,

- -—mercial and theater sound markets. The acguisition of the Klipsch(tm)
‘r=fessional product line gives WWR one of the most long-established and, WWR
t=.1eves, recognizable brand names in the industry. After WWR's acquisition

=¢ =ne Klipsch(tm) professional loudspeaker line from KA, KA continued to
wanufacture products and provide other related services to WWR pursuant to a
ranufacturing agreement between WWR and KA. In August 1994, WWR entered into
a2 .case for a manufacturing facility an Hope, Arkansas and between August and
r~-oper 1994 moved all of its manufacturing and related services into the
ne«ly leased facility. In connection with the completion of this move, the
manufacturing agreement with KA was terminated; however' KA continues to
supoly certain component parts to WWR

The nature of WWR's business is to market and sell loudspeakers and related
products to the professional audio market. The professional audio market is
defined as any application for loudspeakers other than those used for home and
automotive entertainment purposes. Generally, this is a definition of the
difference between "home entertainment® and commercial sound reproduction. As
part of the future development of commercial sound reproduction, WWR believes
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.that the applicatianlILdigi:ally controlled and@@@ccessed signals to control
and enhance the perf nce of professional loudspeakers will become a
significant factor in the marketplace. WWR believes it has access to the

,resources needed, on an as-needed contractual basis with orig:nal equipment
manufacturers, to successfully develop these products although there can be no
assurance that it will be able to do So.

Sales, Markets and Marketing

Products are sold through a network of domestic and international independent
manufacturers' representatives who are compensated on a commission basis to
retailers, distributors, sound contractors installers and occasionally to end
users. WWR assumed the responsibility for internmational sales from KA in the
spring of 1993, and such sales currently constitute a significant portion of
WWR's total sales. For the 12 months ended December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1985
international sales constituted approximately 20%, 23% and 25% of total sales,
respectively. International sales are made to appointed distributors in
individual countries and the distributors resell and service tne products
within their respective countries.

The Markets for cthe products include, but are not limited to: contractor
installation of sound systems, paging systems, musical instrument sound
re-enforcement, public address, concert sound, fixed installation, touring
sound, theater and sound re-enforcement. End users of the products include:
churches, synagogues, stadiums, concert halls, restaurants, schools, musical
performers, movie theaters and all cther applications where information and/or
entercainment is presented to the public in a commercial venue.

The contractor installation market is comprised of customers of WWR. These
customers bid on installation of audioc systems based on specifications
provided by acoustical consultants in the process of designing or renovating
commercial properties, restaurants, nightclubs, churches, concert halls,
stadiums and other similar buildings. The regquirements for each project vary
according to the need and purpose of the facility and the sound systems and
the types of loudspeakers range from small speakers for simple paging systems
tc very large speakers for concert halls, theaters or stadiums. WWR sees this
market as having significant growth potential for its products and has
developed and continues to develop products targeted to the various needs of
this market.

The musical instrument market include recail sale of products to professional
and amateur musicians. Loudspeakers in this market have two general purposes:
'l the reproduction of amplified or eleztronic instruments, and (2) the .
re-enforcement of voice and acoustic instruments. A portion of Ww..'s product -
.ine is targeted specifically to this product and the product line for this
market has been expanded by WWR with new loudspeakers intrcduced in 1994 and
plans to continue to introduce additicnal new products in 1995.

The motion picture theater market has improved over the past few years as a
result of the increase in the number of motion pictures including digital film
sound tracks. Digital based sound reproduction systems were subseqguently
:ntroduced in motion picture theaters and while there has been little new
cnstruction of movie theaters, the current trend is to upgrade the sound
eproduction systems in current theaters, WWR is upgrading its motion picture
producet line to meer the needs of this market. The concert and touring sound
market is comprised of two segments: (1) the tours of the “"big" name
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entertainers handled by maj international touring s companies, and (2)
the smaller regional or nat 1 sound companies that ide services to
lesser known performers and events. While there are significant sales in the
major international touring sound companies market as a whole, the loudspeaker
portion is dominated by the proprietary enclosure (cabinet) designs of the
large touring sound companies using the raw frame components made by original
equipment manufacturers ("OEMs"), including WWR. WWR has a number cf raw
¢rame component drivers that have significant potential in this markec.

Success in this portion of the market must be viewed as a marketing tool; by
having its products selected for use on major tours, WWR has the opportunity
to be associated with the success of the tour and/or the artist. The smaller
regional touring companies represent a greater opportunity for WWR as these
customers are not as likely to be building their own enclosures and,

therefore, purchase whole speaker systems.

-

New products

WWR is engaged in market research to determine the specific needs of the end
user so as to develop new market oriented products. Two new trapezoidal
shaped loudspeakers have been introduced for use in various commercial
applications. Currently under development are the following: a new line of
loudspeakers designed for the musical instrument market, two new medium format
(size) horns for use in fixed installations and updating of the motion picture
product line utilizing newly developed components. A line of loudspeakers
designed for the musical instrument market were put into production and became
available for purchase in October 1994 and it is expected that the new
construction techniques and materials for this line o>f loudspeakers will
enable WWR to achieve higher gross profit margins.

Competition

The industry is comprised of a large number of competing manufacturers, the
majority of which are of little overall impact in the market. Generally, the
smaller firms specialize in selected portions of the market as opposed to
offering a wide array of products. However, there are two dominant
competitors in the overall professional loudspeaker industry - Harmon
International Industries, Inc. (Harmon) which owns a number of product lines
:ncluding JBL and Mark IV industries, Inc. which owns Electro Voice (EV),
iZlzez Lansing (Altec) and Univers:ty Sound (University!. Other competitors
in-lude, but are not limited to., Bose Corporaticon, Peavey Electronics, Inc.,
Apocgee Sound, Inc., Meyer Sound Laboratories, Inc. and Eastern Acoustic Works,
Inc WWR provides high quality products for all segments of the market but,
dus to the relatively smaller size of the product line offered by WWR, it is _
not able to compete with JBL and EV on a model by model basis. It is the plan -
=f WWR to continue niche markecing, while expanding 1is product offerings as
rusiness conditions allow., WWR's general pricing policy and distribution is
= cffer its high quality products at competitive prices and to limit the
d:stribution of Klipsch(tm) Professional products to a selected group of
rezail and contractor customers. By doing so, WWR is able to position
¥lipsch(tm) Professional as a "limited distribution" product line offering the
contractor and retailer the opportunity to differentiate themselves in the
range of products they offer and to further enhance their profit margins by
oftering products that are not as easily "shopped for price".

Licsnses
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As part of the purch of substantially all of 8 assets of the Klipschitm)

"*Professional loudspe business from KA, WWR r ived a non-exclusive
trademark license for the use of KA's trademark "Klipsch(tm)" in conjunction
_wizh various professicnal loudspeaker products ("Licensed Products”) provided
that the trademark is used only in combination with the terms "Professional
Loudspeakers, " "Professional Products," "Pro Loudspeakers,” Pro Products" or a
similar designation pre-approved by KA. WWR also has agreed to indicate that
"Klipschi(tm)™ is a registered trademark of KA. The licenses are world-wide
and royalty free, and KA has agreed not to grant licenses and/or otherwise
permit others to use in the professional market the trademarks and certain
design patents licensed to WWR. However, the licenses are terminable if WWR
defaults in certain of their respective obligations to KA, becomes bankrupt or
insclvent or reorganizes or ceases to use the "Klipsch(tm)" trademark for 18
or more consecutive months. The loss of these licenses would effectively
eliminate the ability of WWR to continue to sell under the Klipsch(tm)
Professional brand, however it would not prohibit WWR from seeking other
prcfessional loudspeaker products to distribute through its distribution
necwork. WWR believes that WWR's relationship with KA is good, there can be
no assurance that there will be no future developments which will cause a
termination of the licenses.

Employees

As of December 31, 1995 WWR had 35 employees, 23 of whom were involved in
production, 3 of whom were involved in sales and marke.ing, 1 was involved in
research and development, 3 were involved in technical support and maintenance
and 5 were involved in administration and management, None of WWR's are
represented by a labor organization, and WWR believes that its employee
relations are good.

MEDICAL INFORMATION SYSTEMS
Nezsmart Technologies, Inc.

Nezsmart Technologies, Inc. was formed in September 1992 under the name
Medical Services Corp., a holding company, whose operations were conducted by
115 wholly-owned subsidiary, Carte Medical Corp. In October 1993, Medical
Serrices Corp. merged its subsidiary into itself and changed its name to Carte
Medical Corporaticn. In June 1995, Carte Medical Corporation's name was
crnanged to CSMC Corporation, and in February 1596 CSMC Corporation's name was

changed to Netsmart Technologies, Inc.

Suostantially all of Netsmart's revenue through December 31, 1995 was
z=narated by it's health information systems and related services which are
rarkerted by 1t's subsidiary Creative Socio-Medics Corp. ("CSM") which was
acguired by Carte Medical Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings") from a nonaffiliated
arty in June 1994. In September of 1995 the stock of CSM was transferred by

-
= =

knidings to Netsmart. Netsmart offers these systems and related services to
crecialty care health organizations and entitlement programs in the Unitad

~ates.

li=-smart Technologies, Inc. ("Netsmart") develops, markets and supports
--mputer software designed to enable organizations to provide a range of
~reices in a network computing environment. A network computing envircnment
© a computer system that provides multiple users with access to a common
tlatabase and functions. A network system can be a local system, such as a
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local area network, known a LAN, which operates wi an office or
facility, or a distributed tem which provides simul Ous access to a

-ommon data base to many users at multiple locatioms.

There are typically three parties in Netsmart's network systems - the sponsor
(the party that maintains the data base, and may be a managed care
organization, a university or a financial institution), the users (the users
are the individuals who use the system, and may be the subscribers of a
managed care organization, the students at a universicy or the ban card or
credit card holders of a financial network) and the service providers (the
service providers are those who provide goods or services to the users, and
may be physicians, pharmacies, banks and merchants who provide goods, services
or funds to bank card or credit card holders).

Necsmart has develcped proprietary network technol.ogy utilizing smart cards
which it markets in the health care, financial and education fields as the
CarteSmartc System.

A smart card is a plastic card about the size of a standard credit card which
contains a single embedded microprocessor chip with both data storage and
computing capabilities. The smart card software provides access to the
information stored in the chip, the ability to update stored information and
includes security elements to restrict unauthorized access to or modification
of certain information stored on the card utilizing a smart card reader
system. The smart card reader system and the software provides the ability to
include information on both the smart card and the organization's computer
system. Netsmart also supplies network applicatiois which use
telecommunications rather that than smart cards to obtain access to and manage
data.

Health Information Systems and Services

Since the acquisiticn of CSM, Netsmart has offered its customers a range of
products and services principally based cpen the health information systems
which were developed and marketed by CSM prior to the acquisition. Users
typically purchase one of the health information systems, in the form of a
perpetual license to use the system, as well as contract services, maintenance
and third party hardware and software which Netsmart offers pursuant to
arrangements with the hardware and software vendors. The contract services
:nzlude project management, training, consulting and software development
services, which are provided either on a time and materials basis or pursuant
c a fixed-price contract. The software development services may require CSM
z adapt one of its health information systems to meet the specific
eguirements of the customer.

=2
-
=
-
-

“lthough the health information systems constituted the basis of CSM's
tusiness, revenue from the license of such systems has not represented a major
component of its revenues. The typical price for a license for CSM's health
information systems ranges from $10,000 to $30,000. During the years ended
December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, CSM installed health information systems
with eleven, thirteen and twelve customers, respectively. Revenue Irom the
licensing of such systems represented approximately $162,000, $375,000 and
$135,000, in the yearg ended December 31, 1995, 19594 and 1993, respectively,
accounting for approximately 22%, 74% and 5% of revenue for such periods.

Netsmart offers software systems developed by CSM which are de=~igned to meet
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.the requirements of ders of long-tern speci care treatment. Certain
of its systems were d loped to meet the requir nts o Federally funded
target cities projects and is installed in Baltimore, Los Angeles, Atlanta and

.Cuyahoga County (Cleveland), Ohio.

A customer's purchase order may also include third party hardware or software.
For the years ended December 31, 1995, 19594 and 1993, revenue from hardware
and third party software accounted for approximately $2.0 million, $900,000
and 51.0 million, representing 26.7%, 18.1% and 19.6%, respectively, of
revenues in such periods.

In addition to its health information systems and related services, CSM nifers
specialty care facilities a data center, at which its personnel perform data
entry and data processing and produce operations reports. These services are
typically provided to smaller substance-abuse clinics. During the years ended
December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993, CSM's service bureau cperation generated
revenue of approximately $1.7 million, $1.6 million and 1.7 million,
respectively, representing approximactely 23.6%, 32.5% and 33.6% of CSM's
revenues for such periods. The largest user of the service bureau is the
Stacte of New York Office of Alcohecl and Substance Abuse Services, which uses
CSM's service bureau to maintain its statewide database of methadone users,
however, such customer accounted for less than 4% of CSM's revenues in the
years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993. Netsmart intends to augment the
marketing effort for the service bureaus, although no assurance can be given
that such operations will continue to be profitable.

Maintenance services have generated increasing revenue aml are becoming a more
significant portion of CSM's business. Since purchasers of health information
system licenses typically purchase maintenance service. Maintenance revenue
increases as new customers obtain licenses for its health information
services. Under its maintenance contracts, which are executed on an annual
basis, CSM maintains its software and provides certain upgrades. Its
obligations under the maintenance contract may require CSM to make any
modifications necessary to meet new Federal reporting requirements. CSM does
nct maintain the hardware and third party software sold to its customers.

The CarcteSmart System

llevsmart's CarteSmart System software was designed to operate on
:ndustry-standard computer networks and smart cards. A smart card is a
rlastic card the size of a standard credit card which contains an embedded
m:croprocessor chip. The card has data storage and computing capabilities and
=nz smart card software includes security elements to restrict unauthorized
arcess to or modification of certain informaticn contained on the card. A
smart card may also include a magnetic stripe to allow it to be used in
nezworks that do not include smart card functionality. The smart cards are
designed to be issued only by the sponscor organization, such as a managed care
crganization, specialty care facility, administrator of an entitlement program
or other similar organization, a university or a bank or credit card

ocrganization.

The CarcteSmart software consists of components which allow Netsmart to develop
necwork applications-+for sponsors with less effort that would be required if
hose. network applications were developed from scratch. The CarteSmart
cftware consists of an Application Program Interface ("API") and an API
Generator which shows fast customization of the API for specific network

Page 15




applications. The API is a , of software modules tha ide the common 2
functions required to Support a computer network using cards. By using
the API, Netsmart or a sponsor may develop network systems more guickly than

if all of the software necessary to Implement the network were custom written .
for a particular nectwork application. The API Generator is a tool developed

by Netsmart that it designed to allow Netsmart or a network sponsor to develop
a custom API for a particular network and reduce the effort required to build

network systems.

The CarteSmart System is designed to operate on file servers and personal
computers which utilize the DOS, Windows 3.1, Windows 95, Windows MT or UN1X
operating systems, depending upon the application. The software used in the
smart card can be used or adapted for use in most commercially available smart
cartSmart cards generally meet international standards and are considerec
commodity products, although each manufacturer has its own software to
interface with a computer., Accordingly, Netsmart believes that a manufacturer
would provide any necessary assistance in order to market its cards.

Zlthough Netsmart's CarteSmart System software has general applications, its
experience with each of its four CarteSmart clients reflects a need to
customize the software to meet the specific need of the client. Although the
customization need not be significant, each user has its unique requirements
that must be met. These requirements may include the need to enable the
CarteSmart System to interface with the client's existing systems to the
development of a range of software products to meet needs which are not
presently being served.

Netsmart's initial applications were designed to meet the needs of managed
care organizations and entitlement programs, and Netsmart developed a smart
card interface to its health management systems. Each time a patient visits a
participating health care provider, the health care provider adds to the
patient's data base information concerning the visit, including the date,
procedures performed and diagnosis. At the time of the first visit to a
participating physician, the physician enters information relating to the
diagnosis and treatment given on that visit together with such information
r=lating to chronic conditions, such as allergies and medication, as the
physician deems important. Netsmart does not anticipate that the health care
vider will be expected to include information relating to earlier diagncsis
treacment,; however, the organization which provides the smart card may
uire additional informaticn tc be input at the initial visit. This
ormation is input into the patient's smart card and may also be transmitted
the managed care organization's central data base, where, unless
ssemination of such information has been restricted by the patient other
iealth care providers will have access to the infcrmation. The health care
previder can read information from, and write information onte, the smart card
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through a card interface device, which i1s standard computer peripheral
egquipment readily available from composer outlets and can be easily connected
t2 a personal computes. The information transferred to the smart card is
first input by the health care provider on a computer and includes the date of
service, diagnosis, treatment including any prescribed medication, and any
ctner information which the health care provider determines.

At the time of the vigit, The health care provider inputs the standard codes
for use diagnosis and procedures performed. Errors in inputting the diagnosis
anc the procedure code delay payment or affect the amount of payment. The
SmarcCard System can be integrated with t.e health care provider's existing
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. practice management em, without incurring an itional perscnnel. The
CarteSmart System sof re has integrated wichin an easy to use diagnosis
and procedure code look-up capability, as well as error checking and other

« safequards which assist the health care provider in inputting the proper codes
based upon normal medical terminology.

The smart card stores only a limited amount of information, and is intended to
reflect current medical conditions and not a record of medical treatment from
birth. When the storage capacity of the card, which is eguivalent to
approximately ten typed pages, is reached, items are deleted on a
chronological basis, with the earliest items being deleted first, although
there is an override procedure by which certain crucial medical information,
such as allergies and chronic conditions, can be retained, regardless of the
date when the patient was diagnosed or treated for the condition. The card
alsc includes information on each prescription which the patient is taking. A
smart card is different from a magnetic stripe card, such as is used at
Virginia Commonwealth University ("VCU"), in that it has an updatable data
storage capacity, which a magnetic stripe card does not.

To date, Netsmart has licensed its CarteSmart software in conjuncticon with
pilot projects for San Diego County and the Albert Einstein School of
Medicine, which involved the issuance of smart cards to approximately 1,200
mental health patients participating in the California MediCal Managed Care
Initiative. Netsmart is presently negotiacing for an expansion of the program
to include substance abuse and acute care as well as mental health for the
county's total health care population. Netsmart is also marketing its
CarteSmant System to other entitlement programs and manzged care
crganizations; however, except for the pilot project in San Diego County,
Netsmart has not entered into any agreements with any such organizations, and
no assurance can be given that Netsmart will enter into any such agreements.

In November 1995, Netsmart entered into an agreement with the Albert Einstein
School of Medicine to add the CarteSmart System to its existing system to
provide smart card network capabilities for use in its clinics and out-patient
facriliries, Installation of the smart card network is scheduled for the
second quarter of 1996. Netsmart is presently customizing the CarteSmart
health care application software tc meet the reguirements of the Albert
Einstein School of Medicine, including the ability to interface with its
prasent computer systems in addition to the health information system licensed

=

from Netsmart.

During 1995, Netsmart commenced marketing its CarteSmart based products to
markets other than the health care field. 1In July 1995, Netsmart entered into-
ar. agreement pursuant to which it installed a magnetic stripe identification
svstem which uses CarcteSmart technelogy to provide for the cencralized
-ssuance of a single card to all persons allowed access to the facility and
:=s services, The card contains the individual's name, photo, signature and
unique card identification number, which defines the holder's entitlement to
food service and library services. Approximately 20,000 students are using the
swstem. Netsmart is negoriating with respect to an agreement to expand the
program to support additional services, nowever, no assurance can be given
that the program will be expanded. A magnetic card differs from a smart card
since it does not have an independent updatable data storage capability.
Netsmart believes that a major market for its smart card technology is the
financial services industry, including banks and credit card issuers.
Commencing in May 1995, Netsmart entered into a series of letter agreements
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with IBN for services and eSmart software licensesgler the implementation
of a satellite based distr ed network of automatic ler machines and :
£f-line point of sale terminals using smart cards for the former Soviet
Union. Netsmart is negotiating a definitive agreement to develop the system
and license the system to IBN. IBN is a New York-based company which has
rights to install such systems in the former Soviet Union. Neismart's
agreement with IBM is not contingent upon the success of IBN's installations
in the former Soviet Union, although the extent of its revenues from royalties
will be based on the number of cards issued and may be adversely affected by
political developments in the former Soviet Union. The system being delivered
to IBN includes Oasis Technologies IST/Share Financial Transaction Svstem
software and other third party software which Netsmart is integrating with its
CarteSmart software to complete the IBN system. Through February 1, 19596,
Netsmart has generated approximately $600,000 of consulting services revenue

from IBN.

In developing the CarteSmart System for the financial services industry,
Necsmart is using networking technologies that use telecommunications networks
as well as smart cards. In addition, Netsmart, through a subsidiary, is
purchasing the SATC Software, which processes retail plastic card transactions
and merchant transactions. The purchase price is $650,000, of which §325,000
was paid by Netsmart and the remaining $325,000 is to be paid by Oasis,
although Netsmart remains obligated for the balance if Oasis fails to make the
payment. The SATC Software is designed to perform functions required by
credit card issuers, including applications processing and tracking credit
evaluations, credit authorization and the printing of statements. In the
event the final payment is not made, the subsidiary will not acquire title.
Netsmart has an agreement with Oasis pursuant to which Oasis is to make the
remaining payments and it is negotiating an agreement with Oasis pursuant to
which the subsidiary will become a joint venture corporation owned 50% by
Nersmart and 50% by Oasis and/or its principals.

Markets and Marketing

Rlthough the market for smart card systems includes numerous applications
where a secure distributed data base processing system is important, CSM's
inicial marketing efforts were directed to the health and human services
market, including managed care organizations and entitlement programs. In the
Uniced States alone, CSM believes that there are presently more than 75
million persons who participate in managed care programs, which are sponsored
v almost 600 organizations or health insurers. Because of the relationship
etween the organization and the participating medical care providers and
ients, the organization can institute a smart card system without the need
CSM to conduct a separate marketing effort directed at the medical care
cwviders. Although independent health insurers which do not operate a
anaged care organization may, in the future, be a market for a smart card
vstem, because the relationship between the insurer and the medical care
provider is different from that of the managed care organization and its
participating medical care providers, CSM is not treating independent
insurance companies as a market for the CarteSmart System, and no assurance
can be given that it will ever become a market for the system.
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The market for CSM's health information systems and related services is
comprised of various providers of specialty care involving long-term treatment
of a repetitive nature rather that short-term critical care, such as medical
and surgical hospitals or clinics. CSM believes that there are approximately
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, 15,000 providers of treatment programs in t United States, including
public and private h tals, private and communi¥™-based residential
facilities and Federal, state and local governmental agencies. Of these
facilities, approx:imately 200 are customers cf CSM.

Netsmart believes that the acquisition of the CSM business and assets
complements its CarteSmart business and perscnnel. Following the acquisitcion,
Netsmart developed the graphical and smart card interface to the CSM health
information system and commenced a marketing effort directed to the Netsmart's
customer base. The two smart card agreements, San Diego County and the Albert
Einstein School of Medicine, represent amendments to existing contracts to
include smart card services.

Netsmart's health information systems are marketed principally to specialized
care facilities, many of which are operated by government entities and include
entitlement programs. During the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and
19983, approximately 54%, 45% and 47%, respectively, ol CSM's revenues was
generated from contracts with government agencies. Contracts with government
agencies generally include provisions which permit the contracting agency to
cancel the contract at its convenience.

For the yea: ended December 31, 1995, one customer accounted for more than 5%
of Netsmart's revenue, The State of Colorado generated revenue of
approximately 1.4 million, representing 18.5% of revenue for the year. At
January 31, 1996, this contract was substantially completed. Percentage of
completion is based on the percentage of work performed by such date. CSM's
largest customer for 1994 was Cuyahoga County (Cleveland) Ohio, from which CSM
recognized revenue of $250,000, or 7.0% of revenue. Diuring 1953, CSM had two
cusctomers which accounted for at least 5% of its revenie. Its largest
customer for 1993 was the City of Baltimore, which entered into a contract
with CSM for approximately $800,000 for software licenses and various contract
services, maintenance, hardware and software. CSM's revenue from the
Baltimore contract accounted for $312,000, or 63% of revenue, in 1993. The
contract was completed in July 1994, and revenue from the contract in 1994 was

substantially less than such revenue was in 1993. A contract with the City of
Los Angeles accounted for 52% of revenue for 1991,

Netsmart believes that the CarteSmart scftware has applications beyond the
health and human services market and is seeking to market the software to
educational institutions and in the financial services industry. In April
1995, Netsmart entered into a joint marketing agreement with QOasis, pursuant
to which each company markets the scftware of the cther company. Oasis, an
:ndependent software developer, has developed and markets a transaction
processing system, known as I1ST/Share, designed for high volume users in the
f.nancial services industry. Mr. Storm R. Morgan, a director of and
-onsultant to Netsmart, is an officer of, and has an equity interest in Oasis.
Netsmart believes thar its agreement with Oasis will enhance its ability to
market and introduce its product to the financial services industry where

Jasis has an existing client base.

llezsmart may enter into negotiations with other companies which have business,
product lines or products which are compatible with Netsmart's business
sbjectives. However; no assurance can be given as to the ability of Netsmart
tc enter into any agreement with such a company or that any agreement will
result in licenses of the CarteSmart System.
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At December 31, 1995, Net had a backlog of ardul‘:;l:dmg ongoing
maintenance and data cente tracts, in the aggregat t of $4.2

million, substantially all of which are expected to be filled during 199¢.
Such orders and contracts relate to health information sales and services.

Netsmart's sales force is comprised of three full-time sales representatives,
as well as Mr. Leonard M. Luttinger, chief operating officer, John F.
phillips, president of CSM, and SMI, a cecnsultant to Netsmart. Mr. Storm R.
Morgan's services include activities relating to the marketing of the
CarteSmart System to industries outside of the medical field. His present
efforts are devoted principally to the financial services industry. In
addition Mr. Luttinger and other members of Netsmart's technical staff are
available to assist in market support, especially for proposals which
contemplate the use of smart card transaction processing networks.

Product Development

Netsmart is continuing the development and enhancement of the CarteSmart
System, and six of its employees are engaged in such activities, for the year
ended Decemter 31, 1995 and the year ended December 31, 1554, research and
development expenses were $699,6000 and $367,000, respectively, representing a
950.4% increase. The increase reflects research and development for smart card
and related products and the graphical interface for Netsmart's health
information systems. Netsmart intends to expand its development activities
following completion of its public offering of stock. Netsmart intends to
develop a product based on both the SATC Software and its own technologies
including the CarteSmart System, and to develop a network support tool for the
financial services industry. The proposed enhancements include an increased
language capability so that it can be multilingual, an interface with the
CarteSmart System and an interface with Oasis' IST/Share, which is a
transaction processing system for high volume users in the financial services
industry. ;

Competition

Netsmart is in the business of licensing software to encitlement programs and
managed care organictations, specialty care institutions and other major
computer users who have a need for access to a distributed data network and
marketing health information systems software to specialty care organizations.
The sofrware industry in general is highly competitive, in addition, with
technological developments in the communicacions industry, it is possible that
communications as well as computer and software companies may offer similar or
compatible services. Although Netsmart believes that it can provide a health
care facility or managed care organization with software to enable it to
perform its services more effectively, other companies, including major
computer and communications companies have the staff and resources to develop
competitive systems, and users, such as insurance companies, have the ability
te develop software systems in house. Because of the large subscriber base
participating in the major managed care organizations, the inability of
Netsmart to license any such organi:ations could have a materially adverse
€lfect upon its business. Furthermore, various companies have offered smart
card programs, by which a person can have his medical records stored and
software vendors and insurance companies have developed software to enable a
physician or other medical care provider to have direct access to the
insurer's computer and other software designed to maintain patient health
and/or medication records. The market is very cost sensitive. In marketing
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_systems such as the Cg@geSmart System, Netsmart be able to demonstrate
the ability of the ne rk sponsor to provide e ed services at lower
effective cost. Major systems and consulting vendors, such as Unisys, AT&aT
.Corp. and Andersen Worldwide may offer packages which include smart cards anc
other network services. No assurance can be given that Netsmart will be able
to compete successfully with such competitors. Netsmart believes the health
insurance industry is developing switching software to be used in transmictinns
claims from health care providers tec the insurers, and insurers or managed
care organizations may also develop or license or purchase from others the
software to process such clams, which would compete with certain functions ¢
the CarteSmart System. The health information systems business is highly
competitive, and is serviced by a number of major companies and a larger
number of smaller companies, many of which are better capitalized, better
known and have better marketing staffs than Netsmarct, and no assurance can be
given that Netsmart will be able to compete effectively with such companies.
Major vendors of health information systems include Shared Medical Systems
Corp. and HBO Corp. Netsmart believes that price competition is a significan:
factor in its ability to market its health information systems and services,
and was a factor in the decline in CSM's revenue from 1952 to lower levels in
1994 and 1993, although such revenue increased during 1995.

Netsmart also faces intense competition as it seeks to enter the education and
financial services markets. Competition for the education market includes not
only major and minor software developers, but credit card issuers and
telecommunications companies. In marketing its CarteSmart-based products to
educational institutions, Netsmart can focus on the bennfits to the university
of providing an all-purpose card tc ease administration and reduce costs.
Major credit card issuers and communications companies, such as American
Express, AT&T and MCI, can offer similar services by permitting the university
to link their cards with the university's services. Such organizations can
also use these marketing efforts so a part of their overall corporate
marketing strategy to familiarize the students with their particular cards and
services in hopes of attracting the students as a long-term user of their
cards and services. As part of a marketing plan, rather than a profit center,
such card issuers may be able to offer the universities services similar to
Nersmar:z, but at a lower cost to the university. In this context, it is
possible that, unless Netsmart can enter into a marketing arrangement with a
major card issuer or telecommunications company, Netsmart may not be able to
compete successfully in marketing its CarteSmart products to educational
~NELItUTiIONnsS.

e financial services industry 1s served by numerous software vendors. In
tion, major banks, credit card issuers and other financial services
anies have the resources toc develop networking software in house. At
ent, most financial institutions use magnetic stripe cards rather than

t cards. Netsmart believes that its CarteSmart System together with the
SATC Software and its joint marketing agreement with Oasis, which presently
serves the financial services industry, will assist Netsmart in selling and
:censing its products and services in the financial services industry.

H W'
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However, to the extent that smart cards become more important in the financial
services industry, more companies in the financial services industry, as well

a5 the major computer and software companies, all of whom are better known and
substantially better.capitalized than Netsmart, and numerous smaller software

developers, are expected to play in increasingly active role in developing and
marketing smart card based products. No assurance can be given as to the

abpillity of Netsmart to compete in this industry.
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Government Regulations .

The Federal and state governments have adopted numerous regulations relating
ro the health care-industry, including regulations relating to the payments to,
health care providers for various services. The adoption of new regulations
car have a significant effect upon the operations of health care providers and
insurance companies. Although Netsmart's business is aimed & meeting certain
of the problems resulting from government regulations and from efforts to
reduce the cost of health care, the effect of future regulations by
governments and payment practices by governmment agencies or health insurers,
including reductions in the funding for or scope of entitlement programs,
cannot be predicted. Any change in, the structure cf health care in the
United States can have a material effect on companies providing services,
including those providing software. Although Netsmart believes that one
likely direction which may result from the current study of the health care
industry would be an increased trend to managed care programs, which is the
market to which Netsmart is seeking to license its CarceSmart System. No
assurance can be given that Netsmart's business will benefit from any changes
in the industry structure. Even if the industry does evolve toward more
health care being provided by managed care organizations, it is possible that
there will be substantial concentration in a few very large organizations,
which may seek to develop their own software or obtain software from other
sources. To the extent that the health care industry evolves with greater
government sponsored programs and less privately run organizations, Netsmart's
business may be adversely affected. Furthermore, to the extant that each
state changes its own regulations in the health care field, it may be
necessary for Netsmart to modify its health information systems to meet any
new record-keeping or other requirements imposed by changes in regulations,
and no assurance can be given that Netsmart will be able to generate revenues
sufficient to cover the costs of developing the modifications.

A substantial percentage of CSM's business has been with government agencies,
including specialized care facilities operated by, or under contract with,
government agencies. The decision on the part of a government agency to enter
into a contract is dependent upon a number of factors, including economic and
budgetary problems affecting the local area, and government procurement
ragulations, which may include the need for approval by more than one agency
before a contract is signed. In addition, contracts with government agencies
enerally include provisions which permit the contracting agency to cancel the
zn-ract at its convenience.

RS

-nzellecrual Property Rights

CarteSmart System is a propriecary system developed by Netsmart, and its
ith information system software is proprietary software developed by CSM.
smart has no patent rights for the CarteSmart System or health information
rem software, but it relies upon non-disclosure and secrecy agreements with
employees and third parties to whom Netsmart discloses information. No
urance can be given that Netsmart will be able to protect its proprietary
hts to its system or that any third party will not claim rights in the
swvstem., Disclosure of the codes used in che CarteSmart System or in any
proprietary product, whether or not in violation of a non-disclosure
agreement, could have a materially adverse affect upon Netsmart, even if
tecsmart is successful in obtaining injunctive relief, and no assurance can be
given that Netsmart will be able to obtain injunctive relief. Furthermore,
Necsmart may not be able to enforce its rights in cthe CarceSmart System in
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. certain foreign cmm:.s. .

Prior to joining Netsmart, Messrs., Leonard M. Luttinger and Thomas L. Evans.
chief operating officer and vice president, respectively, of Netsmart, were
employed by Onecard Corporation ("Onecard"), a corporation which was engaged
in the development of smart card technology. Netsmart developed its
CarteSmarr technology independent of Onecard, and no Onecard technology was
incorporated in the CarteSmart technology.

Source of Supply

Since Netsmart does not provide any of the hardware or the smart cards it 1is
the responsibility of the licensee to obtain the hardware smart carde and
other supplies. Netsmart's software operates On computer hardware and smart
cards manufactured by a number of suppliers.

Porential Business Agreements

Following completion of it's anticipated public offering in 1996, Netsmart may
enter into joint ventures, acquisitions or other arrangements, such as joint
marketing arrangements and licensing agreements, which Netsmart believes would
further Netsmart's growth and development. In negotiating such agreements or
arrangements, Netsmart anticipates that such agreements would he based upon
the manner in which Netsmart's business can be expanded, the extent to which
eithe- Netsmart's technology can be introduced or developed in fields not then
being addressed by Netsmart or the extent to which additional channels can be
developed for Netsmart's products and technology. Netsmart is a participant
in a joint marketing vehicle by which Netsmart's producti can be marketed by
other parties to the marketing arrangement, including IBM, and Netsmart would
have access to customers of the marketing partners. Netsmart's proposed joint
venture with Oasis to purchase the SATC Software and its joint marketing
agreement with Oasis are other examples of such agreements. Although Netsmart
is engaged in negotiations and performing its due diligence investigations,
with respect to a potential acquisition, Netsmart has not entered into any
letters of intent or agreements with respect toO any such arrangements or
rransactions. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that any agreement which
Netsmart enters into will generate any revenue to Netsmart. To the extent
that Netsmart enters into an agreement with an affiliated party, the terms and
conditions of such agreement will be on terms at least as favorable to
Nersmart as those Netsmart could achieve in negotiations at arm's length with
an independent third party. If any such agreement is with an affiliaced

party, Netsmart will seek the approval of a majority of the directors who have

no affiliation with the other party.

L]

Employees

#s of December 31, 1995, Netsmart had 72 employees, including five executive,
seven marketing and marketing support, 54 technical and six clerical and
administrative employees. The chief executive officer and the president of
lietsmart devote only a portion of their time to the business of Netsmart. If
s public offering is completed, Nersmar: intends to hire additional personnel

as needed.
THREE DIMENSIONAL PR&DUCTS AND SERVICES
1D Technology. Inc.
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apT is engaged in the dmrnt and marketing of prttn based on
three-dimensional imaging digitizing tlchnolog{. ee-dimensional
digitizing is the process of constructing a digital image of an object. Three
dimensional digitizing products are used in various phases of the development
and manufacture of a product, including rapid prototyping, manufacturing of
components and gquality control. 3DT's scanning products can generate
digitized images which can be input into computer assisted design or computer
assisted manufacturing ("CAD/CAM") software systems.

1pT was founded to develop solutions using three-dimensional imaging
technology in response to a perceived need by the manufactwring and metrology
industries for products to enable them to develop and introduce new products
and to improve the quality control and maintenance operations. As a result of
developments in laser and other imaging technologias, it became possible in
many instances for a manufacturer to design produccs more efficiently using
three-dimensional imaging technology either by itself or combined with CAD/CTAM
systems. It also became easier to duplicate products for which the
manufacturer did not have drawings of the molds. Similaz’y in metrology,
which is the science of measuring, it became possible to determine rapidly
whether a product or part meets the specifications and tolerances, either at
the manufacturing facility at the time of production or in the field as part
of continued maintenance.

CAD/CAM systems are software systems used to design products and to generate
the necessary computerized instructions for the manufacture of an object in
accordance with the computerized design. The result ' ng computer instructions
can be translated into instructions for computerized numeric control ("CNC";
or computerized measuring machines ("CMM") or stored as a data base for future
reference. CNC equipment is manufacturing or milling equipment which is
programmed to manufacture a part or component based on computerized
instructions. The computerized instructions can be generated by either
CAD/CAM systems or directly from scanning equipment. CMM equipment is used in
quality control to ascertain whether the finished product conforms to the
specification.

Rapid prototyping is the generation of a physical model of a product. The
model can be either designed on a CAD system or produced from digital
infcrmation generated by a scan of the object. Scanning equipmenc, such as
3DT's OpticaTM laser scanner, can generate a digitized image of an object in a
form which can be inpurt intec a CAD program and modified in the CAD system to
meer the design requirements of the manufacturer. The use of rapid
rototyping systems is intended to reduce the development time of a product.
Rapid prototyping systems are used in industries such as the automotive,
av.acion and medical fields which devote substantial resource to product
aesign.

In the manufacturing process, a laser scanner can be mounted directly onto
manufacturing equipment, principally CNC equipment, which uses the digitized
infocrmation to generate an object having the same outside dimensions as the
scanned object. In addition, in the same manner as rapid prototyping, the
scanned image can be used as the basis for the further development of a
product, and the data generated can be used either to make the product or to
make the molds and dies used in the manufacture of the product. 3DT's Optical
laser scanner is designed to enable a manufacturer to perform these functions.

Since the scanning operations generate a computer file setting forth the
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dimensions and other surements of an object, information can be used
“in quality control intenance to determine her the object beinc
gcanned meets the required specifications and tolerances. 3DT's Lazer
TracerTM is designed to be used by gquality control and maintenance personnel
‘ to determine whether the finished product complies with the specifications.

iDT is the exclusive discributor in Europe and Israel of the SurfacerT™
software product lines, which 3DT markets pursuant tO an agreement with
Imageware, Inc. ("Imageware"). The Surfacer software is designed :to convert
the mathematical information generated bg a laser sensor or other :imaging
device into a useful computer format. While the digitized data can be input
into and can be recognized by CAD/CAM systems, the image generated consists of
lines and points, but does not show any surface or covering on the image. The
Surfacer software converts the mathematical data into an image with a surface
having the tensicn and other characteristics set by the user. Using Surfacer,
the CAD/CAM system can project a three-dimensional image of the object as a
completed product on the computer screen, and the operator of the system can
work with the generated object.

3IDT also distributes VisiCad and VisiCam software pursuant to an exclusive
distribution agreement with Vero International Software Srl, an Italian
corporation. VisiCad is a PC-based surface and.solids modeling and design
package which is used to create three-dimensional designs. VisiCam is a
PC-based multi-axis, multi-surface, milling and turning and EDM CAM package
which can use information generated by Surfacer or VisiCad to complete the
manufacturing of a product.

In addition to the hardware and software products which 3DT markets, 3DT
offers scanning and digitizing services for custome:'s who do not reguire a
scanning system but can use a folic which can be used in the customer's
CAD/CAM systems or which can be input directly into the customer's CNC

eguipment.

iDT has completed the development of a foot digitizer, which is used to
develop shoes and shoe-lasts for a person based upon the digitized image of
hie foot. 3DT has an informal agreement with a manufacturer of non-laser
scanners, to develop an initial prototype of a foot dicitizer. 3DT is
discussing with four major shoe companies the potential of marketing the foot
digitizer system for custom shoe and orthopedic shoe applications.

Three Dimensional Products and Services
Cprzical Laser Scanner and Lazer Tracer

iIT has developed two laser scanning products -- its Optical laser scanner
wnich can be either mounted on CNC or CMM equipment or interfaced with CAD/CAM
eguipment, and its Lazer Tracer, which is a hand-held countour-measuring
svstem designed to be used for quality control. The computerized instructions
can be either generated by CAD/CAM equipment or directly from scanning
guipment. 3DT introduced both the Optical laser scanner and the Lazer Tracer
n spring 19%94. However, 3DT has not generated any significant revenue from
hese products. The Lazer Tracer is based on certain patents ("GE patent
rights") being acquired by 3DT from General Electric Company ("GE") pursuant
to a January 1994 agreement. Pursuant to the agreement with GE, 3DT acquired
four uncompleted prototypes for the Lazer Tracer and is required to complete
the development of the prototypes and to deliver them to GE.

{ Y i B
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iDT's Optical laser sensor es a three-dimensional p!ﬂu of a solid object .
by recording the reflection a beam of light that is flected” off the
solic object and is recorded by a special camera that converts the light
emicced by the laser and projected onto the object's surface into electrical
impulses and digitizes the input. It enables a user tO reconstruct a physical
object by converting the image generated by the sensor into a

three-dimensional replication by identifying the points on the surface of the
object into a series of mathematical X, y and z coordinates. These

coordinates represent the height, width and depth of each point on a
three-dimensional grid. The proposed laser scanner, is designed to interface
with most scandard CNC controllers and can be mounted directly ontc a CNC
machine. The digitizing software incorporated into the laser scanner can
generate data in formats which are accepted by standard CAD/CAM software.

Once the data is input into a CAD/CAM system, it can be modified to meet the
manufacturers specific needs. The Optical laser scanners are manufactured by

a nonaffiliated company, which is using icts own base technology to meet 3DT's
specific needs. However, 3DT does not have any long-term agreement with the

supplier.

The principal uses for 3DT's Optical laser scanner include rapid prototyvping
and reverse engineering, duplication of parts or components for which there is
no CAD design. The software in the scanner enables the user to sce a virtual
image of the product on a computer screen in addition to producing a physical
model of the product. By being able to visualize and feel a model of a
product, a manufacturer can save substantial time and effort and introduce the
product to market earlier than would otherwise be the case. In cases where
the manufacturer has a part, but not a computer design, the scanner can be
used to produce a virtual image that is needed to create a CAD model from
which a die or mold can be produced. Using this method, a manufacturer can
make an exact duplicate of almost any item ranging from antigue furniture to
plastic bottles and containers to automobile and aircraft parcs.

IDT's Lazer Tracer, which is based on a GE patent, is designed for the
metrology industry and uses laser technology to measure geometric features
such as radii, angles and curves. Unlike the Optical laser scanner, which can
alsc perform measuring tasks, the Lazer Tracer is hand held and is designed
for use on the assembly lines and in maintenance operations where the
continued performance of a part is important. The Lazer Tracer is designed to
measure the various parameters against stored information as to the
specifications and permissible tolerances. The unit is intended to be used in
any environment and will provide quick indications whether the product meets
the specifications. The quality control functions can be used in any facility
where it is important to know rapidly whether the product complies with the
specifications, especially when it 1is difficult for another measuring device
to determine whether the product conforms to specifications. The unit has
applications in field maintenance where precision is crucial to determining
whether the cbject continues to conform to specifications. One such
aprlication is aircraft maintenance where another measuring device may have
difficulty in determining whether the blade of a jet engine continues Lo meet
specifications. The patents cover hand scanning devices which can be used
inthe metrology industry. 3DT commenced marketing both the Optical laser
scanner and the Lazer Tracer during summer cf 1995, however, no such efforcs
have resulted in significant revenue.

The laser sensors and other laser based products are subject to regulation by
Federal Bureau of Radiation Health ("BRH") of the Occupational Safety and
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aHealth Administration ich requires that all products meet certain
standards. 3DT has £ with the BRH applicati with respect to its laser
products, and 3DT may sell the products in the United States. Other

«countcries, including Canada, also may subject laser products to regulation.
iDT intends to make application under applicable laws to market its products
in Canada.

Surfacer Software

The Surfacer software is a software environment for working with
three-dimensional data. The data can be generated by any source, including
three-dimensional scanners utilizing laser and other technology, medical and
other imaging systems. While the digitized data can be input into and can be
recognized by a CAD/CAM system, the image generated consists of lines and
points, but does not show any surface or covering on the image. This soltware
15 designed to convert the information generated by a laser sensor or other
imaging device into a mathematical representation of the model. Using
Surfacer, the CAD/CAM system can project a three- dimensional image of the
object on the computer screen, and the operator of the system can work with
the generated objct.

3DT and iImageware believe that the Surfacer software can be used in numerous
industrial and other applications, especially in industries where the
appearance of a product is important, such as the automobile industry. Using
scanning and the Surfacer software, an automobile manufacturer can develop and
evaluate a model of a new automobile in a much shorter time period and can
improve the quality of the assembly process.

Pursuant to its agreement with Imageware, dated as of Febraary 1, 1993,
Imageware appointed 3DT as its exclusive distributor for tne Surfacer software
in Burope and Israel. 3DT has the right to sell software licenses > end
users in the territory. In addition. Imageware has the right to market the
Surfacer scftware to original equipment manufacturers ("OEM"); however,
Imageware has the sole right to approve an OEM arrangement, which is made
directly between 3DT's customer and Imageware.

The agreement continues until March 31, 1997; however, Imageware has the right
o terminate the agreement prior to such date in the event that sOT fails to
=ar its sales quotas for two consecutive calendar quarters. The agreement
rovides that 3DT's quotas for each calendar quarter, commencing with the

= ot

arter ending September 30, 1594, are based on Imageware's sales of its
facer software in the United States. The termination of the Imageware
sement would have a material adverse effect upon 3IDT,
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:DT's customers for the Surfacer scftware include major European manufacturing
zompanies in such industries as automotive, aerospace and manufacturing. 3DI,
& subsidiary of 3DT, has received an order from Audi and BMW of Germany, Rover
cf the United Kingdom and Saab of Sweden.

VYisiCad and VisiCam

VisiCad is a state-of-the-art PC-based surface and solids modeling software
and design package used to create three dimensional models using both
MS-Windows 95 and MS-Windows NT software environments. The different VisiCad
modules allow a designer to elaborate on models be using a flexible and
intelligent sketcher without the need for concentration on choosing detailed
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geometry commands. For , in constructing a 1 hat connects two
other elements, VisiCad p ES:All & cy and s ion possibilicies
according to the position of the cursor line without recourse to the menus.

VvisiCam is a state-of-the-art PC-based multi-axis, multi-surface milling,
turning and EDM CAM software package which uses information generated by
Ssurfacer or VisiCad, or other CAD system, to complete the manufacturing of a
product. VisiCam offers surfacing, milling and editing modules. VisiCam is
an easy to use series of software packages featuring pop-down menus and
dialogue boxes and powerful commands, all available by clicking a mouse. It
also offers a range of CNC applications and an integrated geometry generation
and machine tool simulation package.

Digitizing and Design Services

1DT has recently begun to offer imaging, digitizing and product development
services at its Connecticut and Belgium offices. These services involve the
digitizing of an object provided by the client, the use of the Surfacer
software to generate an image with the desired surface and the delivery of a
computer file which can be used in any CAD/CAM system. In addition, 3DT can
deliver a prototype of a scanned model. 3DT offers these services both as an
independent source of revenue and as a part of its marketing program for its
products and services. These services have generated only minimal revenue
through December 31, 1994, and no assurance can be given that 3DT will ever
generate meaningful revenue from this service or that the service will assist

it in promoting its products and services.
Foot Digitizer

iDT has an informal agreement with a nonaffiliated West German manufacturer of
non-laser based three- dimensional scanning equipment pursuant to which such
manufacturer has developed for 3DT a prototype of the Foot Digitizer. The
Foor Digitizer is a three-dimensional scanner which rapidly scans a human
f50r . The resulting scan is designed to be used tc develop shoe molds which
are custom designed for the scanned foot. The Foot Digitizer is expected to
be markered to manufacturers of orthopedic shoes and custom made footwear.

Thne ability of 3DT to market the Foot Digitizer will be dependent upon 3DT's
ability to demonstrate to custom shoe manufacturers that the Foot Digitizer
recregents a method of increasing revenues and gross profit, as to which no

acsurance can be given.

=sently, this system is going through clinical testing at the Norway

Or-nopedic Center for European FDA approval. 3DT, through its offices in
Eelgium filed an EEC project during March 1995, with other industrial market
leaders from Europe, to make a total system that will be utilized to produce
£cc: casts automatically from a digitized foot., Upon approval, the EEC may
fund this project on an installment basis. 3DT would manage the project and
establish worldwide marketing and distribution channels

Ozrher Produccts

In addition to its products and software, 3DT has marketing rights with
respect to CAD/CAM software and hardware. As a result, 3DT is able to market
an integrated system to meet the specific needs of its clients. Such a system
could include an Optical scanner or Lazer Tracer, the Surfacer suftware,
CAD/CAM software and hardware. 3DT has received a purchase order for one such
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’7 system at a price of 'roximtaly $110,000. .

Markets and Marketing

The market for three-dimensional scanning equipment and the Surfacer software
includes a range of manufacturing and industrial companies in industries as

ried as the automotive and aircraft, manufacturers of molds and dies for
plastic containers, toys and any industri or application where the creation of
a product reguires the development of an accurate three-dimensional model.
Another aspect of the market for three-dimensional scanning is the metrology
market, where precise measurements are required to determine whether a product
meets the specifications.

To date, 3DT's marketing effcct has been directed principally to marketing the
Surfacer software in Europe. 23DT's European marketing staff operates from its
European headgquarters in Belgium, and it has sales agencies in the United
Kingdom and Germany. Its marketing effort for the Surfacer is conducted by
both an in-house sales and service staff and a network of representatives.
With the recent market introduction of the Optical laser scanner and the Lazer
Tracer, 3DT has commenced marketing its products both directly to end users,
including customers who would purchase the products on an OEM or VAR basis,
and it is sesking to establish a network of representatives.

Competition

iDT's products compete with other laser scanning products as well as products
which scan objects using technologies which are not lager based, Competition
is based on the cost and safety or perceived safety of the equipment, the
specific requirements of the user, the compatibility of the scanning equipment
with the user's CAD/CAM and manufacturing equipment and the cost savings
expected to be realized from the purchase of the equipment. 3DT's competitors
include a number of small and medium sized companies that offer products that
are designed for certain specific applications. No assurance can be given
rhat 3DT will be able to compete successfully with such competitors.

Inzellectual Property Rights

January 1994, 3DT entered into an agreement with GE pursuant to which it
reed to purchase from GE a patent and patent application relating to the
chnology used in the Lazer Tracer. The agreement requires 3DT to pay the
rchase price of $175,000 as follows: $25,000 on signing the contract, which
yvment has been made, and three payments of $50,000 due at various times

rer 1DT has delivered the fourth Lazer Tracer unit, or earlier based upon
inT's sales of Lazer Tracer units. The agreement also grants 3DT a license to
use certain GE technology relating to the Lazer Tracer. The agreement also
gives GE a non-exclusive irrevocable rights to use the GE patent rights.

Under the agreement, until the purchase price is paid, 3DT has a revccable
license to use the GE patent rights. Upon payment of the balance of the
purchase price, 3DT will receive title to the GE patent rights, subject to any
licenses previously granted by GE. GE has agreed to give 31DT notice prior to
granting any such licenses, which will enable 3DT to take title to the GE
patent rights prior to the grant of any license by GE. No assurance can be
aiven that the GE patent rights will be effective in limiting the development
of competing products by others who could design around the patents. Except
for the GE patent rights, 3DT has no other patent or copyrights on its
products. Although 3DT has signed non-disclosure agreements with its
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employees and others to w*it disclose proprietary ormation, no assurance

can be given that such proWgetion will be sufficient.\@he unauthorized use or
disclosure of 3IDT's proprietary software and other proprietary information may
have a materially adverse effect upon its business. -
TELECOMMUNICATIONS i

ARC Networks, Inc.

ARC Networks was acquired by the Company in December 1953 at the same time as
the Company acquired Avionics. ARC Networks was formed by the senior officers
of Avionics in 1993 to market a range of telecommunications services to meet
the specific needs of its customers. In performing these services, ARC
Networks analyzes the client's current telecommunications services and its
anticipated short and medium term requirements and seeks tO design and
implement a telecommunications program to meet such needs. Such services may
include designing a client's internal voice, video and/or data communications
necrwork or a local area network for intra-office voice and data communications
or a wide area network to enable each office to communicate internally,
locally, nationally and internationally through one or more local or
long-distance carriers. As a distributor of Ericsson Business Communications,
Inc. equipment, ARC Networks can offer a range of telecommunications switching
and other telecommunications equipment, which could be included as part of a
total telecommunications package.

In 1993, ARC Networks entered into a ten-year national agreement with Teleport
Communications Group, Inc. ("TCG") pursuant to which ARC Networks can resell
local telephone service offered by TCG, which utilizes its own fiber optic
network to bypass the service presently offered by the local telephone
companies. Until recently, only the local telephone company could offer local
telephone service; however, TCG is presently providing local telephone
service, which was made possible in New York by rulings of the New York
Public Service Commission to deregulate local telephone services. TCG was
founded by Merrill Lynch in 1983 to provide long-distance communications for
its own use and other corporations based in lower Manhattan in New York City.
ARC Networks is marketing local telephone service as an enhancement to a
telecommunications services program which ARC Networks designs to enable a
cuscomer to minimize the customer's exposure to telecommunications downtime.

urrently, ARC Network, under the agreement is operating in New York and has a
ew customer in San Francisco. Additionally, ARC Network plans to market to
0 principal cities throughout the Uniced Scates,

0

T

Under the agreements with TCG, ARC Networks has the right to resell
pcint-to-point and local telephone services in every city served by TCG. ARC
Nerworks purchases minutes of telephone time at discounted bulk rates from TCG
and resells those minutes at a premium over cost to its clients. ARC Networks
does not believe its contractual obligations to purchase telephone usage from
TCG represents a material commitment. &

ARC Networks believes that it can enhance its position with its clients by |
offering a value added consulting and telephone management service. The local
telephone service in each city is presently dominated by the local telephone
companies, who are expected to compete vigorously with resellers.

Furthermore, other companies, including long-distance carriers and other
telephone companies, may seek to offer local telephone service.
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.+ ARC Networks markets ‘s:wicl to high volume rcial users of

telecommunications se e through a small in-houl¥ sales staff and
independent telecommunications consultants, some of whom may also perform

.consulting services for potential customers. It presently provides its
services to 40 accounts.

ARC Networks competes with numerous consulting firms, including major
international firms, consulting divisions of major accounting firms,
consulting divisions of eguipment manufacturers and numerous independent
firms, some of which may have ongoing relationships with the potential
clients, including relationships resulting from a prior emplovment or other
affiliation. The ability of ARC Networks to generate profitable husiness is
dependent upon 1ts ability to distinguish itself from the other fi:ms offering
similar services, including and no assurance can be given as to their abilicy
to generate profitable operations. The ability of ARC Networks to complete
successfully as a pirovider of local telephone telecomiunications service is
dependent upon both its ability to include such services as part of an
integrated telecommunications package and, in such capacity. to be able to
offer such users local telecommunications service of a quality comparable to
that offered by the local telephone companies and other major suppliers of
local telephone service at rates which are lower that the rates offered by the
local telephone operating company and other providers of local telephone
service. The market for local telephone service may be analogous to the
market for long-distance service. When competition was permitted in
long-distance telephone service, a large number of companies offered such
service, including many resellers. However, as the market matured, it became
dominated by a small number of long-distance carriers. Similarly, local
telephone service may become dominated by a small numbiir of well-capitalized
companies and the competition among such companies may inhibit the growth of
resellers. Furthermore, 1local telephone service may become subject to
governmental regulations on a Federal, state and local basis. Accordingly, no
assurance can be given that ARC Networks can or will ever operate profitably
or that there will be a long-term market for the resale of local telephone

service.

Telecommunications services are subject to Federal, state and local
regulation. Although there has been considerable deregulation in the
telecommunications industry, there continue to be regulations affecting local
telephone service, both as to rates and nature of service provided and

telecommunications equipment.
BUSINESS CONSULTING SERVICES
515 Capital Corporation

SISC was organized by Consolidated for the purposes of making investments in
or advancing funds to companies in which Consolidated has or proposes to
obtain an equity position. SISC or one of SISC's subsidiaries holds the
Company's equity and debt position in all of the operating subsidiaries. SISC
has also advanced approximately $1,072,000 to a nonatfiliated company which
was a debtor in possession pursuant to a Chapter 11 proceeding under the
Bankruptcy Act and for which the Company was also performing consulting
services, Effective. March 1955 the bankruptcy trustee's plan was confirmed
in which the Company has a super priority lien on the advances and has the
right to name a director to the debtor. If the debtor goes into default to
any creditor, the Company has the right to assume the operations of the debtor
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and to convert the debt to ity and at the election the Company, may
receive additional shares he debtor as a partial ction of the secured
debt enabling the Company to have up to a 95% equity interest in the debtor.

The Trinity Group, Inc.

Trinity provides management and related services both to Consolidated's
subsidiaries as well as nonaffiliated entities. Trinity's management services
include management, finance, accounting, operations, marketing and other
services, which are typically rendered pursuant to a consulting agreement. In
the early stages of the subsidiaries' development, Trinity's officers, may
serve as senior executive officers of the subsidiaries. In addition,
Consoclidated, either through Trinity or one of the other subsidiaries, may
provide or arrange financing for the subsidiaries. To the extent that the
subsidiaries are not generating an operating profit, Trinity may defer the
receipt of payment until the subsidiary has tha resources CoC pay the fee.

In addition to performing services for its subsidiaries, Trinity provides q
similar management services for other companies which are not affiliated with -
Consolidated. Services for both the subsidiaries and non-affiliated companies

are performed principally by Lewis §. Schiller, chairman of the board,

president and chief executive officer of Consolidated. Other services may be
performed by other officers of Trinity or Consolidated or by independent
consultants who are engaged on an ad hoc basis. The fee structure, which is

set prior to the engagement, may be paid in cash or securities. Trinity does

not conduct any advertising or any active marketing program. Typically,

Trinity is engaged as a result of personal contacts by Mr. Schiller.

Trinity competes with numerous consulting firms, including major international
firms, consulting divisions of major accounting firms, consulting divisions of
equipment manufacturers and numerous indepandent firms, some of which may have
ongoing relationships with the potential clients, including relationships
resulting from a prior employment or other affiliation, Trinity's abilicty to
compete successfully in providing consulting services is presently dependent
upon the personal contacts of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, and no assurance can be
given that Trinity can or will be able to perform services for nonaffiliated
entities. To the extent that the services of Mr., Schiller are required for
the management, operation and funding of Consolidated's subsidiaries,
Trinity's ability to perform services for nonaffiliated parties is now
significantly limited.

Research and Development

The Company's research and development and product development activities are
conducted by 3DT, CSM and Sequential, including its subsidiary S-Tech. The
Company's research and development expenses for the twelve month periods ended
December 31, 1995 and December 31, 1994 and the fiscal years ended July 31,
1594 and 1993 were approximately $893,000, 54,842,000, $1,902,000 and
$3%6,000, respectively. All research and development activities were
performed by the subsidiaries and were company-financed. The Company's
research and development and product develcopment efforts could be adversely
affected by the lack of available funds.

iDT's development effort has related principally to the development of
software which integrated laser sensors with computerized numerical control
equipment and other equipment and in connection with the development of its
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_ proposed new pruduc:i.‘xcluding the proposed lum‘mor and foot digitizing
© system.

JLEmployees

As of December 31, 1995, the Company employed an aggregate of 365 persons on a
full-time basis, of whom 102 were executive, managerial and administrative, 32
were sales and marketing, 45 were manufacturing and 186 were technical. The
Company's manufacturing employees all work for either Sequential, S-Tech or
WWR and its technical personnel are employed by Netsmart, IMI, 3DT, and Trans
Global. In addition, at such date, Trans Global employed approximately 570
individuals who were employed by Trans Global performing work on a temporary
basis for, and on the premises of, its clients. The number of persons who are
employed by Trans Global varies from period to period, depending on the
requirements of their respective clients. All of the employees working for
Trans Global's clients are employed on a temporary basis. None of the
Company's employees are represented by a union, and the Company believes that
its employee relations are good.
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Item 2. FProperty

Consolidated and its :ubsié!!tits. other than 3D International, IMI,
Sequential, S-Tech and WWR Technology, otcupy an aggregats of approximately
7,000 square feet of office space, principally in New York City and Long
Island, New York and Connecticut.

3D International presently has offices in three cities in Europe, where it
leases an aggregate of approximately 4,000 square feect.

Sequential occupies approximately 15,000 square feet of office and
manufacturing space in Elmsford, New York. !

S-Tech occupies approximately 6,500 square feet of manufacturing and office
space in West Babylon, New York.

IMI owned four of its Centers and leased the facilities for the remaining
centers. Each Center consists of 3,000 to 5,000 square feet, generally
located in a shopping plaza or suburban office park in close proximity fo
major medical facilities. IMI also leases approximately 5,000 square feet for
its executive and administrative headquarters in Boca Raton, Florida.

WWR Technology occupies approximately 70,000 feet of usable manufacturing,
office and storage space located in Hope, Arkansas.

The aggregate amount of annual rent payable by the Company, based on leases in
effect as of December 31, 1995, is approximately $1,600,000. The Company
believes that its present space is adequate to meet its present needs and that
additional space is available at suitable locations and ¢n reasonable terms.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Holding Company:

The Company has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a company it
was contemplating acquiring in January 1995 for alleged unauthorized use of
proprietary information specific to that line of business. Outside counsel
handling this case has advised the Company that it has meritorious defenses to
oozain a dismissal of the lawsuit.

Con=ract Engineering Services:

The Government Printing Office wrote a subsidiary of the Company asking to be
re:mbursed a total of $296 for unauthorized timework on two programs. The
subsidiary has been in contact with the Department of Justice which has stated
rha= they were declining prosecution of the subsidiary regarding this matter.
Management believes thefe claims are without merit and intends to contest
these claims vigorously if reasserted by the Government Printing Office and
believe that the ultimate disposition of this matter will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the Company.
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~,Item 3. Legal Procee s (continued)

The United States Department of Labor ("DOL") hu!lud a complaint against
.Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Job Shop"), a company from which a
subsidiary of the Company purchased certain assets and assumed certain
obligations, and its former principal shareholder for civil violations of
ERISA resulting from the failure of Job Shop to deposit employee contributions
to Job Shop's 401(k) retirement plan. A similar complaint was filed by former
employees of Job Shop against Job Shop, its former principal shareholder and
cthers. At November 21, 1994, the amount due to the Job Shop 401(k) plan was
approximately $3,000, which amount may have increased since such dare as a
result of interest and penalties. Neither the Company nor RMI, whick is the
subsidiary which acquired assets and assumed certain obligations of Job Shop
in November 1594, has been named as a defendant in either of such actions.

The DOL has raised with the Company the possibility thaz RMI may be liable
with respect to Job Shop's ERISA liability as a successor corporation or
purchaser of plan assets, even though RMI may did not assume such obligations
and paid value for those assets which it did purchase. Although the Company
believes that RMI is not a successor corporation to Job Shop and is not
responsible for Job Shop's ERISA violations, the DOL may take a contrary
position. If the DOL takes such a position and prevails, it would have a
material adverse effect upon the operations of RMI and possibly the Company as
a whole,

Medical Information Services:

An action was commenced against a subsidiary of the Company by the filing of a
summons with notice in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of
New York. The action was commenced by Jacque W, Pate, Jr., Mzlvin Pierce,
Herbert A. Meisler, John Gavin, Elaine Zanfini, individually and derivatively
as shareholders of Onecard Health Systems Corporation and Onecard Corporation,
which corporations are collectively referred to as "Onecard". The named
defendants include, in addition to the subsidiary, officers and directors of
the subsidiary and the Company. A complaint was filed on November 15, 1995.
The complaint makes broad claims respecting alleged misappropriation of
Onecard's trade secrets, corporate assets and corpocrate opportunities, breach
of fiduciary relationship, unfair competition., fraud, breach of trust and
other similar allegations, apparently arising at the time of, or in connection
with the organization of the subsidiary in September 1992. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief and damages, including punitive damages of $130,000.
Management believes that the action is without merit, and it will vigorously
defend the action. Nevertheless, due to uncertainties in the legal process,
it is at least reasonably possible that management's view of the outcome will .
change in the near term and there exists the possibility that there could be a
material adverse impact on the operations of the Company.
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Ztem 3. Legal Proceedings tinued) .
Audio Visuzl Manufacturing and Services:

There is an action pending against a subsidiary of the Company alleging claims
against the subsidiary for unauthorized use of the Klipsch trademark. The
Company denies these allegations and asserts there has been no material breach
of contract. The case is currently in the discovery phase and the amount of
any liability, if any, cannot be estimated. Management intends to defend
vigorously the claims alleged against the subsidiary. Nevertheless, due to
uncertainties in the legal process, it is at least reasonably possible that
management's view of the outcome will change in the near term and there exists
the possibility that there could be a material adverse impact on the
operations of the subsidiary.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to security holders for a vote during the year ended
December 31, 1995.
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Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Bquity and Related Stockholder Matters
“The Company's Common Stock is traded on the Nasdag SmallCap Market under the
symbol COTG. Set forth below is the reported high and low bid prices of the
Common Stock for the fiscal quarters and transition period listed. Such
prices are as reported by Nasdag since January 1994 and by National Quotaticn
Bureau derived from the pink sheets or OTC Bulletin Board for pricr periods.
Such bid quotations reflect interdealer prices, without retail mark-up,
mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Quarter Ending High Bid Low Bid
March 31, 1954 6.62 §.75
June 30, 1954 6.62 3.25
September 30, 1994 4.50 0.87
December 31, 1954 1.25 0.50
March 31, 19985 1.28 0.63
June 30, 1995 1.19 0.88
September 30, 1955 0.54 0.50
December 31, 1995 0.63 0.25

As of December 31, 1995, there were approximately 19,30) holders of record of
the Company's common stock.

No cash dividends have been paid to the holders of the Common Stock during the
years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 19983.
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Item 6. Selected rinuncin‘an

Fiscal &t Ended July 31,

ear Ended
1995 1994 1594 1993 1992
(in 000's except per share data)
Selected Statements
of Operations Data:
Revenues $110,087 541,578 $15,742 $ 3,83% $ 4,513
EaEESED EEEEEE LT T I Iq] -EEEESE EEEEES
Income (Loss) from
Operations ($§ 11,112) ($10,464) ($10,566) (§ 1,403) % 59
EEEESSn EEEEES EEEEEN EEESE W EEEEE =
Income (Loss) before
Extraordinary Item (§ 11,360) ($11,428 ($10,772) § 594 (§ 122)
Extraordinary Item
- Net of Tax - - -- 146 --
Net Income (Loss) (§ 11 360) ($11,428) (810,772) § 740 (% 122)
EEESSES EEEEE - - Er 1 I 1 0]
Net Income (Loss)
per Common Share (§0.51) ($0.80) ($1.35) $0.18 ($0.03)
EERS EEEN - EEEe -
Selected Balance
Sheet Data:
Total Assets $ 66,312 $68, 789 £25,070 $ 7,381 $ 4,775
EESEEEEE EEEsEE EssEeE EgsEES N EErEERD
Long-term Obligations:
Long-term Debt and
Capital Lease
Obligations $ 8,408 $11,1812 s 258 -- .-
Subordinated Debt 5,003 17,£26 - -- --
Toctal Long-term
Obligations 5 131,411 $29.109 S 298 - --
ERE=s=saa FEEsE=ES EEREE N
Cash Dividends Declared
per Common Share -- -- - = -

The following factors make the above selected financial data non comparable
fcr the following indicated periods and reasons:
1} The fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 includes unusual income of §1,523.

- 2Z) The fiscal year ended July 31, 199 includes expense of $7,140 from the
issuance of stock optjons to consultants.
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JItem 6. Selected rinn.l pata (continued) : .

2) The year ended December 31, 1994 includes expense of $4,140 from the
.issuance of stock cptions to consultants.

4) The year ended December 31, 1995 includes expense of $3,869% from the
issuance of stock options to consultants.

5) 1In December 1993, the Company acquired ARC Acquisition Group, Inc. and
ARC Networks, Inc. and in June 1994, the acquired Creative
Socio-Medics, Inc. Such acquisitions resulted in: (i) an increase in assets
of approximately $13,000 as of July 31, 1994; (ii) an increase in revenues of
approximately $11,000 for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and $14,400 for
the year ended December 31, 1994; and (iii) a net increase in net loss of
approximately $173 for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and §1,600 for the
year ended December 31, 1954.

6) 1In September 1954 the Company acquired International Magnetic Imaging,
Inc. and in November 1994, the Company acguired Job Shop Technical Services
and Computer Engineering Services. Such acquisitions resulted in: (i) an
increase in assets of approximately $47,200 as of December 31, 1994; (ii) an
increase in revenues of approximately $11,500 for the year ended December 31,
1994; and (iii) a net decrease in net loss of approximately $270 for the year
ended December 31, 1994.

7) In May 1995 the Company acquired Concept Technologies resulting in: (i)
an increase in assets of approximately §1,780 as of December 31, 1995; (ii) an
increase in revenues of approximately $2,149 for the year ended December 31,
1995; and (iii) an increase in net loss of approximately $553 for the year
ended December 31, 1995.
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Item 7. Management's Dis ion and Analysis of rinu..l Condition and
Results of Operations {i:.D"l except share data)

Financial Condition
Ligquidity and Capital Resources

The Company's principal working capital consists of cash and cash equivalents.
cash and cash equivalents were $1,636 at December 31, 1995 compared to $1,727
at December 31, 1994, During the year ended December 31, 1995, the Company's
net cash provided by operations was $1,99% of which $5,550 related to the
operations of International Magnetic Imaging, Inc., ("IMI") wiich means that
all other entities used a net amount of $3,951 in operations. As such it is
clear that on a consolidated basis, the Company's principal source of cash was
from the operations of IMI. Pursuant to an IMI financing agreement with a
creditor, restrictions exist on the distributions of IMI funds whereby IMI may
not make payments out of the ordinary course of IMI operations and
specifically, not to the parent company, (Consolidated), or any subsidiary or
affiliate. The other segments are thereby required to operate on their own
cash flows and as of December 31, 1995 the most significant impact from these
restrictions is on the Three Dimensional Products and Services and Medical
Information Services segments which are currently unable to operate without
significant cash infusions from the parent company, (Consolidated)., If these
segments do not obtain alternative sources of funding (i.e. equity offerings,
creditor financing or increased volume), it is uncertain whether these
segments will continue as operating groups. The remaining segments have been
able to offset the cash used in operations by obtaining cash from financings
and subsidiary level equity offerings.

Sources of funds during the year ended December 31, 1955, other than from
operations includes $1,664 from debt financings, $5,181 from the issuance of
stock and the exercise of stock options, $504 of cash from an acquired
subsidiary, $530 from the sale of common stock investments and $220 from the
sale of fixed assets. The principal use of cash, other than to fund
operations, includes $8,103 for payment on debt and capital lease obligations,
23 for the acquisition of a subsidiary, $684 for the purchase of fixed

sezs and 5129 for offering costs. Net other uses of cash amounted to $290.

=]
-
s

s
a

Werking capital assets, other than cash, increased by §2,559. Receivables
increased by 5$2,39€ of which approximately $293 is due to acquisitions and the
remainder to increased sales volumes. Excess of accumulated costs over
related billings increased by $1,00I which is offset by a corresponding
increase in excess of billings over accumulated costs on projects in progress.
ictas receivable decreased by $967 due primarily to payments received in cash
nd common stock on the Fingermatrix loan. The remaining increase in working °
carital assets is due primarily to acquisitions. Working capital liabilities
in-reased by 517,492. Accounts payable and accrued expenses increased
approximately §5,332 of which $687 i1s from acquisitions while the remainder is
due primarily to a build up of slow paying trade accounts payable. Current
porzions of debt and capital lease cbligations increased by $11,114 due
primarily to the scheduled balloon payments due in 1996 on the subordinated
deo:,

L3

—

LR

In January 1996, the Company refinanced a significant portion of the current
subordinated debt that was to be paid in 1996. Such financings consist of a
term loan of 52,000, a revolver loan of 56,000 and the extension cf
approximately $7,600 of subordinated balloon payments from a 1996 due date to
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Item 7. Management's ssion and Analysis of F cial Condition and
Results of Operations C00's except share data

Financial Conditicn :
Liguidicy and Capital Resources (continued)

a 2000 due date. The effects of this refinancing has reduced current debt
from $24,086 to $8,378 and has alleviated a significant portion of the
Company's working capital deficit. However, even after the above financing,
the Company continues to have a working capital deficit of $4,439 on a pro
forma basis as of December 31, 1995. The Company's plans to reduce the
working capital deficit includes attempts to increase the profitability of the
underlying subsidiaries and the continued efforts to sell equity in the non
public subsidiaries via initial public cfferings. The Company currently has a
letter of intent with an underwriter for the sale of cne subsidiary's stock
and in connection therewith, obtained investor financing of $502. There
remains a substantial doubt as to whether any attempted public offerings of
subsidiary stock will be successful and the Company currently has no other
plans if such offerings are not ultimately consummated,

Furthermore, the Company is in default on loans aggregating $1,058 as of
Decenber 31, 1995. $530 of such defaulted debt relates to the late payment of
interest only payments which have been subsequently paid. It is currently not
expected that the lender will demand early payment on the loan which is due in
November of 1997 per the original terms of the financing. The remaining loans
in default of $528 are a result of non payment of principal on the scheduled
due dates. Such defaults have not had, and are not expected to have a
significant impact on the operations of the related segments as the creditors
have not called such loans and are working under extenced repayment terms.
However, if the creditors exercised their right to call the locans in default,
it would have a material adverse impact on the operations of the Company as a
whole and no assurances can be made that such creditors will continue to work

under extended payment terms.
Fesults of Operations

The zonsolidated loss of the Company for the year ended December 311, 1595,
which includes a full year of opera:tions for substantially all of the segments
except Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services was 511,360. Included in the
consolidated loss are noncash expenses cf £7,602 from depreciation and
amcrtization, 56,083 from the exercise of stock options and 5470 from the
write-off of obsclete and slow moving inventory. These non cash expenses are
fgset to a degree by the minority interest loss of 53,724 related to the
srations of a publicly held subsidiary that has reduced the net loss by
.724. While it is expected that the level of depreciation and amortization
1l only decrease nominally in future periods, it is not currently expected
rat noncash expenses from the exercise of stock options will be of a

turring nature.
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cnsolidated revenues, gross profit and selling, general and administrative
expenses for the year ended December 11, 1995 compared to the year ended
December 31, 1994 increased primarily to the fact that subsidiaries acquired
during the year ended 1994 are included for the entire year during 1995 and
cnly a portion of the year in 1994. Consolidated revenues, gross profit and
b=

]

)

ling, general and administrative expenses for the fiscal year ended July
1994 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 increased
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Item 7. Management's Dis on and Analysis of Finangaal Condition and
Results of Operations (in 's except share data)

Results of Operations (continued)

significantly due to the operations of subsidiaries that were not acguired
until after July 31, 1993. The percentage of relative contribution to
revenues, gross profit, and selling general and administrative expenses by
industry segment is shown in the following tables. Changes within the
individual industry segments themselves is discussed further within the
respective industry segment discussions.

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

Segments 1985 1994 1994 1993
Revenues:

Contract Engineering Services 57% 60% 65% 16%
Medical Diagnostics 25% 15% -- -
Electro-Mechanical and

Electro-Optical Products

Manufacturing 4% 9% 22% 80%
Medical Information Services 7% 7% i% i%
Telecommunications 3% 6% 7% --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1% 2% 2% 2%
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2% -- -- -
Business Consulting Services 1% 1% 3% 1%
Gross Profit:

Contract Engineering Services 19% 27% 46% 4%
Medical Diagnostics 59% 43% -= )
Electro-Mechanical and

Electro-Optical Products

Manufacturing 5% 2% 7% as%
Medical Information Services 9% 10% 1% 3%
Telecommunications 3% 10% 13% -
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 3% 5% 6% 5%
Aaudio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 1% -- -- --
Business Consulting Services 1% 3% 27% %
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.Item 7. Management's D ssion and Analysis of F cial Condition and
Results of Operations 000's except share data)

<« Resulrs of Operaticns (continued)
Percentaze of Total

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

Segments 1998 1994 1994 1983
Selling, General and

Administrative Expenses:

Contract Engineering Services 14% 11% 8% (17
Medical Diagnostics 21% 10% -- -
Electro-Mechanical and

Electro-Optical Products

Manufacturing 6% 10% o% 24%
Medical Information Services 13% 13% 5% 9%
Telecommunications 4% 5% 2% -
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 9% 11% 7% 6%
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2% .- - -
Business Consulting Services 1% 4% 3% 7%
Corporate and Other ok 6% 66% 48%

Discussion of Operations by Segment:
Contract Engineering Services:

During the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994,
substantially all of the revenues were from the operations of Trans Global.
Revenues and gross margins for 1995 compared to 1994 increased $37,861 or 150%
and $2,355 or 144%, respectively, due primarily to the acquisition of an
additional subsidiary in this segment in November 1994. Selling, general and
adminiscrative expenses increased by $2,693 or 154% from 1994 to 19%S due

rimarily to the inclusion of a subsidiary acquired in November 1954 which had
selling, general and administrative expense of $3,261 in 1995 and $321 in
1954, Other expenses for 1995 compared to 1954 increased by $866 or 500% as a
result of increased interest expense. The increased interest expense is due
primarily to the inclusion of a subsidiary acquired in November 1994. This
segment finances its payroll obligations by borrowing from a receivable factor.
at an interest rate of 2% in excess of prime in addition to a commission fee
of .3% of the face of the invoice amounts financed.

Fevenues, gross margins and selling, general and administrative expenses were
$10,221, $1,007 and $1,028, respectively for the year ended July 31, 1994.
Revenues, gross margin and selling, general and administrative expenses were
$611, S§51 and $141, respectively, for fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 and were
from Universal, a subsidiary in which the Company no longer includes in
consolidation because a significant portion of the business was sold. Due to
the change in companies operating in this segment, coperating results for the
vears ended July 31, 1994 and 1993 are not comparable.
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Item 7. Management's Dis ion and Analysis of M_nu.\l Condicion and
Results of Operations Ii:.n'l except share data)

Results ¢f Operations (ceontinued)

This segment operates in a highly competitive environment with low margins.
Revenues from the contract engineering services segments is based on the
hourly cost of payroll plus a percentage. The success of the segment is
dependent upon its ability to generate sulficient revenues to enable it to
cover its fixed costs and other operating expenses, and to reduce its variable
costs. Under its agreements with its customers, this segment is required to
pay its employees and pay all applicable Federal and state withholding and
payroll taxes prior to receipt of payment from clients. Furthermore, the
segmenc's payments from its clients are based upon the hourly rate paid to the
employee, without regard to when payroll taxes are payable with respect to

the employees. Accordingly, the segment's cost of service are greater during
the first part of the year, when Federal Social Security taxes and state
unemployment and related taxes, which are based on a specific level of
compensation are due. Thus, until the segment satisfies its payroll tax
obligations, it will have lower gross margins. Management believes that with
this segments current selling, general and administrative structure it can
improve its operating income and generate profitable operations by increasing
revenue. The segment is seeking to reduce its interest costs by negotiating
with other receivable factors. This segment also intends to increase its
equity base through the sale of equity securities which would allow the
segment to reduce its borrowing base. However, there can be no assurance that
the segment can or ever will be able to operate at profitable levels.

Medical Diagnostics:

This segment consists of a medical diagnostic imaging company, which primarily
performs MRI and other diagnostic modalities, that was purchased in September
1994 and as such the prior periods are not comparable to the year ended
December 31, 1995. During 1955, this segment had revenues of $28,044, gross
margins of $12,235 and income from operations of $5,367. During 1994, from
the period of acquisition at September 30, 1994 through December 31, 1994,
this segment had revenues, gross margins and income from cperations of 56,557,
52,661 and $1,036, respectively. Gross margins as a percentage of revenues
increased from 41% in 1994 to 44% in 1995 due primarily to cost containment
efforrts which offset the effects of declining reimbursement rates. Selling,
general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenues remained level
at 25%. During 1995, management of the medical diagnostics segment
implemented a cost reduction plan which included the centralization of billing
and collections operations, renegotiation's with significant vendors and a “
reduction of overall salary and wage levels. This cost reduction plan allowed
the selling, general and administrative expenses to remain level on a
cercentage basis while the volumes of the company increased and the
reimbursement rates decreased. Management anticipates that scan volume will
increase 5% during 1996; however, due to the volatility of reimbursement rates
in the medical industry, there is no assurance that revenues will increase at
the same level. During 1995, interest expense was 52,565 and is expected to
increase during 1996 due to the issuance of additional debt during January of
1596. Overall profitability of the medical diagnostics segment is expected to
remain relatively level for 1996.
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Results of Operations (continued)
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical Products Manufacturing:

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 1995 compared the same period in 1994
increased $618 or 17% and gross margins increased $929 or 780% for the same
periods. The significant increase in gross margins is due to the following:
(i) in 1995 the segment sold product lines with a greater margin percentage,
(ii) in 1995 obsclete inventory write-offs were $100 less than in the pricr
year and (iii) chis segment formed an additional operating entity which
generated gross margins of $82. Selling, general and administrative expenses
increased by $227 or 14% due to the formation of an additional operating
entity in this segment which had operating expense of $216 that did not exist
in the prior year. The operating expenses of the previously existing entities
in this segment remained relatively level from 1995 to 1994. Loss from
operations decreased by $702 or 46% due to the above noted increase in gross
margins and the fact that in 1954 the company wrote-off goodwill of
approximately $285.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 compared to the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1993 increased 5416 or 14% while gross profit decreased 5839
or 84% and profitability decreased $1,380 or 361%, During the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1994 an acquired subsidiary (5-Tech) in this segment became
operational which is the primary reason for the increase in revenues. The
decrease in gross margins is due to the fact that {- Tech had negative 44.0sSSB
margins due primarily to the write-down of obsolete inventories.
Additionally, the previously existing company (Sequential Electronic Systems)
in this segment operated at a lower margin ratio than in the prior comparable
period. 5-Tech's selling, general and administrative expenses, as a
percentage of revenues, were significantly higher than Seguential Electronic
Systems which accounts for the significant increase in such expenditures.

A portion of the revenues in this segment are generated from government sales
and while there exists a possibility that there will be reversals in
government spending cutbacks, it is more likely that defense and military
spending will remain sluggish through 19%6. Management plans to continue
placing more emphasis on sales to the private sector and overall it is
anticipated that revenues and operating profits will remain relatively stable
in this segment.

Medical Information Services:

During June 1994, the Company acquired a subsidiary (CSM) which accounted for
all of the revenues and gross margin in this segment for the year ended
December 31, 1994. Since CSM was not a part of the consolidated operations
until July 1, 1994, the prior periods operating results are not comparable to
those of the year ended December 31, 1995.

During the year ended December 31, 1995 revenues were $7,381. The largest
component of revenue-was 52,000 from the sale of third party hardware and
software., A significant portion of such revenue was related to services
pursuant to a purchase order form the State of Colorado for its Department of
Human Services. Revenues generated from turnkey systems and data center
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Results of Operations (continued)

accounted for $1,800 and §1,700, respectively. Maintenance revenue accounted
for §1,100 and the remainder of the revenue was generated from the CarteSmart
rechnology operations. The gross margin in 1995 was $1,974 which is 27% of
revenues. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $4,247 and
included research and development costs of 5699 and the write-off of deferred
cffering costs of $863. Interest expense amounted to $533 and is expected to
increase in the subseguent years due to additional financings in 1995.

During the year ended December 31, 1954 revenues were $2,925 and included $913
from third party hardware and software sales, $1,000 from turnkey systems and
data center operations, and the remainder from maintenunce revenues. Gross
margins were $601 representing 21% of revenues, and selling, general and
administrative expenses were $2,129 including §367 of research and development
expenses. Interest expense was $245 for the year ended December 31, 1954
which includes on six months of interest since CSM was not acquired until June
1994, During the fiscal years ended July 31, 1954, and 1993 the medical
information services segment consisted of a single development stage
subsidiary anc revenues and gross margins were minimal.

This segment is addressing its continuing losses through the development and
implementation of an integrated marketing plan for both its CarteSmart system
and health information systems and services and the deve . opment of
enhancements to its health information systems and the development and
implementation of a marketing plan directed at the financial services industry
and educational institutions. The segment has obtained its inicial contracts
for its products in both areas with agreements with IBN (financial services)
and Virginia Commonwealth University (educational institution). Furthermore,
it believes that the acgquisition, through a joint venture corporation, of the
SATC Software, and further development of such software will provide it with a
significant product for the financial services industry. However,
nocwithstanding the segment's product development and marketing efforcs,
losses may continue, and no assurance can be given that the segment will be
successful in these efforts.

=_escommunications:

In December of 1993 the Company acqguired ARC Networks which is the only entity
cperating in this segment. During the year ended December 31, 1995 compared
to the year ended December 11, 1994, revenues, gross margins and selling,
gen=ral and administrative expenses increased by $584, $55, and 5416,
recpectively. The increased revenue is attributed to an increased sales force
wh:ch has also increased the selling, general and administrative expenses
which consist primarily of salaries and commissions. This segment operates in
a highly competitive industry at low margins and in order for this segment to
become a viable operating entity, it will need to significantly increase
revenue volume. As of December 31, 1995 management is unable to determine
wnezher this segment will ever operate at a level that is profitable,
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Results of Operations (continued)
Three Dimensional Products and Services:

Revenues and gross profit for the year ended December 31, 1995 compared to the
year ended December 31, 1994 increased 5526 or 105% and $35% or 121%,
respectively, while losses from operations increased $6E7 or 44%. During
November 1994 an additional subsidiary was acquired that operates in this
segment and a full years cperations from such subsidiary accounted for
increases of revenues, gross margin and loss from operations of $226, 518 and
§677, respectively. The remainder of operating increases were primarily a
result of this segment's European operations which had increased operating
activity in Belgium, the United Kingdom and Germany. Selling, general and
administrative expenses increased 51,045 or 57% which reflects this segment's
continued product development COSCS.

Revenues for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 compared to the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1993 increased $212 or 264%, while gross profit and loss from
operations increased $63 or 114% and $657 or 606%, respectively. During the
fiscal years ended July 31, 1994 and 1993 the three dimensional products and
services segment was in the development stage and as such the revenues and
gross margins were minimal while the selling, general and administrative
expenses have been significant and account for the majority of the net
operating losses.

This segment continues to generate significant losses and has been unable to
generate revenues at a volume from any of its products and services sufficient
to cover its ongoing product development costs. During 1996, management is
evaluating the organizational structure of its domestic and overseas
operations and is in the process of formulating a plan to reduce selling,
general and administrative expenses which may include the closure of certain
offices in the United States, as well as Europe, in order to streamline
cperations without significantly impacting the segment's ability to grow
revenues and gross margins. Even in the event that a cost reduction plan is
formalized and implemented, this segment will need a significant infusion of
capital in order to sustain operaticons. Currently, there are no firm
commitments for obtaining such capital. As such, there is substantial doubt
about this segment's ability to continue as an operating entity and it is
doubtful whether this segment will ever become profitable.

AuZi1o0 Visual Manufacturing and Serwv:ices

This segment consists of one operating entity which was acquired in the second
guarter of 1995. As such, the operations reported herein reflect only the
results from the date of acquisition through December 131, 1995 and there are
no prior comparable periods. Since the date of acquisition through December
31, 1995 revenues, gross margins and losses from operations were 52,149, 5202
and $492, respectively. Approximately 75% of this segment's revenue were
generated from domestic sales, approximately 12% were from sales in the far
east and approximately 13% from cother foreign markete. The gross margins as a
percentage of revenues were 9% which is substantially lower than the margins
reguired to operate profitably. Included in direct costs is 570 of inventory
cbsolesence write-offs which represents a 3% incremental decrease in the gross
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Results of Operations (continued)

margins. A significant cause of the low margins relates to idle plant
capacity and an ocutdated production machine. Management is attempting to
obtain financing to purchase a new production machine which would produce
products significantly faster and additionally, reduce the need to purchase
assembly parts from an outside source since the new production machine would
be able to produce such parts on a timely basis. Additionally, the segment
needs to obtain a line of credit to fund current working capital needs as the
segment 's vendors have been extended to the point where parts shipmenis have
been negatively impacted. Selling, general and administrative expenses were
$694 from the date of acquisition through December 31, 1995 and exceed gross
margins by $492. This excess of expenses Over gross margins is a reflection
of the volume problem of this segment. Management believes thact this segment
has a viable and proven product that has been an industry standard since 1940
and with the appropriate financing and capitalization this segment would be
able to produce revenues at a volume that would generate profits and at
December 31, 1995 the segment has a backlog of orders of approximately $350.
However, due to the uncertainties surrounding the ability of the segment to
obtain adequate financing, management is unable to determine at this time
whether the segment will ever be profitable.

Business Consulting Services:

For the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994, revenues and gross margins of
the business consulting operations were not significant which is consistent
with management's decision to concentrate time and resources managing internmal
operations of the preexisting and newly acquired companies. Selling, general
and administrative expenses were also not significant for the year ended
December 31, 1995 but amounted to $623 for the year ended December 31, 1994
which is a factor of the significant acquisition activity that occurred during
1994. Income from operations for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 compared
to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 increased 226%. During the fiscal year
ended July 31, 1993, consulting fee revenue was minimal and during the fiscal
vear ended July 31, 1994 the selling, general and administrative expenses did
not increase at the same rate as revenues, which accounts for the significant
percentage increase in profitability. During 1996, management anticipates that
consulting revenues and related expenses will not be a significant portion of
the Company's coperations.

Corporate and Other:

Seiling, general and administrative expenses increased by $3,470 or 56% from
S¢,192 for the year ended December 31, 1994 to $9,662 for the year ended
December 31, 1995. Included in the selling, general and administrative
expenses is noncash consulting fee expenses incurred upon the issuance of non
employee directors and consultants stock options of $6,083 and $4,140,
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 199%4. The remaining
increases are due primarily to increased legal and accounting fees to outside
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JResults of Operations (continued)

firms, increased financial support staff and increased outside consulting
fees. Such increases were necessitated by the acquisition activity during the

related periods.

Selling, general and administrative expense for the fiscal year ended July 31,
1994 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 increased 573%. The most
significant portion of this increase is $7,140 of noncash consulting fee
expenses incurred upon the issuance of non employee directors and consultants
stock options. Additionally, costs were incurred as a part of acquiring and
managing the new subsidiaries purchased since July 31, 1993.

During 1996, it is anticipated that corporate selling, general and
administrative expense levels will be a factor of the activity of additional
acquisitions and capitalization activities which cannot be quantified on a

prospective basis.

Discussion of Other Significant Financial Line Items:

Interest Expense:

For the year ended December 31, 1995 compared to the year ended December 31,
1994, interest expense increased $2,863 or 235%, and for the fiscal year ended
July 31, 1954 compared to the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 increased $261
or 114%. The increased interest expense for both comparable periods is due to
the issuance of debt instruments in connection with the acquisition of
International Magnetic Imaging, Inc. and affiliated entities, ("IMI"). During
the years ended December 31, 1955 and 1994, interest expinse related to IMI
was 52,565 and $703, respectively. The significant increase is due to the
fact that IMI was not acquired until September 1994 and as such the interest
expense for the year ended December 31, 1954 reflects only three months of
interest expense,.

Gain (Loss) from Security Sales:

During the year ended December 31, 1995, losses on investment activity were
ncminal. For the year ended December 11, 1995 the loss on sales of securities
ccnsisted primarily of the recogn:tion ¢f investments that were determined to
have a permanent decline in market value and as such, the decline was
recognized in that periocd and is no longer included in the unrealized loss
Srom marketable securities in the equity section of the balance sheet.

wuring the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, losses on investment activity were
ncminal. During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the Company had a
significant gain on the sale of a company's stock that was held for investment
purposes,

Security sales vary from period to periocd based on, among other things, market
activity and cash needs, and management cannot estimate the amount of future
security sales gains or losses, if any, that will be generated from such
transactions.
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Unusual Item:

For the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the unusual item consists of income
of 51,522,878 related to the settlement of a lawsuit and a gain on the
repurchase of the assets of a subsidiary. See further discussion of this item
in the footnotes to the financial statements.

Income Taxes:

The Company's provision for income taxes were (1.5%), (0.06%), 0%, and 4% of
income before taxes for the years ended December 31, 1595 and 19%4 and July
31, 1994 and 1993, respectively. The Company will have a net operating loss
carryforward of approximately $44,882. The net operating loss carryforwards
expire beginning in 1996 through 2010. Investment tax credit and job tax
credit carryforwards of approximately $105 are available to reduce future
income taxes. These credits expire beginning in various years.through 1999,
These credits have been reduced to reflect changes made by the "Tax Reform Act
of 1986". See Note 12 To the Financial Statements.

Impact cf Inflation:

The Company is subject to normal inflationary trends and anticipates that any
increased costs would be passed on to its customers.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary data begin on page F-1 of this Form
10-K.

Item 9. Changes and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

None
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Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Setr forth below is information concerning the executive officers of the
registrant.

Name Age Position

Lewis S. Schilller 65 Chairman of the Board, President,
and Chief Executive Cf{ficer

George W. Mahoney a5 Chief Financial Off:.cer

Norman J. Hoskin 61 Director

Grazyna B. Wnuk 32 Secretary

Mr. Schiller has been the Registrant's chief executive officer for more than
the past five years. Mr, Schiller also serves as a senior executive officer
of the Registrant's subsidiaries. On December 11, 1988, Mr. Schiller was
elected as chairman and chief executive and financi.l officer of General
Technologies Group, Ltd. ("GTG"), a corporation in which Consolidated was a
stockholder and a major creditor.

Mr. Mahoney has been chief financial officer of Registrant since October 1994.
From December 1991 until September 1994, Mr. Mahoney was chief financial
officer of IMI and IMI's affiliated entities. Consolidated acquired the
assets of IMI and certain of its affiliated entities during 1994. From April
to December 1991, he was chief financial officer of labor World USA, Inc., a
labor leasing company, and for more than three years prior thereto, he was
chief financial officer of Guardian Bank.

Mr. Hoskin has been a director of the Registrant since September 1992. He is
the former chairman of Republic Holdings Corporation of West Palm Beach,
Florida and chairman of Executive Express Travel of New York, NY since 1989.
He has previously served as the founder and president of Hoskin Leasing, Inc.,
chairman of Potomac Financial Egquities, Inc., chairman cof CSB/First Florida
Leasing, Inc., as president of Naticnal Bank of Florida Corporation, and as
senior vice president of Rentar Industries Group, Inc., the parent company of
Emery Freight Systems and Interstate Truck Lines. He is also a director of
Trinitech Systems, Inc., a company which markets communications and related
products principally to the banking and securities industries.

Ms. Wnuk has been the secretary of the registrant since 1991. Prior thereto
ne served as a secretary for the registrant and as a sales associate in

s
Eloomingdales in New York City.

0fficers are elected by, and serve at the pleasure of, the board of directors.
Fursuant to an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994, the Company has
agreed to employ Mr, Schiller as its chief executive during the term of the
agreement, which continues until December 31, 2000. Pursuant to an employment
acreement dated October 1, 1994 and superseded by an agreement dated March 21,
1495, the Company has agreed to employ Mr. Mahoney as its chief financial
officer during the term of the agreement, which continues until December 31,
1959, .
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Item 11. Executive C tion . .
{in 000's except share

Set forth below is information concerning the Registrant's chief executive
officer and chief financial officer of the Registrant who are the only
executive officers of the Registrant who received or accrued compensation from
the Registrant and its subsidiaries in excess of $100 (on an annualized basis)
during the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and the fiscal years ended

July 31, 1994 and 1593.
Summary Compensation Table (in 000's except share data) :

Annual
Compensation Awards Payouts
Securi-
ties
Restr- Under-
icted lying
Name and Principal Stock Options/ LTIP
Position Salary Bonus Awards SARs (#) Payouts
Year Ended December 131,
1995:
Lewis S. Schiller, CEO[1] § 250 - -- -- -
mEEEE
George W. Mahoney, CFO[2] § 177 $ 36 -- - .
EsEES mEEoEEE
Year Ended December 131,
1994:
Lewis S§. Schiller, CEO[1] § 199 .- i o= {3} .
EEEEE
George W. Mahoney, CFO(2] $-. 50 750,000([4] --
EEESE EEEEEEE

Year Ended July 31, 1954:
Lewis S§. Schiller, CEQC[1] $ 182 -- -- == --

Year Ended July 31, 1993:
Lewis S. Schiller, CEO[1) $ 175 - -e - .

1] Mr. Schiller has an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994 with the
Company pursuant to which it employs him as chief executive officer through
December 31, 1938 at an annual salary of $250, subject to an annual cost of
<iving increase. Mr. Schiller is also entitled to a bonus equal to 10% of the
Company's consolidated income before income taxes in excess of $250. No bonus
was payable for the year ended December 31, 1995. The Company also granted to
Mr. Schiller a five-year option to acquire 10% of the Company's securities
portfolio at 110% of the Company's cost.

L]
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(in 000's except share a)

. [2] Mr. Mahoney has an employment agreement dated Octcber i, 1994, and
superseded by an agreement dated March 21, 1995, with the Registrant pursuant
to which it employs him as chief financial officer through December 31, 1959
Mr. Mahoney will receive a base salary of §$165, $177, §189, $202 and $220 for
the years ending December 31, 1995, 1996, 1997, 1998 and 1999, respectively.
Additionally, Mr. Mahoney shall also receive incentive compensation equal to
the greater of one percent of the net pretax profits or net cash flow of the
Registrant, plus the greater of one percent of the net precax profit or net
cash flow of IMI (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Registrant), subject to a
maximum of twice Mr. Mahoney's base salary for the respective year.

[3] Pursuant to a stock purchase plan dated December 15, 1994, Mr. Schiller
received the right to purchase 2,500,000 unregistered shares at the fair
market value on that date (5.50 per share). Mr. Schiller did not exercise his
right to purchase such shares and such rights have expired as of December 31,

19895.

{4]) On December 15, 1994, Mr. Mahoney received options to purchase 750,000
shares of unregistered stock at an exercise price of $.50 per share (the fair
market value on that date).

Option Table:
Potential
Realized
Value
at Assumed
Annual
Rates of
Individual Grants Stock Price
------------------------------------------- Appreciation
% of Total for
Options Exercise Expira- Option Term
Number of Granted to Price piration -------=----
Name Securities Employees (§/5h) Date 5% 10%
Seocrge W. Mahoney 750,000 43% $0.50 12/14/98 5§19 $3i8
EEETEE®E oW L 2 3 B =En mm

1lo other officers or directors have employment agreements with the Registrant.

e pfficers or directors hold options to purchase any of the Registrant's
common stock.
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Item 12. Security Owners of Certain Beneficial o;.u and Management

No person or group known to the Registrant owns 5% or more of any of the
Registrant's voting securities as of April 10, 1996, except as set forth below
with respect to the Registrant's Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock (Series A Preferred Stock). No officers or directors of the Registrant
own any of the Registrant's Common Stock as of April 25, 1995. The following
table sets forth, as of April 10, 1996, the number and percentage of rights to
shares of outstanding Common Stock owned by each person owning at least 5% of
the Registrant's Series A Preferred Stock, each director owning stock and all
directors and officers as a group:

Amount and Nature of

Name and Address(1) Beneficial Ownership(2] Percent of Series
Lewis S. Schiller 4,480 5.8%
Norman J. Hoskin 1,280 1.7%
Joel M. Brown 1,536 2.0%

All officers and directors
as a group (four
individuals owning stock) 11,520 14.8%

(1] - The address of each person is c/o Consclidated Technology Group Ltd.,
160 Broadway, New York, NY 10038.

(2] - Each person named has the sole voting and sole investment power and has
direct beneficial ownership of the shares.

Item 13. Certain relationships and Related Transactions
Loan Receivable from an Officer of a Subsidiary:

During the year ended December 31, 1995 a subsidiary of the Company loaned $45
to the chief executive officer of such subsidiary. The loan has no fixed due
dates or terms.

Loan Receivable from Sale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer:

During 1995, the chief executive officer of the Company exercised an option to
purchase common stock investments held by the Company at 110% of the book
value of such investments. The purchase of such investments was consummated
in a noncash transaction and such cfficer has issued a note in favor of the
Company with interest at 9% and said note matures five years from the date of
the purchase. Total amounts outstanding under such receivables was $72 at
December 31, 1995. The gain realized by the Company on the sale of these
investments approximated £7.

in February 1996, a subsidiary of the Company lcaned $300 to an officer of the

subsidiary. The principal is due in 1998 and requires interest only payments
at a rate of 5.5%, payable annually.
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, PART 1V "' ".
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Scatement Schedules, and Reports on Form E-K

1. Financial Statements

F-1 Report of Mortenson and Associates, P.C. Independent Certified
Accountants

F-2 & F-3 Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 1995 and 1954

F-4 Consolidated Sctatements of Operations for the Years Ended

December 31, 1995 and 1954 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
F-5 - F-8 Consclidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the
Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994
and 1993
F-9 - F-13 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 2994 and 1993
F-14- F-58 Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules
None

3. Reports on Form 8-K

None
4. Exhibits
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation(l]
3.2 By-laws([1]
10.1 Agreements relating to the acquisition and financing of International

Magnetic Imaging, Inc. and its affiliated companies. (2]

10.2 Plan and agreement of reorganization dated as of April 13, 1994 by and
among the Registrant, CSM Acgquisition Corp., Carte medical Corporation,
Creative Socio-Medics Corp. and Advanced Computer Techniques, Inc., as
amended. [3]

Agreement dated December 2, 19%3, among Registrant, S5I8 Capital Corp..
SES Holdings Corp., Arc Acquisition Group, Inc. and the stockholders of
Arc Acquisition Group, Inc. [4]

-
(=]
Lan

10.4 Agreement dated December 2, 1%%3 among the Registrant, SIS Capital
Corp., Arc Networks, Inc., Joseph G. Sicinski and Peter F,
Parrinello. [4]

10.5 Employment agreement dated March 21, 1995, between the Registrant and

George W. Mahoney. [6]

i0.6 Employment agreement dated October 1, 19594, between the Registrant and
Lewis S. Schiller. [6]

10.7 Agreement dated as of March 31, 19%5 among SIS Capital Corp., DLB, Inc.,
Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept Technologies Group, Inc., including
exhibits and disclosure letcers. [5)

11.1 Calculation of earnings per share
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of Registran:.
27 Financial Data Schedule. [7])

%.1 Stock Purchase Agreement. [6]
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Item 14. Exhibits, Pinnr.ul Statement Schedules, .‘Rapart- on Form B-K.;
(continued)

(1]
(2]
(3]
(4]
(5]
(6]
(7]

Filed as an exhibit to the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended July 31, 1994 and incorporated herein by reference.
Included as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form 8-K, as amended,

dated July 19, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.
Included as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form 8-K, as amended,
dated June 16, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.
Included as exhibits to the Registrant's report on Form 8-K, dated
December 22, 1993, and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed as exhibit to the Company's report on Form 8-K, dated April 19,
1995, and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed as an exhibit to the Company's annual report on Form 10-K for the
five month transition period from August 1, 1994 to December 31, 1994.
File only to the SEC in electronic format.

........................................
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. REPORT OF INDEPENDENT f"IFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS .

To the Board of Directors and Sctockholders
Consolidated Technology Group, Ltd.
New Yor%k, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Consoclidated Technology Group, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31,
1995 and 1994 and the related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the two years ended December
31, 1995 and each of the two fiscal years ended July 31, 1994. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. OQur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the consclidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
consoclidated financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluatiag the overall consolidated financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Consolidated Technology Group, Ltd. and its subsidiarien as of December 31,
1995 and 1994, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
each of the two years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and each of the two
fiscal years in the period ended July 31, 1994, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in the financial
statements, the Company incurred a net loss of 511,360,000 for the year ended
December 31, 1995, and has an accumulated deficit to that date of $40,648,000.
These conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters
are also described in Note 2. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this

uncertainty

.................. - = w e =

MORTENSON AND ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Certified Public Accountants

Cranford, New Jersey
March 27, 199¢




Consolidated Technology G Ltd. and Subsidiaries .

Consolidated Balance Shee

{in 000's)
December 31,
1995 1994
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash egquivalents § 1,636 $ 1,727
Receivables, net of allowances 19,216 16,820
Inventories 3,701 3,466
Loans receivable 396 1,383
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 436 412
Excess of accumulated costs
over related billings 1,002 ==
Investments in common stock 20 151
Total current assets 26,407 23,939
Property, plant and equipment, net 11,034 12,911
Other assets:
Capitalized software development cOSts 502 1,064
Goodwill, net 11,881 12,623
Covenant not to compete, net 2,168 3,451
Customer lists, net 11,684 12,770
Deferred offering costs -- 331
Receivables, long-term 219 e
Receivables, related parties 544 160
Trademark, net 383 --
Investments in common stock, long-term 405 384
Other Assets 1,085 456
Total other assets 28,871 31,239
Total Assets 566,312 568,089

EEEesEE

Se€ notes to consolidated financial statements.
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See notes to consclidated financial statements.
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, Consolidated Technol oup Ltd. and Suhlidilrie'
Consolidated Balance S 8
(in 000's)
December 31,
1985 1954
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $11,095 $ 6,741
Accrued payroll and related expenses 2,332 1,77
Accrued interest 284 113
State taxes payable 269 20
Excess of billings over accumulated
coSts 1,701 65%
Notes payable, related parties 290 183
Current portion of long-term debt 5,080 8,096
Current portion of subordinated debt 13,1354 3,437
Current portion of capitalized
lease obligations 1,362 1,256
Total current liabilities 39,767 22,278
Long-term liabilities:
Long-term debt 6,210 8,512
Capitalized lease obligations 2,198 2,671
Subordinated debt 5,003 17,926
Total long-term liabilities 13,412 29,109
Commitments and contingencies
Minority interest 2,087 -=
Sharehoclders' Equity:
Preferred stock 70 Bl
Additional paid-in capital,
preferred stock 266 311
Common stock (50,000,000 shares
authorized, 26,655,071 and 17,577,260
shares issued and outstanding as of
December 31, 1995 and 1994,
respectively) 267 176
~dditional paid-in capital, common stock 51,020 45,597
Accumulated deficit (40,648) (29,288)
Unrealized loss on exchange translation {17) (33}
Het unrealized gain (loss) cn long-
term investments in commnon stock BS (139)
Total shareholders' equity 11,047 16,705
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Egquity 566,312 £68,089




Consolidated Technology
Consolidated Statement ©
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31.
(in 000's except per share data)

Ltd. and Subsidiaries
rations for the Years E’d
1994 and 199

Year Ended Fiscal Ynnr Ended
December 31, July 31,
1995 1994 1991 1993
Revenues $110,097 $41,578 §15, 742 $ 3,839
Direct COSCS 89,175 35,428 13,560 2,664
Gross profic 20,922 6,150 2,182 1,175
Selling, general
and administrative 32.034 16,614 12,748 2,578
Income (Loss) from operations (11. 112] {(10,464) (10, 566) (1,403)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense (4,084) (1,221) (4590) (229)
Other income (expense) 373 448 69 (46)
Gain (loss) from security sales (35) (299) 13 694
Unusual items - -- -- 1,523
Total other income (expense) (3,748) (1,072) (408) 1,942
Income (Loss) before income
taxes and minority interest (14,858) {11,536) (10,974) 538
Income Taxes (226) (24) -- (21)
Minority Interest in Loss
of Subsidiaries 1,724 132 202 76
Income (loss) before
extraordinary item (11,360) (11,428} (10,772) 594
Extraordinary Icem = -- .- 146
et Income (Loss) (S11,360) (511,428) ($10,772) § 740
EEEEEED EEEEAE EEEEEES EaEESEE
Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Income (loss) before
extraordinary icem {50.51) ($0.80) (§1.35) $0.14
Extraordinary item - -- -e 0.04
Net income (loss) per share (§0.51) ($0.80) ($1.35) $0.18
EEEEEEE EEEEES ESEEREE aEEEEEE

Weighted average number of
common shares
EssEzEEERE®

22,423,035 14,205,789

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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consolidated Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994
and July 231, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)
Year Ended December 11, July 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993
Shares Amounts Shares Amounts Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
Preferred stock, $1.00
par value, 6% Series .
A 77,713 shares
authorized:
Beginning balance 77,713 § 78 77,713  § 78 77,713 $ 78 - —
Issuance of Series A - - — = —— 77,713 § 78
Conversion of Series A (11,117) (11) e - -- - e =
Ending balance 66,596 § 67 77,713  $ 78 77,713 § 78 77,713 § 78
e e e e e e e e w e il E 4.4 2 8 8 % & 4 % | -s_J_ 1 % 3 ] -4 4-32 3 % & % &-1 3 EEmEEEE EESTETOWESSES L& F & 4 § |
Preferred stock, $1.00
par value, $3.50 and
$.10 Series B & E B,000
shares authorized each:
Beginning balance 262 $ 1 262 § 1 262 S 1 262
TSI . 3. 4-F -8 3.} .23 ¢t 3 7T ¢ T ;1 - 33§ -0-] 3 3¢ = & & 3.4} [ & & & & 1 ] TR ST ey s
Ending balance 262 % 1 262 § 1 262 § 1 262
-85 5 & § 4 53 -1 T EETETEREE L = & 2 £ b s+ % & 7 r & 7 3-] EESEES o omOOE .
Preferred stock, 51.00
par value, $8.00 sub-
ordinated Series F,
6,000 shares authorized: >
Beginning balance 2,700 $§ 2 2,700 % 2 2,700 § 2 2,700 § 2
R+ 4 & 4 1 & & -+ | mEEmEe |=EEEETTEEET ====mE= LA L 1 | &} & 3 ¢+ p-4_& _F-4 3 4 Lt 334 33 3 31 EETEE
Ending balance 2,700 $§ 2 2,700 $ 2 2,700 S 2 2,700 $ 2
Total preferred
stock - par 69,558 $ 70 80,675 $ 81 80,675 § 81 80,675 S 81
(cont inued)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




‘onsolidated Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries
‘'onsolidated Statements of Shareholders'
and July 31, 1994 and 1993

{in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

e ——— "

1995 1994
Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
Additional paid-in
capital, preferred
stock:
jeginning balance S 311 s 311
[ssuance of Series A -- -
onversion of Series A (45) --
inding balance $ 266 % 311
P 1-% &+ 3 EEEEE.

lommon stock, $0.01
par value,
50,000,000 shares
authorized:

jeginning balance 17,577,260 $ 176 6,574,260 § 66
[ssuance for offerings 1,000,000 10 3,500,000 a5
[ssuance for
acquisitions - - 5,803,000 58
[ssuanca f5r exercise
of stock options 6,500,000 65 1,500,000 15
issuance of stock in
lieu of cash payment
for services rendered 130,004 1 200,000 2
‘onversion of Series A 1,447,807 15 - -
inding balance 26,655,071 § 267 17,577,260 § 176

EEEEES TR SEEEmE - A= -
jee notes to consolidated financial statements.

F=6

Equity for the Years Ended December 11,

1995 and 1994

July 31,

1994 1993

Shares Amounts Shares Amounts
S J11
— $

$ 311 $ 311
T TEEXE
4,224,260 § 42 4,224,260 § 42
1,810,000 18 - -
3,000,000 30 - .--
12,534,260 § 125 4,224,260 § 42

1Y E 3 1 F ¢ 1. 1 e L R b ¢ 8 3 0 1 % ]

{cont inued)




Cénsolidatad Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994

and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,

B e e e e T TS ———

1995 1994
Shares Amounts Shares

Additional paid-in

capital, common stock:

Beginning balance 545,598
Issuance for offerings 240
Issuance for

acquisitions -
Issuance for exercise

of stock options 5,029
Issuance of stock in

lieu of cash payment

for services rendered 112
Conversion of Series A 41
Ending balance $51,020

=3 8 & =7 1
Accumulated deficit:
Beginning balance ($29,288)
Net loss (11,360)
Ending balance ($40,648)
S EEoren

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$23,1369
8,330

6,678

7,125

$45,597

Eemama

($17,860)
(11,428)

e ——

($29,288)

July 31,

1994

. s . 7

Shares

Amounts

$16,752
8,330

4,938

11,710

941,731

($14,030)
(10,772)

($24,802)

$16,753

($14,770)
740

($1IW, 030)

(continued)




:énsolidated Technology Group Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 1995 and 1994

and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Year Ended December 11,

1995 1994
Shares hmounts Shares Amounts
Yet unrealized gain
(loss) on long-term
investments in
common stock:
jeginning balance (s 119) ($§ 270)
lecognized investment
security (gains)
losses 228 131
Ending balance ] B9 (s 139)
-2 & &3 & J T
Jnrealized Exchange
Translation:
deginning balance (33) -
2ecognized investment
security (gains)
loasses 16 (33)
Znding balance (17) (33)
[~ 1 T T 1 3 4.2 & ¢ F )
rotal shareholders' equity $11,047 $16,705
= T mECEEE

5ee notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-8

—— =

$17,061

|

——— ==

$ 3,079

IS EEETEE

(concluded)




. Consolidated Tachnnlog*'mrp Ltd. and aummuri-!mu
. Consolidated Statement Cash Flows for the Years

December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

- - - =

-

1955 1994

eEEEE-- 200000 20 2 mES e

Cash Flows from Operating
Activities:
Income (loss) before

extraordinary item I$11 428)

($11,360)
Adjustments to reconcile net
loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Minority interest in loss of
consolidated subsidiaries
Write-off goodwill
Write-off inventory
Baa debt expense
Noncash expenses paid with
the issuance of stock
Noncash expenses paid with the
issuance of a sidiary's stock
Deferred charges on option
exercise
Deferred charges on option
exercise of a subsidiary
Additional compensation
Unusual item
Extraordinary item
Write-down fixed assets
to fair value
Write-off of loans receivable
(Gain) loss on sale of common
stock investments
Loss on sale of fixed assets
Change in current assets
and current liabilities:
{(Increase) decrease in
in current assets:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets
Excess of accumulated costs
over billings

7,602
(3,724)

470
1,225

114
11

-

3,869 4,140

135

2,214

225
2B0

299

s
60

(3,301}
107

(1,900)
482

{10) 569

(1,002) -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-9

July 31

1994 1993
($10,772) §$ 594
290 40
(202) (75)
23 68
7,140 --
135 --
-- {1,523)
-- 146
225 --
27% 562
(13) {694)
(2,747) 52
460 (57)
(388) {107)

(continued)




Consolidated Technology Ltd. and Subsidiaries :gd
Consolidated Statement o h Flows for the Years

December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1933
(in 000's except per share data)

- .=

——— T L&

Fiscal Year Ended

Year Ended
December 31,
1985 1994
Adjustments to reconcile net
loss to net cash provided by
operating activities
(continued) :
Increase (Decrease) in
current liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses 3,666 2,263
Accrued jrayroll and
related expenses 558 (968)
Accrued interest 172 (632)
Income taxes payable 249 (7)
Interim billings in excess
of costs and estimated
profits 1,046 (90)
Total adjustments 13,359 7,766
Net cash provided by (used)
in operating activities 1,999 (3,662)
Cash Flows from Investing
Activities:
{Increase) decrease in
other assets (464) (667)
Capital expenditures (684) {2,150)
Proceeds from sale of
fixed assets 220 -
Capitalized software
development cCOStS {20} (337)
Investments in common stock (7) (392)
Proceeds from sale of common
stock investments 530 45
acquisiction of subsidiary (963 (B,358)
Cash of company acquired 504 2,422
Cash of company sold -- (6)
Cash escrow .- --
Payments for loans made (3,022} {(1,493)
Ccllections from repayment
cf loans made 3,223 106
Net cash used in
investing activitcies {703) (10,830)

-

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-10

July 31,

1994 1953
&80 103
(8Be8) 36l
(1B4) 76

(5) 25

4,825 (1,023)

(5,947) ( 429)
(795) o
(205} (60)
(581) (404}
{658) {95)
195 749
(500) -
145 4

(6) --
{(2,000) --
(1,194) (320)

-- 31
(5,599) (65)

{continued)




»Consolidated t-chmmgy’wp Ltd. and Subsidisrie
. Consolidated Statement o Cash Flows fOr the Years ed

December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
*(in 000's except per share data)

- e e o = = o

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,
1955 1994 1994 1993
Cash Flows from Financing
Activities:
Deferred offering costs (129) (331) (171) -
Net advances from factor 367 550 1,936 .=
Proceeds from issuance
of long-term debt 1,297 7,169 605 752
Repayment of long-term debt (6,909) (2,452) (1,976) (644)
Payments on capital leases (1,194) (165) (8) (3)
Issuance of preferred stock .= b .= 40
Issuance of common stock 250 8,161 8,161 --
Issuance of a subsidiary's
common stock 2,990 -- -- --
Exercise of stock options 1,225 3,000 4,600 --
Exercise of subsidiary
stock options 716 -- - --
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities {1,387) 15,932 13,147 145
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Cash and Cash Equivalents (91) 1,440 1,599 (349)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at
Baginning of Period 1,727 287 174 523
Cash and Cash Egquivalents at
End of Period $§ 1,636 £ 1,727 51,773 s 174
EEEEEE EEEEEE EsEEEE EzE=EES
Supplemental Disclosures of
Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest $ 3,912 § 1,062 s 116 S 143
EEERES [ £ 3 T & ¥ | [ § ¥ & 5 7 BEEREE T
Cash paid for income taxes S sk -- = 5 1
EEEEEN FT T E T T EEEEEE EEEEES
(concluded)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-11
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Consolidated Technology Ltd. and -suu-mmuh’d
Consolidared Statement of sh Flows for the Years

December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993
(in 000's except per share data)

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Finlnciqg Activities:

During the year ended December 31, 1995, the Company:

(1) Acquired equipment under capital lease obligations with a net present
value of §817.

(2) Received common stock in lieu of cash payments for notes receivable and
accrued interest receivable with a book value of $§217.

(3) Pursuant to an acquisition of another entity by one of the Company's
subsidiaries, in a transaction accounted for as a reverse merger:
(a) Reduced the Company's equity ownership in such subsidiary which

resulted in an increase in minority interest of $5,811.

(b) Acquired net assets with a book value of $983.

(4) 1Issued stock with a discounted value of $114 in lieu of cash payment for
services rendered. ‘

(5) Incurred $3,869 in noncash expense from the issuance and exercise of

6,500,000 stock options

During the year ended December 31, 1994, the Company:

(1) Purchased equipment in the amount of $185 and assumed capital lease
obligations for $137 and notes payable for $48.

(2) Acquired capitalized software costs in the amount of $150 and assumed
notes payable for the full amount.

(3) Acquired equipment in the amount of $35 and assumed notes payable for the
full amount.

(4) Acquired a covenant not to compete in the amount of $800 and assumed
notes payable for the full amount.

(5) Acquired Creative Socio-Medics and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximating $530. )

(6) Acquired International Magnetic Imaging and in connection therewith
assumed subordinated debt approximating $1!,800, long-term debt
approximating $12,000, capital lease obligations approximating $3,700
and issued stock with a value of 52,920. ‘

(7) Acquired Job Shop Technical Services and Computer Engineering Services
and in connection therewith assumed subordinated debt approximating
$1,500, long-term debt approximaring $2,600 and issued stock with a
value of $500.

{€) Issued stock with a discounted value of $97 in lieu of cash payment for
services rendered.

(%) Incurred $4,140 in noncash expense from the issuance and exercise of
1,500,000 stock options

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, the Company:

{1 Purchased capital assets in the amount of $49 and assumed notes payable
for the full amount.

(2] Acquired ARC Acquisition Corp. and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximating $1,400.

(3] Acguired Creative Socio-Medics and in connection therewith assumed
long-term debt approximating $530.

(«) Incurred $7,140 in noncash expense from the issuance and exercise of
3,000,000 options.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-12




»Consolidated Technology Ltd. and Suhsidiuina
. Consolidated Statement Cash Flows for the Years ed
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1593

*(in 000's except per share data)

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing
Activities (continued): .

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the Company:

(1) Purchased capital assets in the amount of $48 and assumed capital lease
obligations for the full amount.

(2) Procured insurance coverage valued at $20 and assumed debt for the full
amounc.

(3) Through its subsidiary, S-Tech, purchased certain assets of General
Technologies Group, Ltd. which resulted in a one time gain of §$1,523.

(4) Converted debt in the amount of $349 into 69,711 shares of Series A
preferred stock.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-13




Consolidated Technology m Ltd. and subsidiaries {
Notes to Consolidated Fi al Statements
(in 000's, except per share data)

A S W S R R -

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

General - Effective September 1, 1993, the ny's name was changed from
Sequential Information Systems, Inc. to Consol dated Technology Group Ltd.

Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying consolidated financial
statements include the accounts of the Company and all of its majority-owned
subsidiaries. Investments in 20% to 50% owned companies are accounted for on
the equity method. All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated.

Accounting Period - Effective December 31, 1994, the Company changed to a
calendar year. Prior to 1994 the Company utilized a fiscal year ending July
11 of each year. The accompanying financial statements include balance sheets
for the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and statements af operations,
cash flows and changes in stockholder's equity for the years ended December
31, 1995 ard 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1593.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly ligquid
instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash
equivalents. International Magnetic Imaging, Inc. ("IMI"), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has cash balances of $1,412 and $1,471 at December
31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, which represents 86% and 85% of total cash
for the same respective periods. The use of IMI's cash is restricted pursuant
te an IMI financing agreement with a creditor, whereby IMI may not make
payments out of the ordinary course of IMI operations and specifically, not to
the parent company, (Consolidated), or any subsidiary or affiliate.

Inventories - Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost 1is
decermined by the first-in, first out method with the exception of the audio
visual manufacturing and services segment which values inventory a standard
which approximates first-in, first out, Costs accumulated under government
contracts are net of progress payments.

property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment are carried at
cost less allowances for accumulated depreciation. The cost of furniture and
eguipment held under capital leases is equal to the lower of the net present
vzlue of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased property
az the inception of the lease. Depreciation is computed generally by the
c:raight-line method at rates adeguate to allocate the cost of applicable

ers over their expected useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized
r periods not in excess of applicable lease terms. Amortization of

zsearch and Development - The Company's research and product development

aczivities are conducted by the Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
nufacturing and Services, Medical Services, Audio Visual Manufacturing and

+ices and Three Dimensional Products and Services segments. The Company's

earch and development expenses for the years ended December 31, 1995 and

4 and July 31, 1994 and 1993 approximated $893, 54,842, §1,902 and 5396,

pectively. All of the Company's research and development activities were

W wOm
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sConsclidated Technology p, Ltd. and Subsidiari
Notes to Consolidated F cial Statements
(in 000's, except per share data)

R L Lk e - - - - - e

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

performed by the subsidiaries and were company financed. * Research and
development costs are expensed as incurred.

Capitalized Software Development Costs - Capitalization of computer software
development costs begins upon the establishment of technological feasibilicty.
Technological feasibility for the Company's computer software products is
generally based upon achievement of a detail program design free of high risk
development issues. The establishment of technological feasibility and the
ongoing assessment of recoverability of capitalized computer software
development cOStS requires considerable judgment by management with respect to
certain external factors, including, but not limited to, technological
feasibility, anticipated future gross revenues, estimated economic life and
changes in software and hardware technology.

Amortization of capitalized software development costs commences when the
related products become available for general release to customers.
Amortization is provided on a product by product basis using the straight-line
method over the estimated economic life of the product, estimated to be
approximately 2-3 years. Research and development costs incurred to establish
technological feasibility are expensed as incurred. Accumulated amortization
was $B45 and $262 at December 31, 1995 and 1994 ,respectively. For the years
ended December 31, 19595 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 an¢ 1993, amortization of
capitalized software development costs approximated $582, $262, §13, and $0,
respectively.

Intangible Assets - Intangible assets consist of goodwill, covenants not to
compete, customer lists and trademarks. The Financial Accounting Standards
Board has issued Statement 121 addressing the accounting for the impairment of
long-lived assets that will be held and used, including certain identifiable
intangibles, and the goodwill related to those assets. The statement is
effective for calendar-year 1996 financial statements.

oodwill - Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of companies acquired
over the fair value of their net assets at dates of acquisition and is being
amortized over a twenty year period on the straight-line method. Management

-f the Company evaluates the period cf goodwill amortization to determine
wherher latter events and circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful .
_ives. This evaluation is done by comparing the carrying value of goodwill to’
-he value of projected discounted net cash flows from related operations.
Impairment is recognized if the carry:ng value of goodwill is greater than the

crojected discounted cash flows from related operations.

“ovenants Not to Compete - The capitalized value of covenants not to compete
are being amortized on the straight-li:ne basis over their contractual lives
which range from three to five ‘ears

~ustomer Lists - Customer lLists are being amortized over twelve to fifteen
+ears on the straight-line basis.

F-~15




Consolidated nuhnnogr m Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Pindficial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)

---------------------------- e T e R R Bl

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trademark - The trademark, which was acgquired as a part of a reverse merger in
May 1995, relates to the Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services segment and
has a cost basis of $429 which represents the net present value of the
payments for such trademark at the time it was acquired. This trademark gives
the Company a nonexclusive trademark license for use of the "Klipsch" name for
use with various professional loudspeaker products provided that the trademark
is used only in connection with professional grade speakers. The Xiipsch name
and related speakers were developed in the 1940's and is an established name
as a leader in loudspeaker design and innovation. The Company believes that
the acquisition of the Klipsch trademark gives the Company oneé of the most
long-established and recognizable brand names in the industry. The trademark
is being amortized over 25 years on a straight line basis. Accumulated
amortization at December 31, 1995 is $46 and amortization expense siace the
Company's acquisition of the trademark in May 1995 through December 31, 1995

approximated $3.

Deferred Offering Costs - Deferred offering costs represents amounts paid or
accrued for costs associated with an anticipated public offering for a
subsidiary of the Company in the medical services segment amounted to 5129,
$33. and 5172 for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31,
1994. These costs would have been recorded as a reduction of the net proceeds
of the anticipated offering, however; the total accumulated amount of such
costs of $460 was expensed during the year ended December 31, 1995 since the
cffering was not consummated.

Investments in Common Stock -The Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 115 "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt
and Equity Securities”, in the five-month period ended December 31, 1994.

SFAS 115 requires certain investments that have readily determinable fair
values to be categorized as either trading, available-for-sale, or
held-to-maturicy. All of the Company's equity investments in common stock are
categorized as available-for-sale and are recorded at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses recorded as a separate component of stockholders'
egquity. Additionally, available-for-sale investments that are deemed to be
permanently impaired are written down to fair market value and such write down
15 charged to earnings as a realized loss. The adoption of this standard has
not impacted the Company's financial statements since previous unreaiized
losses on such investments were already reflected as a separate component of

stockholders' equaity.

Minority Interest - For consolidated subsidiaries that are not wholly owned,
the Company eliminates the minority interest portion of the related profits
and losses. The allocable losses of such minority interests is in excess of
the Company's investment in such subsidiaries by approximately $1,132 and $684
ar December 31, 1995 and 19%54.

Revenue Recognition - Revenue for the service sector 1s recognized as services
are provided. Revenue from the manufacturing sector is recognized primarily
under fixed price type contracts and are accounted for under the unit of
delivery method. Anticipated logses on contracts in progress are charged to
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. Consolidated Tlchnologﬁoup. Ltd. and Subsidiarifff)
Notes to Consolidated ncial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

operations as scon as losses can be determined. Revenues from fixed price
software development contracts and revenue under license agreements which
require significant modification of the software package to the customer's
specification, are recognized on the estimated percentage-of-completion
method. Revisions in cost estimates and recognition of losses on these
contracts are reflected in the accounting period in which the facts become
known. Revenue from the software package license agreements without
significant vendor obligations is recognized upon delivery of the software.
Information processing revenues are recognized in the period in which the
service is provided. Net patient service revenues are reported at the
estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others
for services rendered, including provisions for estimated contractual
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. The
Medical Diagnostic Segment has historically not prov:ded any significant
amount of charity care. Maintenance contract revenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the respective contract. Software
development revenues from time-and-materials contracts are recognized as
services are performed.

Contract terms which provide for billing schedules that differ from revenue
recognition give rise to costs and estimated profits in excess of billings and
biilings in excess of costs and estimated profits. Costs, estimated profits,
and billings on uncompleted contracts are summarized as follows:

Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts $ 2 697
Estimated profits ' 490
Total 3,187
Billings to date 3,604
llet (% €99)

Included in the accompanying balance sheet under the following captions:

Excess of accumulated cosSts over

related billings $ 1,002
Excess of billings over accumulated costs 1,701
Het (s 699)

zarnings (Loss) Per Share - Earnings (loss) per share are computed by dividing
-he net income (loss) for the year by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding. For purposes of computing weighted average number of
~smmon shares outstanding the Company has common stock eguivalents consisting
of stock options and warrants and Series "A" Preferred Convertible Stock. The
series "A" Preferred Stock was deemed to be a common stock equivalent when
:ssued. The common stock eguivalents are assumed converted to common stock,

when dilutive. During periods of operations in which losses were incurred,
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

B . T

common stock equivalents were excluded from the weighted lVlrl? number of
common shares outstanding because their inclusion would be ant -dilutive.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The fair value of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable is the carrying amount
because of the short maturity of such instruments. The fair value of
investments in common stock is based on quoted market prices which is also the
carrying amount of such instruments (see Note 1 Investments in Common Stock).
Based on the borrowing rates currently available to the Company for loans with
similar terms and average maturities, the fair value of notes payable and
long-term debt is estimated to approximate the carrying amount.

Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments which potentially subject
the Company to concentrations of credit risk are cash and cash equivalents and
accounts receivable arising from normal business activities. The Company
routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers and based upon
factors surrounding the credit risk of its customers, establishes an allowance
for uncollectible accounts, and as a conseguence, believes that its accounts
receivable credit risk exposure beyond such allowances is limited. The
Company places its cash and cash egquivalents with high credit quality
finaucial institutions. The amount on deposit in any one institution that
exceeds federally insured limits is subject to credit risk. The Company
believes no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to
these cash investments. For the year ended December 31, 1995, the Company did
not receive revenues from any one customer that was significant to total
revenues as a whole

Reclassifications - Certain year ended December 31, 1954 and July 31, 1994 and
1583 items have been reclassified to conform to the December 31, 1395
presentation.

<! Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming
that the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in the financial
czatements, the Company incurred a net loss of $11,360,000 for the year ended
December 31, 1995, and has an accumulated deficit to that date of $40,648,000.
Tnese conditions raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to
=an=inue as a going concern. The ability of the Company to continue as a
coing concern is dependent upon the success of the Company's subsidiary's
marketing efforts and their efforts tc obtain sufficient funding to enable
them to continue operations. Management's plan is to continue efforts to
raise capital through initial public offerings of the underlying subsidiary's
eguity and to manage them to profitable levels once adequate funding is in
r.ace. The failure of the subsidiaries to raise capital by equity offerings
cf their stock may force the Company to reduce operations via the closure of
cartain segments of operations and could ultimately force the Company as a

wnole to cease operations.




*‘Consclidated Technology , Ltd. and Sublidinri.
Notes to Consolidated F cial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)

W e o m e e e S - .- - - - e T L -

{3) Receivables

Receivables consist of the following: .
December 31,
1995 1994
Receivables $22,433 $19,670
Less: Allowance for bad debts (3,217) (2,850)
Receivables, net $19,216 516,820

The Company finances certain receivables to a factor under agreements entered
into in August 1994. The agreements are renewable annually and have a maximum
availability of funds of §5,500. Funds can be advanced in an amount egual to
85% of the total face amount of outstanding and unpaid receivables, with the
factor having the right to reserve 15% of the outstanding and unpaid
receivables financed. The interest rate is equal to the base lending rate of
an agreed upon bank, which was 8.25% and 7.65% at December 31, 1955 and 1594,
respectively, plus 2% and 4% for the respective periods and a commission of
0.3% and 1% of the receivables financed for the re ctive periods. The
factor has a security interest in all accounts receivables, contract rights,
personal property, fixtures and inventory of the company. At December 31,
1995 and 1994 the total amount advanced by the factor was $4,386 and $4,0189,
respectively.

The changes in the allowance for bad debts are as follows:

December 31,
1995 1994
Zalance at beginning of period $ 2,850 §.2,923
Provision for the period {(1,225) (83)
write-offs for the period 1,552 =
alance at end of period $ 3,217 $ 2,850
EEEESS EEEEEE
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{4) Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,

1985 1994
Finished goods $ 98 -
Work-in-process 1,336 $ 1,373
Raw materials and parts 2,617 2,214
Subtotal 4,051 3,587
Less: Progress payments - (121)
Subtotal 4,051 3,466
Allowance for obsolesence (350) e
Total inventories : $ 3,701 § 3,466

L E E 1 3]l EEEEEE

The work-in-process represents accumulated costs of raw materials, direct
labor and factory overhead expenses on current work orders. Finished goods
represent computer software inventory purchased for resale. During the years
ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 approximately $470 and $307 of inventory was
written-off due to obsolesence.

{(5) Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of the following:

December 31,

1995 1994
Fingermatrix S 621 § 1,439
Other 169 275
Total 790 1,714
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts {175) (351)
.sans receivable, net 615 1,363
Long-term portion 219 -=
Current portion $ 156 $ 1,363

(S 8 7 0 7] EEEEEN

Fingermactrix was in Chapter 11 pursuant to a petition filed on September 11,
1553 and whose plan was confirmed in March of 1995. The bankruptcy court has
classified the Company as having a first security in the assets of the debtor.
On March 31, 1995, Fingermatrix emerged out of bankruptcy and the Company
received its first payment of $250 on its secured debt and its initial payment
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(5) Loans Receivable (continued)

of 52 on its unsecured debt. The Company received 150,000 common shares and
250,000 warrants equaling less than 5% of the emerging debtor upon
confirmation. The common shares and warrants received were recorded at $240
which was the book value of the receivable and the related accrued interest
exchanged for the receipt of such common stock and warrants. The allowance
for doubtful accounts relates to notes receivable other than the Fingermatrix

loan.
{6) Receivables from Related Parties

Related party receivables consist of the following:

December 31,
1955 1994
Unconsolidated affiliate -
Loan consists of cash advances
and hcs no fixed due dates or terms. s 427 s 160
Officers:
Due from an officer of a subsidiary
and has no fixed due dates or terms. 45 -
Due from the chief executive cfficer
of the Company and such officer
executed a note with interest at 5%
payable quarterly and matures in
the year 2000. 72 -
Total S 544 -3 160
EEEEET ¥ I I 0 7

'7} Investments in Common Stock
Investments in common stock consist of the following:

December 31,

1995 1994
Tost basis § 336 $ 674
et unrealized gain (loss) included
as a reduction of shareholders' eguity B9 (139)
Market Value 425 5135
Current portion 2 151
Long-term portion - 405 ] lB4
EEEEES EEEEEwE
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(7) Investments in Common Stock (continued)

The unrealized gain (lcss) on investments in common stocks consists of the

following:
December 31,
1595 ; 1994
Balance at beginning of period ($ 139) ($ 270)
Adjustmente of investments
to fair market value 172 131
Realization of previously
unrealized loss 56 -
Balance at end of period § 89 (s 139)
EEEnEE (T ¥ F 3 F ]

Gain (loss) on the sale of securities consists of the following:

Fiscal
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

1995 1994 1994 1993
Proceeds from security sales $ 530 s 45 $§ A95 S 749
Cost of securities sold 565 344 182 55
Gain (loss) on security sales (s 35) (% 299) § 13 g 694

EEEEEw mEaAEEE EEEDERD L L
() Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

December 31,
1995 1994

Land > 664 s 664
Buildings 3,242 3,234
Medical eguipment 14,590 15,919
Machinery and equipment 2,019 2,283
Tools and dies 601 145
Furniture and eguipment 4,097 3,429
Vehicles 25 25
Leasehold improvements 1,504 1,334
T::al 26,742 27,033
Less: Accumulated depreciation (18,110) (16,842)

- = - - - -
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(8) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

December “31,
AN 1994
Sub-total -;:E;5 ;a:i;;
Equipment held under capital leases “Efili -;:55;
Less: Accumulated depreciation (4,441) (3,507)
Sub-total '5:255 -5:;56
Property, plant and equipment, net 5;;:65; sii:;;;

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $3,472, $952, $127 and $40 for
the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1993,

respectively,

(9) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,

1995 1994
Goodwill £12,901 513,005
Less: Accumulated amortization (1,020} {382)
Goodwill, net $11,881 212,623

EEEEER EEEEEE
Covenant not to compete § 3,954 $ 3,954
Less: Accumulated amortization (1,786) (503)
Covenant not to compete, net § 2,168 $ 3,451

EESEEN [ 1 & 3 ¥ |
Customer lists $13, 046 513,046
Less: Accumulated amorctization {1,362) (276)
Customer lists, net 511,684 $12,770

i T T F R 0 EEEEES
Trademarks s 429 -
Less: Accumulated amortizacion { 46) --
Trademarks, net $ 383 -
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(9) Intangible Assets (continued)

Amortization expense charged to operations was $3,009, $982, $163, and $0 for
the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1954 and 1993. During
the year ended December 31, 1994 the Company wrote-off approximately $623 of
goodwill cost that was deemed to be impaired.

(10) Debt
Notes Payable - Related Parties consists of the following:
December 31,

1995 1994
Notes payable to stockholders for cash
received and office equipment
contributed by these stockholders in
1992. The loans are noninterest
bearing and have no fixed due date. $ 183 $ 183

Note payable to an employee for cash
advances, due 1in March 1996 with
interest at 9%. 107 -

Total notes payable, related parties : $ 290 $ 183

Long-term debt consists of the following:

- e

Eank and installment loans - with interest rates

ranging from 6% - 12.5%. Collateralized by

certain assets and stock of subsidiaries of the

Company. $232 is currently in defaulc, $2,980

is due in 1996 and 54,364 is due through 1999. $ 6,134 $ 7,576

Former stockholders of an acquired subsidiary,
due September 1996 with interest at 7%. 138 280

Equipment loans - payable in various monthly

installments at interest rates ranging from 7.75%

to 11.5%, collateralized by the related

equipment, due through 2000. 1,629 1,741

Building mortgages - payable in various monthly

installments at interest rates ranging from 9,25%

to 9.75% due through September 2000,

collateralized by the related buildings. 1,711 1,940
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(10) Debt (continued)

December 31,
1995 1994

Investor loans - interest at 10% on $362 and 13.5%

on $530. 5362 was due on 1995 and is in default

and $530 is due in 1997 and is in default for

failure to make timely interest payments. 825 362
Loans payable to factor - §3,679 carries base

interest rates of 8.25 and 7.65% at December 31,

1995 and 1994, respectively, plus an additional

2% and 4% for the respective periods and a 0.3%

and 1% commission for the respective periods.

$707 of new factor debt during 1995 carries

interest at prime plus 8% to a maximum of 18%,

an effective rate of 15% at December 31, 1995.

Collateralized by accounts receivable, contract

rights, personal property, fixtures and inventory. 4,386 4,019
Note payable - covenants not-to-compete, payable

in mcnthly installments of $22. The notes are

norinterest bearing and mature September 1957. 467 690
Total 15,2590 16,608
Current portion 9,080 8,096
Long-term portion $ 6,210 $§ 8,512

Subordinated debt consists of the following:
December 31,

- R

Subordinated notes payable issued in connection

with acquisitions - payable in various quarterly

installments at interest rates ranging from 4% to

7%. The notes are unsecured and as of

December 31, 1995 include balloon payments in

September 1996 and September 1957. Subseguent to

December 31, 1995, a portion of these notes have

been refinanced and a portion have been

renegotiated to extend the payment terms

Isee subsegquent events footnote) §17,657 §19, 863
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{10) Debt (continued)

December 131,
- P -
1995 1994
Internal Revenue Service for payment of taxes that
were past due at the time that the Company
purchased a subsidiary in 1994, payable in 15
monthly installments of, $100, maturing
through July 31, 1996. 700 1,500
Total 18,1357 21,363
Current portion 13,354 3,437
Long-term portion $ 5,003 - $17,926
L 2§ 3 4 7 EEE .

Maturities of debt, including subordinated and related party debt, are as
follows:

Years Ended December 131, Amount
1996 £22,724
1587 5,809
1998 2,824
159% 2,355
2000 225
Total $33,937

{11) Lease Obligations

Capitalized Lease Obligations - The Company leases eguipment under
noncancelable capital leases, the last of which expires in 2000. For some of
the leases, a balloon payment representing the buyout of the leased equipment
is due at the end of the lease term. Capitalized lease obligations are
collateralized by leased equipment which has a net book value of $§2,402 at
December 31, 1995.
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{11) Lease Obligations (continued)

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations are as follows at
December 31, 1995:

Years Ended December 31, Amount
1996 $ 1,663
1997 1,089
1998 932
1999 3is5e
2000 77
Total minimum lease payments 4,119
Less: Amount representing interest (559)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 3,560
Current portion 1,362
Long-term portion $ 2,198

Operating Lease Obligations - The Company leases real estate for certain of
its operational and administrative facilities under noncancelable operating
leases expiring during the next fifteen years, The real estate leases contain
clauses which permit adjustments of lease payments based upon changes in the
"Consumer Price Index", options to renew the leases for periods up to an
additional fifteen years and additional payments for a proportionate share of
real estate taxes and common area operating expenses. The Company's present
executive offices are located at 160 Broadway, New York, New York 10038,
which it occupies pursuant to a lease expiring February 28, 1999. The current
tase rent for such premises is $7 per month, The Company's subsidiaries
sccupy various facilities pursuant tc leases expiring through 2001 The
current base rent for such premises approximates $123 per month.

Minimum future rental payments under noncancelable operating leases having a
remaining term in excess of one year are as follows:

Years Ended December 31, Amount
1956 § 1,302
1997 1,235
1958 1,195
1999 BB6
2000 440
Thereafter 180
Total minimum future rental payments $ 5,238

tent expense for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994
and 1993 approximated $1,560, $569, 5357 and $258, respectively.
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{(12) Income Taxes

Under SFAS No. 105 "Accounting for Income Taxes", deferred income taxes
reflect the net tax effects of (a) temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes, and (b) operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. The tax effects of significant items composing the Company's
net deferred tax liability as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 are as follows:

Daecember 31,
1995 1994
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Difference between book
and tax amortization -] 150 --
Book basis of assets in
excess of rax basis 4,424 --
Other 3 -
4,577 -
Deferred Tax Assers:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts not currently
deductible 1,231 - 100
Note and loan receivable :
allowances 71 253
Difference between book
and tax depreciation 4,527 676
Accrued vacation pay 61 82
Accrued warranty expense 11 -
Accrued sales returns 6 -
Accrued sales discounts 10 --
Inventory reserves not
currently deductible 137 --
Federal net operating loss
carryforward 13,758 5,197
State net cperating loss
carryforward 4,418 1,151
Z“zher - 19
24,210 8,478
Valuation allowarnice 19,653 8,478
e Deferred Tax Liabilicy s = S ==
EEEEEE EEEEE R
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{12) Inccme Taxes (continued)

The Company's deferred tax asset valuation allowance was *$19,653, $8,478 and
$4,700 as of December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1954, respectively. The
increase in the valuation allowance of $11,175 for the year ended December 31,
1995 is comprised of the following:

Difference between book and tax depreciation $ 3,851
Difference between book and tax amortization (150)
Book basis of assets in excess of tax basis (4,424)
Allowance for doubtful accounts not currently deductible 131
Note and loan receivable allowances (182)
Accrued vacation pay (21)
Accrued warranty expense 11
Accrued sales returns 6
Accrued sales discounts 10
Inventory reserves not currently deductible 137
Federal net operat.ng loss carryforward 8.561
State net operating loss carryforward 3,267
Other (22)
Total Increase $11,175

There was no valuation allowance as of July 31, 1993 since SFAS No. 109 was
initially adopted for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994.

Income Taxes:

The current and deferred income tax components of the provision (benefit) for
income taxes consist of the following:

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 131, July 31,
1995 1994 1994 1893
urrent:
Federal s - - s -
State 144 s 19 -- 21
ruerce Rico B3 5 -- -
227 24 - 21
Tsaferred - - - -
5 227 s 24 -- s 21
EEEEEE EEEEEE L § 4 3 7 7 ErEEEN
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(12) Income Taxes (continued)

The pruvision for income taxes varies from the amount computed by applying the
statutory rate for the reasons below:

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,
1995 1994 1994 1993
Provision based on statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0% 34.0
Benefit of graduated rates (1.0) (1.0) (1.0) n/a
Otcher income taxes
(net of federal benefict) {0.5) .- n/a n/a
State taxes
{inet of federal benefit) (1.0) (0.6) -- 4.0
Valuation allowance (34.0) (34.0) (34.0%) n/a
Net Operating Loss n/a n/a n/a (34.0)
(1.5%) (0.6%) - 4.0%

The Company's provision for income taxes is comprised of state and Puerto Rico
income taxes for the year ended December 31, 1995 and 1994. The provision for
income taxes for the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993 is comwprised of state
income tax. The Company will have a federal net operating loss carryforward
of approximately $44,882 and a state net operating loss carryforward of
approximately $44,881. The federal net operating loss carryforwards expire in
years 1996 through 2010 and the state net operating loss carryforwards expire
in years 1996 through 2010 (the expiration dates vary based on individual
stace income tax laws).

{13) Capital Stock

Czmmon Stock

Feverse Split - Effective September 1, 1993, the capitalization of the Company
changed from 300,000,000 shares cf common stock, §.01 par value, into
£0.000,000 shares of common stock, 5.01 par value. Effective the same time,
tne presently issued and outstanding shares of common stock were reverse split ’
cr. the basis of cne (1) new share for each sixty (60) issued and outstanding
shares. All share data has been adjusted retroactively.

=ock Options - On August 20, 1993, the Company authorized a stock option plan
r Non Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to provide compensation

r services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash payment. At various

:mes the Company has registered and granted optiong pursuant to the plan.

turing the years ended December 31, 1595 and 1994 and July 31, 1994, options

t> purchase 6,500,000 shares, 1,500,000 shares and 3,000,000 shares,
respectively, were granted and exercised.

Ty o LY
0D
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(13) Capital Stock (continued)

Acquisitions - Common stock was issued to acquire subsidiaries as follows:

(i) In December, 1993 issued 850,000 shares in connection with the
acquisitions of Arc Acquisition Group, Inc, and ARC Networks, Inc.

(1i) In August 1993, issued 120,000 shares in connection with the acquisition
of the remaining 20% of S-Tech.

(iii) In June 1994, issued B40,000 in connection with the acquisition of
Creative Socio-Medics Corp.

(iv) In September 1994 issued 3,343,000 shares in connection with the
acquisition of the International Magnetic Imaging, Inc. and affiliated
entities.

{v) In November 1994 issued 1,500,000 shares in connection with the
acquisition of Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. and Computer
Engineering Services, Inc.

Stock Issued for Services Rendered - For the years ended December 31, 1995 and
1994 the Company issued 130,004 shares and 200,000 shares, respectively, for
in cornection with consulting and financing services valued at $114 and §97,
respectively.

Regulation S Offerings - Pursuant to offerings in October 1995 and March 1994
made under Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, the Company received
net proceeds of $250 and §8,162, respectively, in conjunction with the
respective issuance of 1,000,000 shares and 3,50(,000 shares of common stock.

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the year ended December 131,
1995, the Company issued 1,447,807 shares of common stock upon the conversion
of 11,117 shares of series A preferred stock.

Stock Purchase Rights - On December 15, 1994, the board of directors of a
subsidiary approved the sale of 4,000,000 shares of Common Stock owned by such
subsidiary to seven individuals who are officers, directors and/or key
employees of the Company or it subsidiaries. The purchase price is $.50 per
share, which was the fair market value of such stock on December 15, 1994. An
initial payment of $.01 per share is due not later than July 31, 1995, and the
calance is to be represented by the purchasers' nonrecourse B% promissory
nozes due December 31, 199%9. Payment may be made in cash or in securities.
avment of the notes is secured by a pledge of the shares. The shares are to
r= issued pursuant to stock purchase agreements dated as of December 15, 1994
~arween the subsidiary and the purchasers. None of the individuals receiving
-ne rights to purchase such stock exercised such right as of July 31, 1995 and
211 such rights have expired.

referred Stock - Effective September 1, 1993, the authorized number of shares
¢ undeeignated preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, was increased from
-.700,000 to 2,000,000 shares.
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(13) Capital Stock (continued)

Series A - The series A convertible preferred stock, which was all issued
during the pericd April 1993 through July 1993, bears a cumulative dividend
of 6%, is redeemable at any time at the option of the Company at a redemption
price of $10 per share, and is convertible at the option of ti.2 holder at any
rime commencing two years from the date of issuance, unless sooner called for
redemption by the Company at the rate of 130.208 (7,812.5 prior to 60:1
reverse split) shares of common stock for each share of preferred stock if
and when sufficient shares of common stock are available for issuance. No
dividends were declared for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1954 and
July 31, 1994 and 1993. As of December 31, 1995 and 1994 a $.30 per share
dividend totaling $27 and §23, respectively, is in arrears. During the year
ended December 31, 1995 11,117 shares of series A preferred stock was
converted into 1,447,807 shares of common stock.

Series B - The Series B subordinated preferred stock is redeemable at the
option of the Company at the issue price of $87.50 per share. The stock is
entitled to a $3.50 annual dividend which is contingent upon after tax
earnings in excess of $200. In the event of involuntary liquidation, the
holders may receive $87.50 per share and all dividends. No dividends were
declared for the years ended December 31, 1595 and 1954 and July 31, 1994 and

1993.

Series E - The Series E preferred stock is entitled to an annual dividend of
$.10 per share contingent upon after tax earnings being in excess of §$200. No
dividends were declared for the years ended December 31, 1995 and 1994 and

July 31, 1994 and 1983,

Series F - As consideration for granting extensions on former Adebts, the
Company issued, in 1984, 2,700 shares of preferred stock at $1.00 per share.
Tne nonvoting preferred stock, designated Series F, with a dividend rate of
$8.00 per share is redeemable at the option of the Company after July 1993 for
$..00 per share. One share will be issued for each $100 (one hundred dollars)
~¢ principal indebtedness owed. The dividend will be noncumulative and is
pavable within 100 days from the close of any year where net income after tax
exceeds $500, and all dividends due on the Series B preferred stock are paid
c. provided for. MNo dividends were declared for the years ended December 131,
=55 and 19%4 and July 31, 1994 and 1583.

-+ Stock Options and Warrants
Ercloyee Stock Options

F.rsuant to a Board of Directors meeting on December 15, 1994 certain
.r.4:viduals received options to purchase an aggregate of 1,750,000 shares of
Lunregistered common stock. The cptions have an exercise price of §.50 per
are, being the fair market value per share of Consclidated common stock on
e date of the meeting, being the date of grant, and being exercisable at any

-me and from time to time during the four year period ended December 14,

AT ot
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(14) Stock Options and Warrants (continued)
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors Stock Options:

On August 20, 1993, the Company authorized a stock option plan for
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to provide compensation for
services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash payments.

Pursuant to the plan, in October 1993, January 1994 and March 1994, the
Company registered 1,500,000 shares, 1,000,000 shares and 1,500,000 =hares,
respectively. During the same time periods, options for 3,000,000 shares were
granted, of which 1,400,000 were exercised at $1.00 per share and 1,600,000
exercised at $2.00 per share, resulting in §7,140 of expenses computed as
follows:

Shares 3,000,000
Value of stock

at dat=® of grant $4.8917

14,675

20% discount (2,935)

11,740

Exercise proceeds (4,600)

Expense $ 7,140

* - Represents weighted average.

In accordance with the agreements relating to the various parties involved,
for the years ended December 31, 1994 and July 31, 1954 $4,140 and 357,140 was
charged as consulting services in the determination of income from operations.
% 20% discount was utilized because the shares issued represents a large block

of stock.

Pursuant to the plan during the year ended December 31, 1995, 6,500,000 shares
were granted and exercised of which 1,500,000 were exercised at $0.25 per
share, 1,000,000 were exercised at $0.35 per share 1,000,000 were exercised at '
50 .50 per share and 3,000,000 were exercised at 50.00 per share, resulting in
1,869 of consulting costs computed as follows:
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(14) Stock Options and Warrants (continued)

Shares 6,500,000 .
Value of stock
at dacte of grant $0.9796"
6,367
20% discount (1,273)
5,094
Exercise proceeds (1,225)
Total consulting costs 3,869
Portion expensed at
issuance 1,556
Portion deferred at issuance $ 2,312
Amortization during 1995 404

Write-off of deferred portion
at December 31, 1995 $ 1,909

* - Represents weighted average.

In accordance with the agreements relating to the various parties involved,
$1,556 was charged as consulting expense at the time of (ssuance and the
remainder was to be amortized over the life of the contracts. During the year
ended December 31, 1995 5404 was amortized and charged as consulting expense.
Additionally, at December 31, 1995 it was determined that the parties relating
to the deferred portion were no longer able to perform the services required
by the contracts and as such the balance of $1,909 was written-off to
consulting expense. A 20% discount was utilized because the shares issued
represents a large block of stock.

Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant:

0On September 30, 1994, in conjunction with the financing of the IMI
acguisition, the Company issued to a financing company, & warrant to purchase
1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of $50.75
per share. This warrant is exercisable on or before September 30, 1999 and
expires on October 1, 1999. The number and kind of securities purchasable
upcn the exercise of this warrant and the exercise price is subject to
adjustment from ctime to time upon the happening of (a) certain stock
reclassification, consolidation or merger events; (b) certain stock split
~ransactions; or (c) certain dividend declarations, such that the value of
shares that would have been received upon exercise of the warrant immediately
prior to the above events is eguivalent to the value of shares receivable upon
exercise of the warrant immediately subseguent to the above events
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{15) Industry Segments

The Company currently classifies its operations into eiglit business segments:
(i) Contract Engineering Services consists of subsidiaries that provide
engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary basis pursuaat to
contracts with major corporations; (ii) Medical Diagnostics consists of a
subsidiary that performs magnetic resonance imaging and other medical
diagnostic services; (iii) Electro-Mechanical and Electro- Optical Products
Manufacturing consists of subsidiaries that manufacture and sell products such
as devices that measure distance and velocity, instrumentation devices, debit
card vending machines and industrial lighting products; (iv) Medical
Information Services consists of subsidiaries that provide medical information
dacrabase services, health care industry related software packages and the
SmarcCard medical identification cards and related software program; (v)
Telecommunications consists of a subsidiary that, among other things, installs
telephonic network systems and buys and resells local telephone service; (vi)
Three Dimensional Products and Services consists of subsidiaries that provide
three dimensional imaging services that are used in a variety of applications,
such as prototype building and reverse engineering; (vii) Audio Visual
Manufacturing and Se;-vices consists of a subsidiary that manufactures and
sells a professional line of loudspeakers, and (viii) Business Consulting
Services consists of subsidiaries that provide a variety of financial and
business related services. Corporate and Other consists of the operating
activities of the holding company entities. Previously, the segmentation
consisted of (i) Manufacturing, which is now included in the

Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical segment; (ii) Fees and Services, which
included the subsidiaries that are now classified in the Contract Engineering
Services, Telecommunications and Business Consulting Services segments; and
.121) Development Stage which previously included Medical Information Services
and Three Dimensional Products and Services. Inter segment sales and sales
cutside the United States are not material. Informatien

concerning the Company's business segments is as follows:
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Ytlr Ended Fiscal Year Ended
Cecember 31, July 31,
Segments 19858 1994 1994 1993
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services §63,152 §25,291 $10,221 $ 611
Medical Diagnostics 28,044 6,557 -- --
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 4,223 3,605 3,475 3,059
Medical Information Services 7,381 2,925 7 50
Telecommunications 3,253 2,26% 1,132 --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1,776 850 292 BO
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 2,149 -- - --
Business Consulting Services 119 81 616 39
Total Revenues $110,097 $41,578 315 742 § 3,839

EEEEET EEEEED EEEEEE aEEE= =
Gross Profic:
Contract Engineering Services $ 3,995 $ 1,640 S 1,007 s 51
Medical Diagnostics 12,235 2,661 - -
Electro-Mechanical and Electro- '

Optical Products Manufacturing 1,048 119 157 996
Medical Information Services 1,574 601 7 e |
Telecommunications 695 640 277 -
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 654 296 119 56
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 202 -= -- -
Business Consulting Services 119 193 615 39
Total Gross Profitc £20,922 $ 6,150 £ 2,182 £ 1,175
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(15) Industry Segments (continued)
Year Ended
December 31,
Segments 1995 1994
Income (Loss) from Operations:
Contract Engineering Services (¢ 446) ($ 108)
Medical Diagnostics 5,367 1,036
Electro-Mechani cal and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing (841) (1,543)
Medical Information Services (2,274) (1,529)
Telecommunications (504) (144)
Three Dimensional Products

and Services (2,242) (1,555)
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services (492) -
Business Consulting Services (21) (430)
Corporate anc other (9,659) (6,191)
Total Income {(Loss) from

Operations ($11,112) ($10,464)

EEEEEE EEEEEE
Net Income (Loss):

Contract Engineering Services
Medical Diagnostics
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-
Optical Products Manufacturing
Medical Information Services
Telecommunications
Three Dimensicnal Products
and Services
Audio Visual Manufacturing
and Services
Business Consulting Services
Corporate arid Other

Tzotal Net Income (Loss)

($ 1,312)
2,682

{1,002)
(2,803)
(873)
(2,285)
(553)

g
(5,521)

{S;..JEDJ
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($ 252)
449

(1,530)
{1,601)
(150)

(1,782)

(442}
{6,110)

{$11,428)

- -

July 31,
1894 19683

($ 21) (S 950)
(998) 382
(678) (195)
42 pim
(765) (108)
225 (148)
(8,371) (1,244)
(810,566) (S 1,403)
E 4 2 3 3 3} i 3 3 % 8 1§
s 69 (S 129)
(1,021) 394
(629) {222)
37 i
(809) (108)
215 {148)
(B,634) 953
(810,772) S 740
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(15) Industry Segments (continued)

- - - L L L

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31. July 31,
Segments 1995 1994 1994 1893
Depreciation and Amortization:
Contract Engineering Services s 706 § 324 s 139 S 1
Medical Diagnostics 4,988 1,294 - --
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 37 24 43 5
Medical Information Services 1,333 a72 6 2
Telecommunications a0 3o 15 --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 417 133 81 25
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 74 -l -- -
Business Consulting Services 2 2 2 1
Corporate and Other 15 8 4 2
Total Depreciation and

Amorcization s 7,602 S 2,187 -] 290 -] 40

EEEEEE EEsEEEE EEEEED E=szsaw
Capital Expandlturas[ll
Contract Engineering Services s 110 s 2 § 18 § 6
Medical Diagnostics 226 12,417 - -
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 71 1 -- 450
Medical Information Services 138 1,103 1,004 23
Telecommunications 3 -- -- -
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 50 495 142 255
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 439 -- -- --
Business Consulting Services - - 2 L] 7
Carporate and Other 21 61 59 -
Tital Capital Expenditures $ 1,058 $14,081 $ 1.227 S 741

EDESEE EE=EEE - . EEDNEET
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(15) Industry Segments (continued)

As of s As of
December 31, July 31,

Segments 1595 1994 1994 1993
Identifiable Assets:

Contract Engineering Services $ 9,559 $ 9.984 $ 5,509 $ 116
Medical Diagnostics 39,872 40,912 -- -
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-

Optical Products Manufacturing 3,714 4,502 4,647 4,983
Medical Information Services 6,936 6,652 6,822 374
Telecommunications 1,362 1,256 1,042 --
Three Dimensional Products

and Services 1,559 2,327 1,446 B49
Audio Visual Manufacturing

and Services 1,780 -- -- --
Business Consulting Services 251 1,425 444 450
Corporate and Other 1,279 1,031 5,160 609
Total Identifiable Assets $66,312 S68,089 £25,070 $ 7,381

EsEEEE L 2 1 7 3 0 L 5 7 7 0 3 ] EEEEEE

[1] For the years ended December 31, 1995 capital expenditures for the audio
visual manufacturing and services segment include $374 for amounts allocated
to property and equipment from the acquisition of certain net assets of WWR
Technology related to the reverse merger with Trans Glotal Services. For the
vear ended December 31, 1994 the contract engineering services, medical
diagnostics, medical services and three dimensional products and services
segments include $2, $10,503, $1,004 and §208, respectively, for amounts
allocated to property and equipment from the acquisition of certain net assets
of Job Shop Technical Services, Inc., International Magnetic Imaging, Inc.,
Creative Socio-Medics, Inc. and Computer Engineering Services, Inc. For the
fiscal year ended July 31, 1954, capital expenditures for the technical
employee leasing and medical information services segments include $18 and
51,004 for amounts allocated to property and eguipment from the acquisition of
certain net assets of Arc Acqguisitions Group, Inc. and Creative Socio-Medics, -
Inc. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 1953, capital expenditures for the
clectro-mechanical and electro-optical products manufacturing and three
Z:mensional products and services segments include $450 and $182,
raespectively, for amounts allocated to property and equipment from the
accuisition of certain net assets of General Technologies Group. Ltd. and
robotics and Designs, Inc.
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{16) Sale and Reacquisition of Subsidiary

Pursuart to an Agreement dated June 4, 1987, by and among General Aero
Products Corp., now called General Technologies Group Ltd. ("GTG"), the
Company, and a subsidiary, Sequential Electronic Systems, Inc. ("SES"), the
Company sold all of the then issued and outstanding common stock of SES (100
shares) to GTG. The Company received 1,500.000 shares of GTG common stock and
a ten year, 10.5% promissory note in the principal amount of $2,000 which note
was subsequently written down by $500 and the return by the Company of 500,000
shares of GTG common stock .This write down and return of shares was in
settlement of a fraudulent claim made by GTG against the Company. The Company
also loaned $500 to GTG evidenced by GTG's 8% Convertible Debenture.
Subsequent to the above transactions, a Chapter 11 petition was filed on

December 14, 198% by GTG.

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, the Company, through its
wholly-owned subsidiary, SIS Capital Corp., completed a settlement agreement
with a financial institution. The agreement includes the purchase by the
Company of the 100 shares of SES common stock held by the financial
institution for $25 cash and a note of §75. In addition, §-Tech, Inc., a
subsidiary of the Company acquired from the financial institution, certain net
assets of GTG in the amount of $1,523 (which represents the appraised value of
the assets) for $100 cash and note of $270. The cost of the purchase of the
100 shares of SES stock is included in the expenses and losses recovered by
the Company through the acquired assets of GTG. In conjunction with the
agreement, an adversary proceeding, commenced against GTG in its pending
bankruptcy proceedings in the Bankruptcy Court-Eastern District of New York
was settled, The Company's claim for rescission of the sale of certain SES
stock and damages for fraud, and the financial institution's separate
adversary proceeding for an order voiding issuance of the nine hundred (900)
shares of SES stock have all been discontinued. There are no other claims
either by or against the Company pending in those proceedings. The Company
has paid for its purchase cf one hundred (100) shares of stock to the
financial institution as par:t of its settlement of all claims by and against
the financial institution.

(27) Relarted Party Transactions
Loans Payable toc Officers and Former Shareholders:
The Company is indebted to stockholders for cash received and office equipment

nzributed by these stockholders in 1952. The loans are noninterest bearing
4 have no fixed due date. The amount due at December 31, 1995 and 1994 was

The Company is indebted to an employee for cash received from such employee
dur:ng 1995. The loan bears interest at 9% and is due in 1996, The amount
due at December 31, 1995 was 5107.
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)

Approximately $969 and $1,067 at December 31, 1995 and 1994, respectively, of
the subordinated debt issued in connection with the acguisition of IMI is
payable to an officer of IMI. The officer was a shareholder in IMI prior the

acquisition.

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries had outstanding indebtedness to DLBE, Inc. ("DLB"), a corporation
owned by the wife of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the board, president
and chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Schiller disclaims any
beneficial interest in DLB. The cobligations were secured by assets anc stock
of certain subsidiaries. The largest amount outstanding during the period was
approximately $381. In addition, DLB had purchased preferred stock in one of
the Company's subsidiaries for $24. In April 1994, the Company paid
approximately $343 in principal and $36 in interest to JLB and issued to DLB
shares of common stock in certain subsidiaries in full payment of all its and
its subsidiaries' obligations to DLB and paid DLB $24 for DLB's preferred
stock in a subsidiary, representing DLB's cost of such preferred stock. Since
such repayment, DLB has not lent money to, or purchased stock in, the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, except that, in August 1994, DLB advanced the
Company approximately $35, which was paid without interest in October 1994.
The largest amount outstanding during the year ended December 31, 1994 was

£35.
Sale of a Subsidiary to Employees:

Effective January 1, 1994, the Company transferred to four employees of a
subsidiary, including Ms. Grazyna B. Wnuk, secretary of the Company, 61% of
the common stock of the subsidiary, for nominal consideration. In connection
with such transfers, Ms. Wnuk received a 31% interest in the subsidiary. The
cperations of such subsidiary did not represent a significant portion of the
Company's business during the years ended July 31, 1994 or December 31, 199%4.

Purchase of a Portion of a Subsidiary from Employees:

Trans Global Services, Inc. ("Trans Global") was organized by SIS Capical
“crp. ("SISC") in January 1995 to hold all of the stock of Avionics Research
Holdings, Inc. ("Holdings"), (formerly ARC Acquisition Group, Inc.), which was’'
acquired by SISC in December 1953, and Resource Management International, Inc.
“PMI"), (formerly ITS Management Corp.!, which was acquired by SISC in
vember 1994. Trans Global also issued to SISC warrants to purchase shares
its common stock. The Trans Global stock and warrants were issued to SISC
consideration for the transfer of the stock of Holdings and RMI and the
vances made by SISC. All of the Trans Global stock and warrants owned by
EC are held subject to the right of Mr. Lewie S. Schiller, chairman of the
sard and chief executive officer of zhe Company, to purchase 10% of SISC's
uity position for 110% of SISC's cost In connection with the organization
Trans Global, Trans Global also issued a 3.4% interest to Mr. Joseph G.
S:cinski, president of Trans Global, in exchange for certain rights Mr.

Sicinski has with respect to the stock of Holdings.

SN
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(17) Related Party Transacticns (continued)

In connection with the organization of Trans Global in Jarmuary 1595, SISC
transferred a 5% interest in its common stock and warrants in Trans Global to
DLB in exchange for DLB's 10% interest in another subsidiary of Consolidated.

At the time of the organization of Trans Global, Trans Global issued to SISC,
in consideration for the equity consideration issued by Consolidated in
connection with the acquisitions of Holdings and RMI, 500 shares of Series A
5% Redeemable Cumulative Preferred Stock.

During 1955, SISC, DLB, Inc. and Mr. Joseph G. Sicinski, the stockholders of
Trans Global, entered into an agreement (the “"Trans Global Agreement®) with
Concept Technologies Group, Inc. ("Concept") pursuant to which they would
transfer to Concept all of the issued and outstanding capital stock cf Trans
Global in exchange for a controlling equity interest in Concept.

Pursuant to the Trans Global Agreement, Concept issued to SISC in respect of
its Trans Glohal Common Stock, preferred stock and warrants, 850,000 shares of
Concept Common Stock, two-year warrants (the "Concept Warrants") to purchase
475,000 shares of Concept Common Stock, 23,750 shares of Concept's Series A
Participating Convertible Preferred Stock ("Series A Preferred S8rock"), which
are convertible into 1,500,000 shares of Concept Common Stock upon the filing
of an amendment to Concept's certificate of incorporation which increases its
capital stock, 23,750 shares of each of Concept's Series B and C Preferred
Stock, which are convertible into an aggregate of 2,375,200 shares of Concept
Common Stock if certain levels of income before income tax are met, and 25,000
shares of Concept's Series D 5% Redeemable Cumulative Preferred Stock ("Series
D Preferred Stock"), which is not convertible and which is redeemable after
three years for an aggregate of approximately $1.7 million. The Series D
Preferred Stock is also redeemable from the sale by Concept of its equity
securities, including the sale of stock upon exercise of options and warrants.
The Concept Warrants become exercisable until the Warrants included in the
Units either expire or are exercised in full. The exercise price of the
Concept Warrants 1s 52.50 per share or the exercise price of the warrants

e Bk

included in a proposed private placement by Concept, whichever is lower.

.rsuant to the Trans Global Agreement, Concept issued to DLB in respect of

s Trans Global stock and warrants, 50,000 shares of Concept Common Stock,
ncept Warrants to purchase 25,000 shares of Concept Common Stock, 1,250
.ares of Concept's Series A Preferred Stock, which are convertible into
100,000 shares of Common Stock, and 1,250 shares of each of Concept's Series B
nd C Preferred Stock. which are convertible into in aggregate of 125,000

e

:nares of Concept Common Stock if certain levels of income before income taxes

£

-
-
-
-
H
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ar= attained. Pursuant to the Trans Global Agreement, Concept issued to Mr.
=:-:nski in respect of his Trans Global Stock, 100,000 shares of Concept

~mmon Stock.

TN W

i)t

Tne Trans Global Agreement provides SISC and DLB with certain registration

rights with respect to their Concept warrants and the undarliing common stock
4 provides Mr. Sicinski with certain registration rights with respect to the

100,000 shares of Common Stock issued to him pursuant to the Trans Global

& w b
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Agreement. Mr. Sicinski's shares are subject to a one-year lockup agreement,
subject to earlier release under certain conditions.

All of the Trans Glocbal stock and warrants owned by SISC are held subject to
the right of Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, chairman of the board and chief executive
officer of the Company, to purchase 10% of SISC's equity position for 110% of
SISC's cost. In connection with the transaction contemplated by the Trans
Global Agreement, Mr. Schiller's option will be converted to an option to
purchase 10% of SISC's interest in the Concept equity securities at a price
equal to 110% of SISC's cost.

Advances to a Company that was Subsequently Acqguired:

During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994, the Company made advances to a
company that was acquired on September 30, 1994. Advances receivzble from
this company at July 31, 1994 amounted to $347.

Advances to an Unconsolidated Subsidiary:

The Company has made advances to a 35% owned subsidiary from time to time in
various amounts. These advances have no fixed due dates or terms and 5145 of
such advances have been written-off. The outstanding balances owed to the
Company from this subsidiary was $427 and $160 at December 31, 1595 and 1994
and the greatest amount outstanding to such subsidiary during the years ended
December 31, 1995 and 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 1593 was 5427. Ms. Grazyna
B. Wnuk, the Company's secretary, owns a 311% interest in the subsidiary
receiving such advances.

Loan Receivable from an Officer of a Subsidiary:

During the year ended December 31, 1995 a subsidiary of the Company loaned $45
to the chief executive officer of such subsidiary. The loan has no fixed due

dates or terms.
Loan Receivable from Sale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer:

Zuring 1995, the chief executive officer of the Company exercised an option to’
purchase common stock investments held by the Company at 110% of the book
value of such investments. The purchase of such investments was consummated
:n a noncash transaction and such officer is to issue a note in favor of the
“ompany with interest at prevailing rates and maturing five years from the
dace of the purchase. Total amounts outstanding under such receivables was
72 at December 31, 1995. The gain realized by the Company on the sale of
these investments approximated 57

“cnsulting Arrangement with Former Board Member:

The Company entered into a consulting agreement with Irving Hertz (now
deceased), upon his resignation from the Board and as Chief BExecutive Officer
of the Company. Under this agreement, all of the fringes Mr. Hertz had as
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(17) Related Party Transactions (continued)

-

CEO, including a leased car, would continue to be provided by the Company.

The services to be performed, for which Mr. Hertz received a monthly retainer,
were investment banking and financial consulting on various situations in
which the Company was interested. The Company paid $66,828 to Mr. Hertz under
this agreement during the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993. Upon Mr. Hertz's
death, the Company settled all claims his estate had against the Company for
$175, during the fiscal year ended July 31, 1994. As of July 31, 1994, all
such amounts were paid in full. In addition, consulting fees were paid to
other individuals and firms cthat were not related parties at the time such
fees were paid and any such fees are not deemed to be material.

(18) Litigation

Although the Company is a party to certain legal proceedings which have
cccurred in the ordinary course of business, the Company does not believe such
proceedings to be of a material nature with the exception of the following:

Holding Company:

The Company has been named as a defendant in a lawsuit filed by a company it
<25 contemplating acquiring in January 1995 for alleged unauthorized use of
sroprietary information specific to that line of business. Outside counsel
handling this case has advised the Company that it has meritorious defenses to
cbtain a dismissal of the lawsuict.

Contract Engineering Services:

The Government Printing Office wrote a subsidiary of the Company asking to be
reimbursed a total of $296 for unauthorized timework on two programs. The
subsidiary has been in contact with the Department of Juutice which has stated
that they were declining prosecution of the subsidiary regarding this matter.
Management believes these claims are without merit and intends to contest
these claims vigorously if reasserted by the Government Printing Otfice and
believe that the ultimate disposition of this matter will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial positicn of the Company.

The United States Department of Labor ("DOL") has filed a complaint against
Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Job Shop"), a company from which a
subsidiary ©f the Company purchased certain assets and assumed certain
ccligations, and its former principal shareholder for civil violations of
ErI5A resulring from the failure of Job Shop to deposit employee cont:ributions
< Job Shop's 401(k) retirement plan. A similar complaint was filed by former
employees of Job Shop against Job Shop, its former principal shareholder and
others. At November 21, 1994, the amount due to the Job Shop 401(k) plan was
acproximately $3,000, which amoun:t may have increased since such date as a
result of interest and penalties. Neither the Company nor RMI, which is the
subsidiary which acquired assets and assumed certain obligations of Job Shop
in lovember 1994, has been named as a defendant in either of such actions.

The DOL has raised with the Company the possibility that RMI may be liable
with respect to Job Shop's ERISA liability as a successor corporation
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(18) Litigation (continued)

or purchaser of plan assets, even though RMI did not assume such obligations
and paid value for those assets which it did purchase. Althcugh the Company
believes that RMI is not a successor corporation to Job Shop and is not
responsible for Job Shop's ERISA violations, the DOL may take a contrary
position. 1If the DOL takes such a position and prevails, it would have a
material adverse effect upon the operations of RMI and possibly the Company as

a whole.
Medical Information Services:

An action was commenced against a subsidiary of the Company by the filing of a
summons with notice in the Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of
New York. The action was commenced by Jacque W. Pate, Jr., Melvin Pierce,
Herbert A. Meisler, John Gavin, Elains Zanfini, individually and derivatively
as shareholders of Onecard Health Systems Corporation and Onecard Corporation,
which corporations are collectively referred to as "Onecard". The named
defendants include, in addition to the subsidiary, officers and directors of

the subsidiary and the Company. A complaint was filed on November 15, 1995.
The complaint makes broad claims respecting alleged misappropriation of
Onecard's trade secrets, corporate assets and corporate opportunities, breach
of fiduciary relationship, unfair competition, fraud, breach of trust and
ocher similar allegations, apparently arising at the time of, or in connection
with the organization of the subsidiary in September 1992. The complaint
seeks injunctive relief and damages, including punit:ve damages of $130,000.
Management believes that the action is without merit, and it will vigorously
defend the action. Nevertheless, due to uncertainties in the legal process,
it is at least reasonably possible that management's view of the outcome will
change in the near term and there exists the possibility that there could be a
material adverse impact on the operations of the Company.

Audic Visual Manufacturing and Services:

There is an action pending against a subsidiary of the Company alleging claims
against the subsidiary for unauthorized use of the Klipsch trademark. The
“ompany denies these allegations and asserts there has been no material breach
of contract. The case is currently in the discovery phase and the amount of
any liability, if any, cannot be estimated. Management intende to defend
=1gorously the claims alleged against the subsidiary. Nevertheless, due to
:ncertainties in the legal process, it 15 at least reasonably possible that
management's view of the outcome will change in the near term and there exists
=ne possibility that there could be a material adverse impact on the

sperations of the subsidiary.
.%) New Authoritative Pronouncements

The following describes new authoritative pronouncements that are expected to
oe applicable te the accounting of the Company's operations:
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(19) New Authoritative Pronouncements {(continued)

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("PASB") issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 121, "Accounting for the
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of", in March of 1995. SFAS
121 established accounting standards for the impairment of long-lived assets,
certain identifiable intangibles, and goodwill related to those assets to be
held and used, and for long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles
to be disposed of. SFAS No. 121 is effective for financial statement issued
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 19595. Adoption of SFAS No. 121
may have a material impact on the Company and require significant write-downs
of intangible assets

The FASB has also issued SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensations, " in October 1995. SFAS No. 123 uses a fair value based method
of accounting for stock options and similar equity instrumonts as contrasted
to the intrinsic valued based method of accounting prescripbed by Accounting
Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees." The Company has not determined whether it will adopt SFAS No. 123
or cont.nue to apply APB Opinion No. 25 for financial reporting purposes.

SFAS No. 123 will have to be adopted for financial note disclosure purposes in
any event. The accounting requirements of SFAS No. 123 are effective for
transactions entered into in fiscal years that begin after December 15, 1995;
the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 are effective for financial
statements for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 1985.

(20) Acquisitions

(1) - On December 22, 1993, the Company, acquired for 60(,000 shares valued at
51,440 (through a 90% owned subsidiary) Arc Acquisition Group, Inc., in a
rusiness combination accounted for as a purchase. On the same date, the
Company also acquired for 250,000 shares valued at $600 (through a wholly
owned subsidiary) 80% of the outstanding voting common stock and 50.1% of the
suzstanding non voring stock of ARC Networks, Inc., in a business combination
aiso accounted for as a purchase. The purchase price of these two
acguisitions exceeded the fair value of the net assets of ARC Acquisition
Sroup, Inc. and ARC Networks, Inc. by $§2,543, consisting of Goodwill of $541
and Customer Lists of $2,000. Goodwill and Customer Lists will be amortized
cer 20 years and 15 years, respectively, under the scraight line method. For
accounting purposes, the results of operations of ARC Acquisition and ARC
lie=works are included with the resulcts of the Company from January 1, 1994
cnward.

2 - On June 16, 1994, a subsidiary of the Company, Carte Medical Holdings

"CMH"), through a wholly-owned subsidiary, CSM Acquisition Corp.

"Acguisition Corporation"), acquired the assets and assumed liabilities of
Creative Socio-Medics Inc. (“CSM"! pursuant to a plan and agreement of
recrganization dated as of April 13, 1994, as amended (the "Purchase
~Zreement®), among the Company, Carte Medical Corp. ("Carte"), Acquisition
“orporation, CSM and Advanced Computer Technigues, Inc. ("ACT"), the parent of
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(20) Acquisitions (continued)

CSM. The Company is the parent of SISC, which is the parent of CMH. 1In
connection with the purchase, (i) Acquisition Corporation purchased the asse:s
and assumed liabilities of CSM in exchange for B00,000 shares of the Company's
common stock and $500 which was advanced by Carte to Acguisition Corporation
from the proceeds of a loan made by SISC, (ii) CMH transferred the stock of
Acquisition Corporation to Carte, (iii) in consideration for the transfer of
the Acquisition Corporation stock, Carte is to issue to CMH an aggregate of
1,000,000 shares of common stock, of which 450,000 shares are issuable on or
about the date Carte receives the proceeds from an initial public offering,
and (iv) Acquisition Corporation changed its corporate name to Creative
Socio-Medics Corp. At the time of the execution of the Purchase Agreement,
SISC granted to former officers of ACT and CSM, options to purchase an
aggregate of 202,560 shares of Carte's common stock owned by SISC. The shares
of common stock owned by SISC were transferred to CMH subject to the options.
The options are exercisable at an exercise price of $.174 per share during the
five-year period commencing on June 16, 1994, the date the acquisition of CsM
was consummated. At the closing of the acquisition, the Company issued to
such individuals an aggregate of 40,000 shares of its common stock. The
purchase price of this acquisition included $3,851 for customer lists of CSM
which will be amortized over 15 years under the straight line method. For
accouncing purposes, the results of operations of CSM are included with the
results of the Company from July 1, 1994 onward.

(iii) - As of September 30, 1994, the Company acquired International Magnetic
Imaging, Inc. and its affiliated entities ("IMI, Inc.") i1 a business
combination accounted for as a purchase, The principal operations of IMI,
Inc. Are in the establishment and operation of outpatient diagnostic centers
providing MRI services and other diagnostic modalities. The results of
cperations of IMI, Inc. are included in the accompanying combined financial
statements since the date of acgquisition. The total cost of the acquisition
was 531,872 which exceeded the fair value of net assets of IMI, Inc, By
$£11,069. The excess purchase price, or goodwill, will be amortized by the

szraight-line method over 20 years.

The other intangibles, specifically restrictive covenants and customer lists,
1l be amortized by the straight-line method over 3 years and 15 years,

Wiaa

respectively.
The following summarizes the purchase price allocated to acquired assets at
fzi:r value,

Cash S 6,960

Subordinated Debt 19,863

Sctock (3,343,000) 2,920

Notes [Covenants) BOO

Acguisition Costs 1,329

Purchase Cost $31.872
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(20) Acquisitions (continued)

Allocated to: .
Cash § 2,350
Ocher AsseLs 421
Covenants-Not-to-Compete 3,303
Property, Plant and Equipment 10,503
Accounts Receivable 7,379
Managed Care Contracts - Customer Lists 5,656
Liabilities Assumed ( 9,209)
Goodwill 11,069
Total $31,872

EEE .S .

The cash portion of the purchase price was subsequently refinanced through
DVI. The notes issued in connection with the acquisition of the centers
balloon primarily in September 1996, with notes in the principal amount of
S860 maturing ia September 1557. The notes issued to acquire the management
and radiology company, balloon and mature in September 1997 and 1999,
respectively. In connection with this acquisition, the Company, through its
subsidiaries, borrowed an aggregate of approximately $7.1 million on a
secured, term-loan basis over 60 months pursuant to loan and security
agreements among the Company's subsidiaries and DVI Financial Services, Inc.
dba DVI Capital. For accounting purposes, the results of operations of IMI
are included with the results of the Company from October 1, 1994 onward.

fiv) - In November 1994, the Company acquired the assets of two businesses,
Job Shop Technical Services, Inc. ("Job Shop*) and Computer Engineering
Services, Inc. (*CES*). Job Shop provides engineers, designers and technical

personnel on a temporary basis, which is similar to the business performed by
Avionics Research Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company. CES is engaged in
the business of performing CAD (computer aided design) and CAM (computer aided
manufacturing) related services and the marketing and sale CAD/CAM software.

ial - Pursuant tc an asset purchase agreement dated as of August 19, 1954
among ITS Management Corp., a Delaware Corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company ("ITS"), Job Shop and the sole stockholder of Job Shop, ITS
acquired substantially all of the assets of Job Shop in exchange for 750,000
shares of the Company's common stock valued at §$450, and the assumption of
cerctain scheduled liabilities. The principal liability assumed was a 52
m-llion obligation due to the Internal Revenue Service

pursuant to a settlement arrangement which Job Shop had negotiated. The
initial 5500 payment was made in November, 1994. The balance is due in 15

menthly installments of $100, commencing May, 1995,

(b) - Pursuant to a plan and agreement of reorganization among CDS Acquisition
Corp. ("CDS"), a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, CES and the sole stockholder of CES, CDS acquired substantially all
cf the assets of CES in exchange for 750.000 shares of the Company's common
stock valued at 5450, and the assumption of certain scheduled liabilities.
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(20) Acquisitions (continued)

Prior to the acquisition, the businesses of Job Shop and {ES were operated as
divisions of the same company, along with one other division which was not
acquired by the Company. For accounting purposes the results of operations of
ITS and CDS are included with the results of the Company from November 22,
1994 onward.

(v) - In May 1995, SIS Capital Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company ("SISC"), entered into an agreement among SISC, DLB, Inc. ("DLB"),
Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept Technologies Group, Inc, ("Concept"), pursuant
to which SISC, DLB and Mr. Sicinski transferred to Concept all of the issued
and outstanding common stock of Trans Global, in exchange for a controlling
interest in Concept. Concepts common stock and warrants are traded on the
NASDAQ Small Cap Market. Trans Global's common stock was owned by SISC
(91.6%), DLB (5.0%) and Mr. Sicinski (3.4%). DLB is owned by Ms. Carol
Schiller, wife of Mr. Lewis §. Schiller, the Company's chairman of the board,
president and chief executive officer. Mr. Schiller disclaims all beneficial
interest in the securities owned by DLB. Mr. Sicinski iu president of Trans
Global. Trans Global, which operates through two subsidiaries, ARC and RMI is
engaged in the business of grovidiug engineers, designers and other technical
personnel to its clients, which include major companies in the aerospace,
electronics and computer industries. Concept owns and operates Klipsch
Loudspeaker business, and, through a subsidiary, is the developer and owner of
proprietary technologies with applications in environmental noise
cancellation, medical monitoring, defense and communications. Following the
consummation of the transaction, the business of Trans Global became Concept's

principal business.

The following pro forma unaudited results assume the above four acquisitions
nad occurred ar the beginning of the indicated periods:

e ——— L L. L . R R R R

Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, July 31,

1995 15994 1994 1983
ler revenues €110,.781 $98,687 $101,939 $88,939
EEFETEE N EEEREE FEEEEER L 1 & & & B}

et income (loss) ($11,421) (811,948) (& 8,662) S 632
EEEEEE - e EEEEoE
:ncome (loss) per share s 0.5%1) (5. 0.786) ($ 1.,09) § 0.15
s==S=Rw L & B & 5 F - e . e EESSaw

The pro forma informaction is not necessarily indicative of either the results
=¢ operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been effective at

-

-he beginning of the indicated pericds or of the future results of operations.

F-49




i

Consolidated Technology p, Ltd. and Subsidiariesglh - -
| Notes to Consolidated Pindficial Statements
(in 000's except per share data)

---------------------------------------- e L L L T T T R R

(21) Sale of Majority Interest of Subsidiary

1994, the Company disposed of 61% if «te interest in
Universal International, Inc., ("Universal"), through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, SIS Capital Corp.; which owned 100% of Universal. The sale wan

| accounted for as a disposal of a portion of a line of business that is not

| considered a business segment. Other subsidiaries continue to operate in the

The sale resulted in a loss of approximately $33 which is

Effective January 1,

| business segment.

included in other income (expense).

of Universal at December 31, 1993 were approxima
Subsegquent to December 31, 1993, the investment in Universal is

respectively.

being accounted for under the equity method.

Following is a summary of

The revenues, gross profits and net loss
tely 5$160, $48 and ($40),

net assets and results of operations of Universal
31, 1993 and for tne

International, Inc. as of January 31, 1994 and July
| periods ended January 31, 1994 and July 31, 1993 and 1992:
January 31, July 31,
1994 1993
Cash $ 2 $ 6
| Receivables - Net 45 59
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 20 24
Other Assets B 28
Total AsseLs 75 117
ccounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 41 44
Accrued Payroll Taxes 105 97
Loans Payable 166 170
liet ASsers (s 237) (s 194)
Pericd from
August 1, 1932 For the For the
through Year ended Year ended
January 31, July 31, July 31,
1594 1993 1952
Fevenues S 155 S 611 s 727
Cssts and Expenses 238 740 793
liez [Loss) (s 43) (§- 129) (S 66)
EEF=ES mEEEEEE EEEEEE
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{22) Disposal of a Portion of a Line of Business

On July 31, 1991, the Company sold its 50,1% interest in:Trinity Holding Corp.
to one of the minority shareholders (Hugh Murphy) of the Trinity Holding Corp.
in exchange for one dollar and the waiver of significant emoluments granted by
the Company's Board in 1589%. At the date, liabilities exceeded assets by
$823. The excess of net liabilities over the net investment in Trinicy
Holding Corp. of $767 has been recorded as a gain on disposal of a segment.
During the fiscal year ended July 31, 1993, $562 in notes and loans receivable
from Trinity Holding Corp. were written off by the Company.

Following is a summary of ner assets of Trinity Holding Corp. as of July 30,
1591:

Cash $ 37
Receivables - Net 52
Property, Plant and Equipment - Net 7
Other Assets 17
Total Assets 113
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 86
Accrued Payroll Taxes 278
Notes Payable - Other 572
Net Assets (s 823)

(23) Extraordinary Item - Debt Restructuring

During the fiscal years ended July 31, 1993, certain creditor= agreed to
forgive debr totaling $153. The debt of $285 which was primarily owed to a
related party was included in additional paid-in capital at July 31, 1991.
The $146 forgiven in 1993, which was due to non-related entities, is reported
as an extraordinary item. In addition, in 1993, debt in the amount of $348
owed to the above entities, as well as others, was converted into Series A
preferred stock at & price of $5.0C per share (69,711 shares).

122) Unusual Item

In May 1993, cthe Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, SISC, completed
an agreement with a major financial institution settling a $6 million lawsuit
for damages filed against the institution and General Technologies Group Ltd.,
("GTG"), pursuant to a RICO action undercaken by Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, CEO of
the Company, alleging ongeoing fraud and conspiracy to defraud the Company in
connection with the Seguential Electronics Systems, Inc., ("SES"), transaction
2f June 3, 1987. The agreement gives the Company clear title to all the
shares of SES and includes the purchase of certain net assets and the
cperactions of GTG by 5-Tech, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company. The purchase
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{23) Unusual Item (continued)

by S-Tech, Inc. was completed June 30, 1993, and resulted -in the Company
acquiring net assets of $1,523 (representing appraised values). To the extent
that the Company recorded losses in prior periods through the write-down of
assets, the write-off of receivables, and other related expenses, in its prior
sale agreement with GTG (in excess of $1,600), the Company has recorded a one
time gain on the acguisition. §-Tech, Inc. remains liable on a2 note to the
financial institution arising from the above purchase.

-

{24) Subseguent Events
Holding Company:

Regulation S Offerings - Pursuant to an offering in January 1996 made under
Requlation S of the Securities Act cf 1933, the Company received net proceeds
of $500 in conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock.

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the first quarter of 1996, the
Company issued 3,635,379 shares of common stock upon the conversion of 27,914
shares of series A preferred stock.

During January 1996, the Company
Contract Engineering Services:

In January 1996, a publicly held subsidiary of the Company sold 500,000 shares
of its common stock pursuant to Regulation § of the Securities Act of 1933 and
received net proceeds of $500. The impact of this transaction on the Company
will be an increase in minority interest on the balance sheet of approximately
€500 and a dilution of ownership of approximately 2%. Such dilution is not
expected to be material in relationship to the financial statements as a
whole,

March 1996, a publicly held subsidiary of the Company held its annual

ting of stockholders at which time, among other things, the authorized
ferred stock was increased from 100,000 shares to 2,000,000 shares and the
zthorized common stock was increased from 4,000,000 shares to 20,000,000
res. The Company is due to receive an additional 1,510,000 shares of the
lic subsidiary's stock pursuant to the reverse merger agreement discussed
iootnote (18),(v), above and this will increase the Company's ownership by
roximately 25V%. Had this stock been received during 1995, the minority
erest in the loss of consolidated subsidiaries would have decreased by
roximately 51,000 which wouid have increased the consolidated loss by
roximately $1,000.
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{24) Subsequent Events (continued)

Medical Diagnostics:

In January 1996, a subsidiary of the Company obtained financing consisting of
a term loan of §2,000 and a revolver loan of §6,000. The majority of the
proceeds were used to pay current subordinated debt. In addition, other
current subordinated debt was reclassified to long-term per the loan
agreements. The pro forma effect of this financing on the December 31, 19395

balance sheet would be as follows:

Current assets £$26,965
Property and eguipment, net 11,034
Other assets 29,416
Total assers §67,415
Current liabilities $31,404
Lonj-term liabilities 22,995
Total liabilities 54,399
Minority interest 2,087
Stockholders' equity 10,929

Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity $67, 115

In February 1996, a subsidiary of the Company loaned $300 to an officer of the
subsidiary. The principal is due in 1998 and requires interest only paymentno
at a rate of 5.5%, payable annually.

Medical Information Services:

In February 1996 a subsidiary of the Company executed an agreement to purchase
an application software product known as SATC Software which processes retail
vlastic card transactions and merchant transactions for 5650 of which $325 was
vaid in February 1996 with the balance due in three installments in 1996. ;
~dditionally, the subsidiary entered into a joint venture with a company in
~nich the joint venture partner will pay the remaining balance for the SATC
Scitware as it:c contribution to the joint venture. The joint venture
agreement has not been finalized and the subsidiary remains liable for the
remaining $325 in any event. The Company has also guaranteed the subsidiary's
repayment of such amount.

~ subsidiary of the Company intends to enter into an agreement with a
consulting company pursuant to which the subsidiary would pay $25-§59 per
month for management level services. The agreement will continue to the year
2000 and alsoc provides for payment of a percentage of smart card and related
revenues generated by the subsidiary. Pursuant to the agreement, the
subsidiary is to pay the consulting company $250 for prior services rendered.
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(24) Subsequent Events (continued)

In 1996, a subsidiary of the Company si a letter of intent with an
underwriter for the sale of its securities through an initial public offering.
Add.itionally, in January 1996, the subsidiary borrowed $500 from four
accredited investors. In connection with such loans, the subsidiary issued
its 8% promissory notes due January 31, 1997, which are payable from the
proceeds of the subsidiary's initial public offering. The subsidiary also
agreed that if the initial public offering is completed prior to January 31,
1897, it would register, pursuant to the Securities Act and issue to the note
holders one unit for each §$2.00 principal amount of notes. The unit to be
issued to the note holders will mirror the units to be issued in the initial

public offering.

In January 1996, a subsidiary of the Company issued 11,250 shares of common
stock to its vice president for services rendered by him. The fair value of

such shares will be treated as compensation in 1996.

In March 1996, a subsidiary's agreement with a receivable factor was modified
to allow borrowings up to 80% of eligible receivables to a maximum of $1,000.
In consideration, the subsidiary will pay the factor (i) an annual fee of 510
and (ii) a monthly fee of $10. If the subsidiary receives equicy funds by the
way of an initial public offering or a private placement of at least $350, the
original borrowing availability will be reinstated and the subsidiary shall
pay the factor a $25 fee and issue it 25,000 shares of the subsidiary's common

stock.

{25) Commitments

Mr. Schiller has an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994 with the
Company pursuant to which it employs him as chief executive officer through
December 11, 1998 at an annual salary of $250, subject to an annual cost of
l:ving increase or 5%, whichever is greater. Mr. Schiller is also entitled to
a bonus equal to 10% of the Company's consolidated income before income taxes
.~ excess of $250. No bonus was payable for the year ended December 31, 1985.
The Company also granted to Mr. Schiller a five-year option to acguire 10% of
rhe Company's securities portfolio at 110% of the Company's cost.

¥r Mahoney has an employment agreement dated October 1, 1994, and suparseded
£ an agreement dated March 21, 1995, with the Company pursuant to which it
e=rloys him as chief financial officer through December 31, 1999. Mr. Mahoney
w:.1 receive a base salary of $165, §177, $189, $202 and $220 for the years
erding December 31, 1995, 1996, 1557, 1598 and 1999, respectively.
iAdditionally, Mr. Mahoney shall also receive incentive compensation equal to
ne greater of one percent of the net pretax profits or net cash flow of the
Company, plus the greater of one percent of the net pretax profit orn met cash
¢ ow of IMI (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), subject to a maximum

of twice Mr. Mahoney's base salary for the respective year. Mr. Mahoney's
bonus for the year ended December 31, 1995 approximates $35.
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(26) Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statements

The years ended December 31, 1994 and July 31, 1994 and 19593 financial
statements have been restated. The following summarizes and describes impact
of the restatement.

Year Ended

- = - - EEEESEE - -

Income (Loss) from Operations:
Prior to Restatement (§ 5,965) (§ 3,851) (§ 841)
Prior Period Adjustments:
Decrease in discount on shares

issued for stock options [1) (3,540) (5,870) .-
Reclass loss from discontinued

operations to operating

activity [2] -- aid (562)
Reclass stock option expense

from unusual to selling,

general and administrative

expenses [3) (300) (845) --
Decrease in discount on shares

issued in lieu of cash payment

for services rendered [4] (36) -- =T
Decrease in discount on shares
issued for acquisitions [5) {338) == i

Reclass goodwill write-off from
other expense to selling, general

and administrative expenses (6] {285) -- --
As restated {610,464} ({$10,566) ($ 1,4013)
EEEEEE FE-3 1 & § EEEEES

Octher Income (Expense):
Prior to Restatement ($ 1,657) ($ 1,253) $ 1,942
Frior Pericd Adjustments:
Feclass stock cption expense

from unusual to selling,

general and administrative

expenses [3) 300 84S =
Reclass goodwill write-off from

cther expense to selling, general

and administrative expenses [6] 285 -- =2
A5 restcated ($ 1,072) (s 408) $ 1,942
EswssN EEEEEE EEEsE
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(26) Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statements (continued)
Year Endld

Loss from Discontinued
Operations:

Prior to Restatement

Prior Period Adjustments:
Reclass loss from discontinued
operations to operating
activicy [2)

As restated

Net Income (Loss):
Prior to Restatement
Prior Period Adjustments:

Decrease in discount on
shares issued for stock
options [1)

Decrease in discount on shares
issued in lieu of cash payment
for services rendered [4)

Decrease in diﬂcaun: on shares
issued for acquisitions [5]

hs restated

Accumulated Deficict:
Prior to Restatement
Prior Period Adjustments:

Decrease in discount on
shares issued for stock
options [1]

Decrease in discount on shares
issued in lieu of cash payment
for services rendered [4]

Decrease in discount on shares
issued for acquisitions (5]

ASs restated

------
-

($ 7,514)

(3,540)

(36)

($11,428)

{$23,044)

{5,870)

(36)

($29,288)

F-56
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(& 4,902)

(5,870)

{$10,772)

($18,932)

{(5,870)

($24,802)

L R - -

1993
($ 562)
§ 562

e
$ 740
$ 740

EERTE®
(514,030)
($14,030)
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(26) Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statements (continued)
Year «Ended

Additional Paid-in Capital,

Common Stock:
Prior to Restatement £39,353 §15,861 $16,752
Prior Period Adjustments:
Decrease in discount on

shares issued for stock

cptions [1] 5,870 5,870 - -
Decrease in discount on shares

issued in lieu of cash payment

for services rendered (4] a6 - =
Decrease in discount on shares

issued for acquisitions (5] 138 e .-
As rectated $45,597 §41,731 516,752

[1] - The Company originally used a 60% discount for valuing shares issued and
exercised pursuant to a Non Employee Directors, Consultan:s and Advisors Stock
Plan and it was suhaeguently determined that only a 20% discount should be
used resulting in an increase in noncash expenses of $3,540 for the year ended
December 31, 1994 and $5,870 for the year ended July 31, 1994.

(2] - The Company originally presented $562 of losses from the discontinuation
of a part of a line of business as a discontinued item and such losses are now
included in income (loss) from operations.

(3] - The Company originally included $845 of noncash expenses from the
1ssuance and exercise of stock options pursuant to a Non Employee Directors,
Consultants and Advisors Stock Plan as an unusual expense in other income and
expense. Such expense has been reclassified as an operating expense of $300
‘or the year ended December 31, 1994 and $845 for the year ended July 31,

15994,

[4] - The Company originally used a 50% discount for valuing shares issued in
iieu of cash payment for services rendered and it was subsequently determined
that only a 20% discount should be used resulting in an increase in noncash
expenses of $36 for the year ended December 31, 1994.

[S] - The Company originally used a 50% discount for valuing shares issued in
connection with the acquisition of a subsidiary and it was subsequently
determined that only a 20% discount should be used resulting in an increase in
nocncash expenses of $338 for the year ended December 31, 1954.
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(26) Restatements of Prior Period Financial Statements (continued)

(6] - The Company originally included $285 of goodwill write-offs in other
income and expense. Such expense has been reclassified as an operating
expense for the year ended December 31, 1994.

----------------------------------
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- SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the regquirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed
on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP, LTD.
Date: April 10, 1596 /8/

Lewis 5. Schiller
Chairman of the Board

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this

report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/S/ President and Director April 10, 19596
-------------------- (Principal Executive

Lewis S. Schiller Officer)

/s/ Chief Financial Officer April 10, 1996
-------------------- (Principal Financial and

George W. Mahoney Accounting Officer)

/5/ Director April 10, 1996
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Norman J. Hoskin
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Consolidated ncnnnzomr.wp Ltd. and suhuamu.

December 31, 1955
EX-11.1 Calculation of Earnings per Shar

............ e e e o om oo om oo w =

Year Ended
December 31,
1995
Net Loss {$11,360,000)
ErFEEEEEED
Loss per Share:
Loss per share - Note 1 $(0.53)
Loss per Share - assuming full
dilution - Note 2 $(0.33)

Note 1:

Computed by dividing the net loss for the period by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding (22,423,035 for the year ended December
31, 1995). No stock options, warrants or preferred convertible stock are
assumed to be exercised because they are anti-dilutive for the periods. The
weighted average number of common shares outstanding is calculated by
weighting common shares issued during the period by the actual number of days
that such shares are outstanding for the period.

Note 2:

(i) Assumes that the 6,000,000 common shares issued pursuant to the exercise
of stock options were outstanding as of the beginning of the year.

{ii) Assumes that a warrant to purchase 1,000,000 common shares at $0.75 per
chare was exercised at the beginning of the year, and that all proceeds from
such exercise were used to purchase treasury stock at a price equal to the
average market price of the Company's common shares for the respective period

as guoted on the NASD.

ii) Assumes that at the beginning of the year, the 66,596 remaining shares

preferred convertible stock were converted tc common shares at the
version rate of 130.20833 shares of common for each share of convertible

ferred stock

-
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Consolidated Technology Mo 1ca. ana subsidiaries &

Consolidated Balance Sheets
{dollars in 000D's)

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net of allowances
Inventories

Loans receivable

Prepaid expenses and cother
current assets

Excess of accumulated costs over
related billings

Investments in common stock

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other assets:

Capitalized software development costs
Goodwill, net

Covenant not toc compete, net

Customer lists, net

Deferred offering costs

Receivables, long-term

Receivables, related parties
Trademark, net

Investments in common stock, long-term
Ocher Assets

Total other assets

Toctal Assetrs

See notes to consolidated financial stacementcs.

2

March 31,
1996

- = ===

$ 1,546
21,169
3,636
iss

E10
1,110

-

28,669

$68,528

December 31,
199§

§ 1,636
19,216
3,701
396

436

1,002
20

- -

26,407

------

§66,312




Consolidated Balance

Consolidated Tachmlag*oup Ltd. and Eublldiltin.
8 ts

(dollars in 000's)

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued interest
Income taxes payable
Interim billings in excess of costs
and estimated profits
Notes payable, related parties
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of subordinated debt
Current portion of capitalized
lease obligations

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Long-term debt
Capitalized lease cbligations
Subordinated debt

Total long-term liabilities

Minority interest

Shareholders' Equity:

Preferred stock
Additional paid-in capital,
preferred stock
Common stock (50,000,000 shares
authorized, 35,290,664 and 26,655,071
shares issued and outstanding as of
March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1955,
respectively)
hdditional paid-in capital, common stock
Accumulated deficic
Unrealized gain (loss) on exchange translation
Net unrealized gain on long-term
investments in common stock

Total shareholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

3

March 31,
1996

- ==

-

155

a53
51,574

(41,127)
23

206

11,226

______

§68,528

EEEEEE

December 31,
1995

$11,095
2,332
284

269

1,701
250

9,080
13,354

- -

267
51,020
(40, 648)

(17)

$66,312

EEEEEs




- Consolidated Technol oup Ltd. and subsidiarief)
Consolidated Statement Operations
(dollars in 000's except per share data)

March 31,
1596 1995
Revenues $26,513 $28,410
Direct Costs 20,699 23,327
Gross Profit 5,814 5,082
Selling, General and Administrative 5,747 6,396
Income (loss) from operations 67 (1,313)
Other Income (Expense):
Interest Expinse (963) (984)
Other Income 164 78
Gair (Loss) from Security Sales 37 (120)
Total Other Expense- Net (762) (1,026)
Loss Before Income Taxes and Minority Interest '695) (2,339)
Income Taxes (76) : (44)
Minority Interest in (Gain) Loss of Subsidiaries 292 (5)
Net Loss (s 479) (§ 2,388)
EEEEES - 2 5 F b )
Loss per Common Share (6§0.01) (§0.13)
L 3 3 & & | ] -
Weighted Average Number
of Common Shares 33,671,873 18,766,149
EEEEFESEEE ErIFEEEEREEE

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Technology G.p Ltd.-and- Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for
Three Months Ended March 31, 199%c

(dollars in 000's)

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, 6%
Series A 77,713 shares authorized:

Beginning balance
Conversion of Series A to common stock

Ending balance

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, $3.50 and $.10
Series B & E 8,000 shares authorized each:

Beginning balance
Ending balance

Preferred stock, $1.00 par value, $8.00
subordinated Series F, 6,000 shares authorized:

Beginning balance

Ending balance

Total preferred stock - par

Additional paid-in capital,

preferred stock:

Beginning balance

Conversion of Series A to common stock

Ending balance

Common stock, $0.01 par value,
50,000,000 shares authorized:

Beginning balance

Issuance for offerings
Conversion of Series A preferred

Ending balance

Additional paid-in capital, common stock:
Beginning balance

Issuance for offerings

Conversion of Series A preferred

Ending balance

the
Shares Amounts
66,596 § 67
(27,921) (28)
38,675 § a9
PEEETEEREEEE Lty 1§ |
262 § 1
L 1 1 ¥ 3§ &2 0 5 0 § 4 mEEEEE
262 $ 1
EoEsOEESES EEEEEs
2,700 5 2
EEESETEEERE L 4 1 & 33 |
2,700 § 2
EEEEEEESIEE EmEmoEm
41,637 § 42
T F T T it EEEEEE
5 266
(111)
$ 155
EEEsEm
26,655,071 § 267
5,000,000 50
3,6135,59) 36
35,290,664 S is3
EEEEETROEEER ERoERES
§51,020
450
104
§51,574
-.---H
{continued)

See notes to consolidated financial statemencs.
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- Consolidated -recnnolom Ltd..and Subsidiarief -
Consolidated Statements ©f Shareholders' Equity for the
Three Months Ended March 31, 1956
* (dollars in 000's)

Shares Amounte

Accumulated deficic:

Beginning balance ($40,648)
Net loss (479)
Ending balance ($41,127)
EEEEEE
Unrealized exchange translation:
Beginning balance ($ 17)
Unrealized gain on exchange translation 40
Ending balance S 23
L 1 1 3 0 1]
Net unrealized gain (loss) on long-
term investments in common stock:
Beginning balance $ 8%
Net unrealized investment security gains 117
Ending balance g 2086
FEEEREE
Total shareholders' equity §11,226
L r ¥ 1 4 ] ]
(concluded)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Technology ‘p Ltd: and-Subsidiaries .

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(dollars in 000's)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and Amortization
Write-off goodwill
Loss on disposal of assets
Minority interest in loss of
consolidated subsidiaries
Bad debt expense
Option exercise expense
Noncash expenses paid with the issuance of stock
(Gain) loss on marketable securities
Change in current assets and current liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Excess of accumulated costs over
related billings
Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Accrued interest
Income taxes payable
Interim billings in excess of costs
and estimated profits

Total adjusctments
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
(Increase) decrease in other assets

Capital expenditures

lnvestments in common stock

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities
Capitalized software development cOStS
Fayments for loans made

Ccllections for repayment of lcans made

Ner cash used in investing activities

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

7

Three Months Ended

March 11,
1996 1995
479 ($ 2,388)
1,626 1,591
192

99 --
(292) -
238 232
- 740
=x 67
(37) 120
(2,191) 137
65 (11)
(374) 314
(108) -
(883) 6B6
2,732 712
.08 3
75 -
(385) (655)
865 3,936
ige 1,548
105 105
{1,176) (174;
(325) ==
128 165
{1) (63)
(1,011) (122)
926 77
{1,354) {i=)
{continued)




Consolidated Technol up Ltd. and Suhlidiui..
Consolidated Statement Cash Flows
(dollars in 000's)

Three Months Ended

March 31,
19596 1895

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Deferred offering costs {(114) (15)

Net payments to factor (1,179) --

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 9,001 --

Repayment of long-term debt (1,046) (€90)

Repayment of subordinated debt (6,333) (656)

Payments on capital leases (326) (278)

Issuance of common stock 500 .-

Subsidiary's issuance of common stock 375 --

Exercise of stock options - 725
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities 78 1214)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents (90) 622
Cash and Cash Equivalents at

Beginning of Period 1,636 1,727
Cash and Cash Equivalents at

End of Period £ 1,546 ¢ 2,349
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash

Flow Information:
Cash Paid for:

Interest = 855 $ 981

Income Taxes s - 5 -

(concluded)

Supplemental Disclosures of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities:

During the three month period ended March 31, 1995:
(1) - Acquired equipment under capital lease obligations with a net present
value of $39,
(2} - Issued stock options and received exercise proceeds of §725 and
incurred noncash deferred consulting fees of 51,235 and noncash
consulting fee expenses of $740.

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Technology ‘p. Led. and Iu.bsi.dl.l:hl.
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

(dollars in 000's)

B T L L T - R EEREREEERERERRR R R R TSR R e ow = =

(1) In the opinion of the Company, the accompanying unaudited financial
statements contain all adjustments (consisting of only normal recurring
accruals) necessary to present fairly the financial position of the Company as
or March 31, 1996 and December 31, 1995 and the results of its operations and
changes in cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 1996 and 1995,

{2) The accounting policies followed by the Company are set forth in Note 1 to
the Company's financial statements in the December 31, 1995 Form 10-K.

(3) The results of operations for the three months ende2 March 31, 1996 and
1995 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expectad for the full

year.

(4) Loss Per Share - Loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss for
the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. For
purposes of computing weighted average number of common shares outstanding the
Company has common stock equivalents consisting of stock options and warrants
and Series "A" Preferred Convertible Stock. The Series "A" Preferred Stock
was deemed to be a common stock egquivalent when issued. The common stock
equivalents are assumed converted to common stock, when dilutive. During
periods ot operations in which losses were incurred, common stock eguivalents
were excluded from the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
bscause their inclusion would be anti-dilutive,

{5) Industry Segments:

The Company currently classifies its operations inio eight business
segments: (1) Contract Engineering Services consists of subsidiaries that
provide engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary basis
pursuant to contracts with major corporacions; (ii) Medical Diagnostics
consists of a subsidiary that performs magnetic resonance imaging and cother
medical diagnostic services; (iii) Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
Products Manufacturing consists of subsidiaries that manufacture and sell
products such as devices that measure distance and velocity, instrumentation
devices, debit card vending machines and industrial lighting products; (iv)
Medical Information Services consists of subgidiaries that provide medical
information database services, health care industry related software packages
and the CarteSmart medical identification cards ancd related software program;

Telecommunications consists of a subsidiary that, among other things,
:nstalls telephonic network systems and buys and resells local telephone
ervice; (vi) Three Dimensional Products and Services consists of subsidiaries
tnat provide three dimensional imaging services that are used in a variety of
applications, such as proto-type building and reverse engineering; (vii) Audio
Visual Manufacturing and Services consists of a subsidiary that manufactures
anc sells a professional line of loudspeakers, and (viii) Business Consulting
Services consists of subsidiaries that provide a variety of financial and
business related services. Corporate and Other consists of the operating
activities of the holding company entities. Intersegment sales and sales
outside the United States are not material. Information concerning the
Company's business segments is as follows:

T 1 e




- Consolidated 'I‘ichnologygmrp. Ltd. and subsidiarielf)
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

, (dollars in 000's)

Three Months Ended

lech 31,
Segments: 1996 1995
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services $131,471 §17,800
Medical Diagnostics 8,114 7,027
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
Products Manufacturing 649 1:373
Medical Information Services 2,561 1,427
Telecommunications 742 390
Three Dimensional Products and Serv;ces 298 589
Audico Visual Manufacturing and Services 671 .-
Business Consulting Services 7 6
Total Revenues §26,513 $28,410
EEEEEE ErEasEw
Gross Profit:
Contract Engineering Services § 834 § 612
Medical Diagnostics 3,841 3,393
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
Products Manufacturing 94 363
Medical Information Services 662 369
Telecommunications 40 57
Three Dimensional Products and Services 200 283
hudio Visual Manufacturing and Services 137 ==
Business Consulting Services [ 6
Total Gross Profit § 5,814 $ 5,083
EEESAaw EEEEEE
Income (Loss) from Operations:
Contract Engineering Services (% 254) (% 294)
Medical Diagnostics 1,883 1,496
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical
Products Manufacturing (169) (4)
Medical Information Services 202 (436)
Telecommunications {280) (214)
Three Dimensional Products and Services (450) (415)
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services (143) -
Business Consulting Services (9) (6)
Corporate and other {7113) (1,440)
Total Income (Loss) from Operations $ 67 ($ 1,313)
mEEEEE= - ...

10




Consolidated Technology r-Ltdr lnd~-8uh:1dilr1..
Notes to Consolidated F cial Statements
(dollars in 000's)

------------------------- e S e e

{5) Industry Segments (continued):
Three Months Ended

March 31,

Segments: 1996 1595
Net Income (Loss):
Contract Engineering Services (& 324) § (574)
Medical Diagnostics 1,196 833
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing (171) (4)
Medical Information Services B8 (467)
Telecommunications (301) - (222)
Three Dimensional Products and Services (218) (416)
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services (158) *=
Business Consulting Services (9) (8)
Corporate and other (582) (1,539)
Total Net Income (Loss) (s 479) (§ 2,388)
Depreciation and Amortization:
Contract Engineering Services $ 114 $ 128
Medical Diagnostics 1,242 1,253
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 16 8
Medical Information Services 109 132
Telecomnunications B 8
Three Dimensional Products and Services 90 59
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 41 e
Business Consulting Services 1 1
Corporate and other 5 2
Total Depreciation and Amgrtization $ 1,626 $ 1,591

EREEEESE EEEREES

Capital Expenditures:
Contract Engineering Services $ 19 $ 11
Medical Diagneostics 1,121 47
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optrical

Products Manufacturing -- 4
Medical Information Services 20 4
Telecommunications - o
Three Dimensional Products and Services - 80
Audlio Visual Manufacturing and Services 12 -
Business Consulting Services -= -
Corporate and other 4 18
Total Capital Expenditures $ 1,176 § 174

[T R F & 1 T T TR

11




Consolidated Technology.mp, Ltd. and Bublidia.ri.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in 000's)

R ————————————— e e e L L R R R T -

(5) Industry Segments (continued):

At March 31,

Segments: 1996 1995
Identifiable Assets:

Contract Engineering Services s 7,421 510,287
Medical Diagnostics 42,362 39,989
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 3,716 4,352
Medical Information Services 7,545 5,929
Telecommunications 1,257 1,094
Three Dimensional Products and Services 1,114 2,330
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 1,731 --
Business Consulting Services 257 261
Corporate and other 3,125 2,279
Total Identifiable Assets 568,528 £66,521

EEEEEe L 1 & 1 3 1]

(6} Equity:

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock - During the three months ended March
31, 1996, the Company issued 3,635,593 shares of commcn stock upon the
conversion of 27,921 shares of series A preferred stoct.

Regulation § Offerings - Pursuant to an offering in January 1996 made under
Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933, the Company received net proceeds
of 5500 in conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares cZ common stock.

{7) Reverse Merger:

On May 8, 1995 SIS Capital Corp. (“SISC"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, transferred all of its equity ownership in Trans Global Services,
Inc. (“Trans Global") to Concept Technologies Group, Inc. ("Concept”),
pursuant to an agreement dated as of March 31, 1995, among SISC, DLB, Inc. ,
("DLB*), Joseph G. Sicinski and Concept in exchange for a controlling interest
in Concept. Concept's common stock and warrants are traded on the Nasdaq
smallCap Market. Trans Global's common stock was owned by SISC (91.6%), DLB
{5 .0%) and Mr. Sicinski (3.4%). DLB is owned by Ms. Carol Schiller, wife of
Mr. Lewis S. Schiller, the Company's chairman of the board, president and
chief executive officer. Mr. Schiller disclaims all beneficial interest in
the securities owned by DLB. The acquisition by Concept of the Trans Global
stock in exchange for Concept's capital stock is referred to as the "Trans

Global Transaction".

Pursuant to the Trans Global Transaction:

{i) - Warrants to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of Trans Global
common stock held by SISC (475,000 shares) and DLB (25,000 shares) were

12




Consolidated Technology .up. Ltd. and snhlidilrin.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
{dollars in 000's)

W R R R R R R e e E R R R e e e e eET eSS ERTRsE e =

(7) Reverse Merger (continued):

exchanged for Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrants ("Series B Warrants*)
to purchase an aggregate of 500,000 shares of Common Stock until May S5, 1957,

fii) - Concept issued to SISC 850,000 shares of Common Stock, Series B
Warrants to purchase 475,000 shares of Common Stock at $3.50 per share, 23,750
shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which will be converted into 1,900,000
shares of Common Stock upon the filing of the Certificate of Amendment, 23,750
shares of each of Series B and C Preferred Stock, which are convertible into
an aggregate of 2,375,000 shares of Common Stock if certain levelr of income
before income tax are met, and 25,000 shares of Concept's Series D Freferred
Stock, which is not convertible and which has a redemption price of
approximately $1,700. SISC has deferred taking the physical delivery of
400,000 of the shares of Common Stock issuable in order to provide Concept
with flexibility in issuing shares of Common Stock.

(iii) - Concept issued to DLB in respect of its Trans Global stock and
warrants, 50,000 shares of Common Stock, Series B Warrants to purchase 25,000
shares of Common Stock, 1,250 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, which are
convertible into 100,000 shares of Common Stock upon the filing of the
Certificate of Amendment, and 1,250 shares of each of Series B and C Preferred
Stock, which are convertible into an aggregate of 125,000 shares of Common
Stock if certain levels of income before income taxes are attained.

(iv) - Concept issued to Mr. Sicinski, 100,000 shares of Common Stock.

As a result of the Trans Global Transaction, SISC owned, at the closing,
approximately 32.2% of the outstanding Common Stock, and 59.3% of the voting
rights on all matters, including the election of directors, except where the
holders of Common Stock are required by law to vote as a single class. Upon
the filing of the Certificate of Amendment, based on outstanding Common Stock
as of the closing date, SISC would own 59.3% of the ocutstanding Common Stock.

{8} Pro Forma Results:

The following pro forma unaudited results assume that rhe reverse merger in
Note (7) had occurred at the beginning of the indicated periods:

Three Months Ended

March 21,

1996 1995
et revenues § 26,513 § 29,000
EmmsEER L7 5 3 5 3 ¥ |
Net income (loss) (s 479) s (1,987)
EESEEER EEEEEER
Income (loss) per share (s 0.01) $ (0,11)
EEEEaEN T P I T 0 7|
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- Consolidated Technnlogy.gu . -Ltd. .and .Subsidiarie
Notes to Consolidated F cgnl Statements
_fdollars in 000's)

e e e L

(8) Pro Forma Results (continued):

The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative of either the results
of operations that would have occurred had the acquisition been effective at
the beginning of the indicated periods or of the future results of operations.

(9) Subseguent Events
Regulation S Offerings:

Pursuant to an offering in April 1996 made under Regulation § of the
Securities Act of 1933, the Company received net proceeds of $250 in
conjunction with the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of cummon stock.

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock:

From the period April 1, 1996 through May 8, 1996, the Company issued
approximately 1,418,976 shares of common stock upon the conversion of 23,650
shares of series A preferred stock.

Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors Stock Options:

On August 20, 1993, the Company authorized a stock option plan for
Non-Employee Directors, Consultants and Advisors to pro'ride compensation for
services rendered to the Company in lieu of cash paymen:s. Pursuant to the
plan during April 1996, 200,000 shares were issued for no cash consideration,
resulting in $45 of consulting costs computed as follows:

Shares 200,000
Value of stock at date of grant $0.28125
Full value of stock 56
20% discount {11)
Discounted value of stock 45
Exercise proceeds -
Total consulting costs 45

Sale of Common Stock Investments to an Officer:

During April 1996, the chief executive officer of the Company exercised an
option to purchase common stock investments held by the Company at 110% of the
book value of such investments. The purchase of such investments was
consummated in a noncash transaction and such officer is to issue a note in
tavor of the Company without interest and payable within five years from the
dace of the purchase. Total receivables outstanding under such sale
approximates $445 of which §72 relates to such exercises that occurred during
the year ended December 131, 1995.
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Consclidated Technology ‘IP. Ltd.. and Buhsidilrinl.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(dollars in 000's)

(9) Subsequent Events (continued):

Restated Employment Agreement:

During May 1996, the chief executive officer's ("CEO") employment contract was
restated, effective as of January 1956, and supersedes the contract dated
October 1, 1994. Per the terms of the amended contract the CEO shall receive
a salary of $250 per year through the year 2000, the expiration date of the
contract. The annual compensation may be increased from time to time by the
Board of Director's of the Company and commencing January 1, 1996 and on each
January 1 thereafter during the term of the contract, the CEO shall receive an
increase in annual compensation egqual to the greater of (A) 5% of his salary
in effect prior to the increase or (B) the cost of living increase as
determined per the Consumers Price Index as published by the Bureau of Labor
Statistics of the United States Department of Labor. In addition, the CEO is
entitled to a bonus equal to 10% of the amount by which the greater of (A) the
Company's consolidated income before taxes, determined in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or (B) the Company's consolidated net
cash flow exceeds $350. Net cash flow is calculated as consolidated net
income, plus depreciation, amorctization and other noncash items of expense,
minus payments of principal amounts of indebtedness, all determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Additional benefits
to be received by the CEO include: (a) four weeks paid vacation; (b)
disability insurance providing for the payment to the CEC of a minimum of 60%
of his salary; (c) life insurance with a face value of $2,000, payable to the
CEO's designated beneficiary; (d) health, vision and dental insurance; and (e)
an automobile to be provided to the CEO by the Company. FPurthermore, the
restated employment agreement confirms the grant to the CEQO of option to
purchase 10% of any equity interest now held by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries. The option shall be exercisable durin¢g the 5 year period
commencing on the later of the date of this agreemen: or the date the Company
acqguires the securities. The exercise price of the uption shall be egual to
110% of the Company's cost of such securities as determined i accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Payment of the option exercise
price shall be made by the CEO within 5 years from the date of the exercise,
without interest.
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- Item 2. Management's Di sion and Analysis of Fﬂ:.il]. Condition and

Results of Operations ( lars in 000's)
FINANCIAL CONDITION

LIQUIDITY:

As of December 31, 1995, it was determined that the ability of the Company to
continue as a going concern was dependent upon the success of the Company's
subsidiary's marketing efforts and their efforts to obtain sufficient funding
to enable them to continue operations. MNanagement believes that the Company
has made progress in achieving these goals during the guarter based on the

following:
Improved Operating Results:

The Company has a significant reduction in loss for the 1996 quarter compared
to 1995 in six of the eight segments and also shows a significant Tsduction in
corporate and other expenses. On an overall basis, the net loss for the
quarter was $1,909 less than in the prior comparable periocd.

Debt Refinancing:

In January 1996, the Company refinanced a significant rtion of the current
subordinated debt that was to be paid in 1996. Such financing consisted of a
term loan of $2,000, a revolver loan of $6,000 and the extension of
approximately $7,600 of subordinated balloon payments from a 1996 due date to
a 2001 due date. At the time of the ratinnncing the effect was a reduction
of current debt of approximately $8,363.

L

Improved Working Capital Condition:

As of December 31, 1995, the Company had a working cajital deficit of $13,360.
As of March 31, 1996, this working capital deficit has been reduced to §3, 180,
in large part to the aforementioned debt refinancing. The Company's continued
ability to reduce the working capital deficit relies primarily on the success
of continuing efforts to increase the profitability of the underlying
subsidiaries and a proposed additional refinancing of current debt which would
result in a shift $4,000 of current debt, due in September 1996, to a
long-term maturity in the Medical Diagnostics segment. As further explained
in the following "Sources of Cash" discussion, restrictions exist with regards
to the Company's use of the Medical Diagnostics segment's cash.

Froposed Equity Offerings:

“he Company currently has filed a registration statement for the sale of
securities of a subsidiary in the medical services segment. Such subsidiary
received a loan of $500 during the gquarter with respect to a proposed offering
which is payable in January of 1557 or earlier at the completion of the
offering. Additionally, a subsidiary operating in the contract engineering
services segment (which is already publicly held), has received a letter of
intent to raise additional capital. No assurances can be given, however, that
such offerings will be ultimately consummated.
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Item 2. Management's m-*im-md- Analysis of Fhu...l Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

FINANCIAL CONDITION:
LIQUIDITY (continued):
CAPITAL RESOURCES:

Sources of Cash:

The Company's principal working capital consists of cash and cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents were §$1,546 at March 31, 1956 compared to $1,636 at
December 31, 1995. During the three months ended March 31, 1996, the
Company's operations generated $386 of cash from operations of which the
medical diagnostics segment company, International Magnetic Imaging, ("IMI")
generated approximately $275 from operations while the remaining segments
generated approximately $111 from operations. Pursuant to an IMI financing
agreement with a creditor, restrictions exist on the distributions of IMI
funds whereby IMI may not make payments ocut of the ordinary course of IMI
cperations and specifically, not to the parent company, (Congolidated), or any
subsidiary or affiliate. The other segments are thereby required to operate
on their own cash flows and as of March 31, 1996 the most significant impact
from these restrictions is on the Three Dimensional Products and Services
segment which is currently unable to operate without cash infusions from the
parent company, (Consolidated). It is imperative that this segment obtain
alternative sources of funding (i.e. equity offerings, creditor financing or
increased volume), in order to continue as an operating se t. The
remaining segments were relatively unaffected by the restrictions on IMI's
cash since they operated substantially with their own cash flows. Other
significant sources of cash includes proceeds from the issuance of long-term
debt of 59,001, proceeds from the issuance of stock of $875, collections on
repayments of notes receivable of $926 and proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities of $128.

Uses of Cash:

Uses of cash includes the repayment of long-term and subordinated debt of
£7,379, capital expenditures of $1,176, payments on capital leases of $326,
advances on notes receivables of $1,011, purchases of investments of $325 and
net repayments to factors of §1,179. Other net sources and uses of cash
amounted to 510.

Thanges in Other Working Capital Assets and Liabilities:

The other significant changes in working capital includes an increase in
accounts receivable of $2,191 (primarily fr-m increased revenues of the
medical diagnostics segment) and an increas« in accounts payable, accrued
expenses and accrued payroll and related expenses of approximately $1,849
(pramarily from an increase in payroll and payroll related obligations of the
cocntract engineering services segment) .
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- Item 2. Management's Di sion and Analysis of F ial Condition and
Results of Operations (dOllars in 000's)

* FINANCIAL CONDITION:

CAPITAL RESOURCES (continued):
Effect of Loan Defaults:

The Company is in default on loans approximating $1,000 as of March 31, 1996,
Such defaults have not had, and are not expected to have a significant impact

on the operations of the related segments. The creditors have not called such
locans and are working under extended repayment terms.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS:

Consolidated cperating profits increased by $1,380 from an operating loss of
$1,313 for the 1995 quarter to operating income of $67 for the 1996 gQuarter.
This improvement in operating results was achieved by an increase in overall
gross margins of $731 and a reduction in operating costs of $649. Such
advances in profitability were achieved in spite of a $1,897 decrease in
revenues. The decrease in revenues is attributed to the contract engineering
services segment which on January 1, 1956 lost a contract wicth one of its
significant customers. By the end of the quarter this segment had recovered
approximately 60% of such lost revenues with new customers. This segments
decline in revenues was partially offset by revenues in the audio visual
manufacturing and services segment which was not a part cf the Company's
operations in the 1995 quarter. On an overall basis, the consclidated net
loss for the 1996 quarter compared to 1995 decreased by $1,909 or BO%.

The percentage of relative contribution to revenues, gross profit, and selling
general and administrative expenses by industry segment is shown in the
following tables. Changes within the individual industry segments themselves
1s discussed further within the respective industry segment discussions.
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Item 2. Management's ni'*inn -and -Analysig -of F al Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

e L R

Three Months Ended

: March 31,
Segmencs 1496 1885
Revenues:
Contract Engineering Services 50% 62%
Medical Diagnostics 0% 25%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 2% 4%
Medical Information Services 10% 5%
Telecommunications 3% 1%
Three Dimensional Products and Services 1% 2%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 3% -~
Business Consulting Services 1% 1%

Three Months Ended
March 31,
Segments 19896 1595
Gross Profit:
Contract Engineering Services 14% 12%
Medical Diagnostics 66% 66%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical .

Products Manufacturing 2% 7%
Medical Information Services 11% 7%
Telecommunications 1% 1%
Three Dimensional Products and Services % 6%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 2% e
Business Consulting Services 1% 1%

Three Months Ended
March 31,
Segments 1996 1995
s=lling, General and Administrative Expenses:
Contract Engineering Services 19% 14%
Medical Diagnostics 4% 29%
Electro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical

Products Manufacturing 5% 6%
Medical Information Services 8% 13%
Telecommunications 6% 4%
Three Dimensional Products and Services 11% 10%
Audio Visual Manufacturing and Services 5% "
Business Consulting Services 1% 1%
Corporate and Other 11% 23%

e T Lt T
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* Item 2. Management's ni&.sion and Analysis of P ial Condition and
Results of Operations | lars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

Discussion of Operations by Segment:
(References to 1996 and 1995 correspond to the three month periods then ended)

Contract Engineering Services - This segment is engaged in the business of
providing engineers, designers and technical personnel on a temporary basis to
major corporations. Comparing 1996 to 1995, revenues decreased 24% while
gross margins increased 36%. The decrease in revenues is actributed to the
loss of a contract on January 1, 1996, from one of the segwent's significant
customers. By the end of the gquarter, the segment had recovered approximately
60%Y of the lost revenue. The increase in the gross margin is due to the fact
that the remaining customers, as well as the newly acquired customers,
generated higher margins than the significant customer that was lost.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 20%. This increase
primarily resulted from $250 in accrued penalties on late payroll tax
withholding obligations and $80 of noncash expenses assnciated with the
issuance of stock for consulting services. Other income and expense items
decreased 75% as a result of lower interesc expense from more favorable
financing terms than those that existed in the prior period. Management
believes that with this segment's current selling, general and administrative
structure, it can improve its operating results through revenue growth.
However, such growth is inherently dependent upon its ability to obtain
adequate funding and accordingly, no assurance can be given about the ultimate

profitability of this segment.

Medical Diagnostics - This segment is engaged in the business of performing
MRI and other diagnostic modality procedures in the health industry.

Comparing 1996 to 1995 revenues and gross margins increased 16% and 13%,
respectively. The increase in revenues is due to increases in scan procedure
volume which was partially offset by decreasing reimbursement ratec.

Selling, general and administrative expenses remained relatively level,
increasing only 3%. Other income and expense items remained relatively level
and net income increased by 44% as a result of maintaining level operating
costs while revenues were increasing. Typically, this segment has its
greatest revenue activity in the first gquarter and management anticipates that
revenues and gross margin in the remaining quarters of 1996 will be moderately
less while operating expenses will remain relatively level, whici. is
consistent with the past performance of this segment.

ectro-Mechanical and Electro-Optical Products Manufacturing - This segment
nsists of three companies, Seguential Electronic Systems, ("Seguential"),
~hich manufactures optical encoders, encoded motors and limit programmers,
5-Tech, which manufactures debit card vending machines and various avionics
.nstrumentation devices and Televend which markets telephone debit cards and
certain products manufactured by S-Tech. Comparing 1996 and 1995, revenues
and gross profit decreased 44% and 74%, respectively. The significant
decrease 1n revenues and gross margins 1s attributed to the government
shutdown that effected the 1996 guarter which resulted in the segment not
being able to ship orders to defense department customers. Gross margins went
from 30% of revenues in 1995 to 15% of revenues in 1996 which was primarily a
result of decreased volume from the government shutdown that occurred in the
second half of 1995 which impacted shipments in 1996, while certain inherent

T L e
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Item 2. Management's Dil’inn and Analysis of Pun.nl Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) :

fixed costs were still incurred. Selling, general and administrative expenses
decreared 28% which was the result of planned cutbacks in such costs. Net
losses increased from $4 for 1995 to $171 for 1996, which again is primarily
actributed to the decrease Co government sector sales. Management has placed
more emphasis on sales to the private sector through the marketing of the
debit card vending wachines and the telemarketing efforts of Televend.
Management anticipates that revenues and profitability will improve in the
remaining guarters of 1996 if the proper financing is found, but is currently
unable to estimate the amount of such improvement.

Medical Informaction Services - This segment is engaged in develcping,
marketing and supporting computer software designed to enable health service
as well as financial related organizations to provide a range of services in a
network computing environment. This segment has developed proprietary network
technology utilizing smart cards in financial network systems. Comparing 1996
to 1995, revenues and gross margins increased 75% and 60%, respectively, while
selling, general and administrative expenses decreased 43%. During the prior
period this segment had relied primarily on revenues of previocusly existing
customers and software programs and services, During 1996, the segment has
increased ity revenues and gross margins through contracts with new customers
using the new technologies that it has spent significant amounts of money in
the past developing. These positive developments resulted in income from
operations of $202 in 1996 compared to operating losses of $467 in 1995.

These gains in operating profitability were partially offset by an increase in
interest expense of $83 which is due to additional debt, of which $500 was
incurred during 1956. Although no assurances can be made that profitable
operations will continue in this segment, management currently estimates that
this segment will continue to outperform the prior years operating results.

Telecommunications - This segment is engaged in the business of marketing a
wide range of telecommunications services including the design and
implementation of telecommunications programs in addition to reselling local
line service. Comparing 1996 to 1995, revenues increased 90% while gross
margins decreased 30%. During 1996, this segment's revenues consisted of a
greater proportion of network installations which generate lower margins than
the reselling of phone services. Selling, general and administrative expenses
remained relatively level while net losses increased $B0. The
telecommunications segment coperates in a highly competitive industry and
management believes that in order for this segment to become profitable, it
wi.l have to distinguish itself from other telecommunications service
companies. Additionally, this segment needs to significantly increase its
volume 1n order to cover its operataing costs. This segment currently has a
Lacklog of approximately $4,000, and management estimates that revenues will
increase throughout the remainder of the year, and if operating costs are
maintained at the current level, this segment could breakeven during the
fourth quarter.

Three Dimensional Products and Services - This segment is engaged in the
business of developing and marketing products and services in che three
dimensional imaging and digitizing technology which the segment categorizes in
three primary market groups: 1) surfacer imaging products, 2) CAD/CAM software
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Item 2. Management's Di’nsim and Analysis of Fi.l.ill Condition and

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

products .and services and 3) laser scanning products. Comparing 1996 to 1995,
revenues and gross margins decreased 49% and 30%, respectively. The primary
reason for such decreases is due to the closure of one of the companies
operating in this segment which produced revenues and gross margins in 1995 of
$185 and $35, respectively. The decision to close such operations was based
on the fact that such companies operations did not align with the planned
future for this segment and was not producing margins at a level sufficient to
cover its operating costs. Selling, general and administrative expenses
remained relatively level, however, the 15%6 expenses includes $192 in noncash
expense for the write-off of goodwill that could not be supported by the
segment's current cash flow under generally accepted accounting principles.
Excluding the goodwill write-off, ongoing expenses decreased approximately
$221 because of planned expense cut backs as well as a decrease in product
development costs. On an overall basis, the net loss for 1996 was $218 which
is an improvement of §198 from 1995. Management currently anticipates that
revenues and operating profits will significantly improve for this segment if
the proper financing can be obtained which would allow this segment to acquire
a Eurcpean partner to market and expand its existing product lines. However,
no assurances can be made that such financing will be obtained and the
ultimate profitability of this segment is significantly dependent on the
success of such financing.

hudio Visual Manufacturing and Services - This segment is engaged in the
business of manufacturing and marketing a professional line of loudspeakers.
This segment was acquired during the second quartér of 1995 and therefore
there is no comparable period., During 1996 this segment generated $671 in
revenues of which $4B1 were from domestic sales and 5190 were from European
and Far East sales. Gross margins were $137 or 20% of revenues compared to
10% for the time period from acquisition in the second quarter of 1995 through
December 31, 1985. This increase in gross margin percentage is due primarily
to increased sales volume which reduced the idle capacity related to the
manufacturing process. This segment continually evaluates and improves its
rroduct line and management believes that if this segment is able to find an
appropriate financing package, it will be able to significantly increase its
revenues and overall profitability during 1996.

gusiness Consulting Services operations were not significant for 1996 or 1995
and management anticipates that consulting revenues and related expenses will
not be a significant portion of the Company's future operations in the near

- o e
BITN.

“orporate and Other selling, general and administrative expenses for 1996
compared to 1995 decreased 50%. Such decrease is due primarily to noncash
expense from the exercise of stock options for payment of consulting services
which amounted to $740 in 1995 Included in selling, general and
icminlstrative expenses was approximately $80 in a bonus paid to the Company's
Chief Financial Officer as a part of renegotiating the subordinated debt of
the Medical Diagnostics segment Corporate and other selling, general and
administrative expense, other than that related to the exercise of stock
options remained relatively level and it is currently anticipated that such
cosCts will remain level throughout 1996. However, in the event that the
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Item 2. Management's Dis ion and Analysis ot-r.un.al Condition and
Results of Operations (dollars in 000's)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued):

Company negotiates additional acquisitions, such costs would increase

accordingly.
Discussion of Other Significant Financial Line Items

Interest Expense for 1996 remained relatively level compared to 1995. The
Comnany's debt financing activity during 1996 was primarily refinancing
activity which effectively extended current debt to long-term and relatively
the same interest rates and therefore there was not a significant impact on

the level of interest expense.

Gains and (Losses) on Investment Securities - During 1596 the Company's
investment purchasing and sales activity was not significant while in 1995 the
Company incurred losses on investments of $120 which consisted primarily of
the recognition of investments that were determined to have a permanent

decline in market value and as such, the decline was recognized in that
period. Security sales vary from period to period based on, among other
things, market activity and cash needs, and management cannot estimate the
amount of future security sales gains or losses, if any, that will be
generated from such transactions.

Impact of Inflation

The Company is subject to normal inflationary trends and anticipates that any
increased costs would be passed on to its customers.
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" Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form B-K
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(a)
1.

2.
3%

Exhibits

EX-10.1 Restated Employment Agreement Dated January 1996 between the
Company and Mr. Lewis S. Schiller.

EX-11.1 Calculation of earnings per share.

EX-27 Financial Data Schedule
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report tc be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIGNATURES

CONSOLIDATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP, LTD.

/8/ President and Director May 10, 1996
-------------------- (Principal Executive

Lewis S. Schiller Officer)

/S/ Chief Financial Officer May 10, 1956
-------------------- (Principal Financial and

George W. Mahoney Accounting Officer)
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ARC Networks ,
REVENUE 1 Jane7 Feb-§7 Mar-B7 Apr May-67 Jung?

Locs! (LEC) SLI09.2)c 51197970  SL29LEOE 51097312 81309087 FIF R

Domestc Long Detence 32430000 324740300  EL4S24F 12324237 B4R 1297978
ARC Combened Locall LD $8.000 11300 I LMy Siasdl s$an
Debd Cards 5099230  S3L14473%  $309292¢  Siomy 220843 L3

intermational LD S2304.733 S22V SIXTIIOT 52300447 ELMOON 223700

inbound BOO 14647 $16.104 $11.47 $1942 2140 i NS
Payphones | wadhna, 22 522448 052437 b saty L aal 1]
Premis Distribution 112,000 £130.000 £200,000 £200.000 5125,000 $100,000
International Jv 26042 527 880 $25.042 $30 465 232019 £33 820
TOTAL STOIB04  $9351980 3980598  S9TELIGD #9084  Jeniien
Less Cancelalons $133.592 31346330 $140,0%9 $143.242 S1dé eat S)80. 240
TOTAL REVENUE SESS0S13  SRIIS4851  3p386my  Spseamn) 5975718l $9.984.7Te
Coat of Sales/Access nci

LEC i $9310% S1003046  SLLITASC 51.200.2TH ETILTAR L2

Domestic LD 31037300  SLEILET:  SLET443 SLERDATE LR IR $191.20
Combsnad localLD 43800 35621 .00 same $10.99¢ 10738
Deb cards  SLIZ4408 52399304 SLI0AAME LAMOANE  S1AeT0TD 1207
intenabonal LD S1.635.9%  S18T39F  SLMIE SLTHOE  S1.700 $1. 1040

Inbownd B0 510,000 12100 3310 Sh4.641 $1é. 108 1 Ts

Payphones Slees? $16.750 pILE AE Bamis $17.00} 517008

Premas distribution $34 000 $112.3500 5130000 $130,000 ). 750 §71.000
International Nefwork leases ey 20,743 20782 220 12an| 21212

COST OF SALES  S4.819.040 SAPREM  $T2IMEM §130.%0 §7.800,.307 57640 200
Less cancelations $101.026 510329 5104 000 siea. 409 100,044 LTTRE T
TOTAL COST OF SALES 34718814 S6.rveARE STi10E58 T 2184 $7.9LIN $TASA081

Aliow ince for bad oebt LD pRaER L) $2375014 4%48) 5243655 Sav0le | 3 MR hhy

Adicwan e for bad dett Local 20 .99 32507 51946 30102 1180
Commasion LD $333.621 1ML 976,941 L3 8 L) 307632 LLLTRIT
Comsmusuons Local 539,442 239,999 44690 $60.086 $T5.49% §4) 491

Sales expense 3304 M) $311.840 53120020 $131.3%0 331,344 $3317. 799

TOTAL Sti7esss 30097397 SI3M0.79F  S1J884% 312750500 s1awmall

Mot sales SPAEY 50021470 SLESLAl 3007741 1,091,009 LIBIER IR

GaA
Mgmint ! Sakes Salanes S182 000 SIEZ 000 SI0200u S1K2.000 182 000 182000
Techrucal Selanes 34,000 $14.000 33,000 $35.000 £)4 o V3000
Otfce Sateren 595 0o $25.000 $5% 006 $45.000 35, o0 $53 000
Favrol] tas 0,080 $35,080 Sinoen SN0 oM | i1 P
Bar 512800 $12800 112000 S 800 $12000 €12 g
Office eounp S0 O $iw.000 Shom $10. 000 $10 voa § 10000
Office supples 43, foni $3 06 19,000 $4.000 13,000 pAXLE
Tewphone $10 no S0 000 $10.000 $10.006 10000 $10. 0000
TAE Siuon Sloonr $i0.00) $10,083 Sinoat shopes
INBUBncE §4 o0 54 %00 §4.500 33,300 14, %00 §3.400
Intalation cosLaconsE LSRR §43.000 313,000 $T4.000 $74, v £7T.000
Piant and egupment 14 news §10 o L4 pumi 18 o0 §14 000 14,000
Dffice Rem 2 i L ST LS TL 20 Ol 26 0 $.24. 00
Facines Rent § 100 i 00 e o s LT $10 000 $10.000
e §1 ann 41 iMni §1 iWi 41, $1 e §) eu
Adverimeng Sials #9m Sl A L TR U LY Sh (M Sl DO
Publecshons Sebins Selali S Sl Shins Hau
Membarshps $1 oun §1 o §1 i 51000 51 s $1. 000
Ascounting 2 miw £ o 42 0y $.1.000 $2 Diwi $2.000
Legs §2 i 52 mods §2 1Ani 12 00m 12 oumi .00
Aeguisiony $2 0o 52 i £2.000 §.2 004 52 000 §2.00m1
Syutem Upg-ades 33 o L LR §4 owy §9 000 43 oow 34 oou
TOTAL GRA S0 68 545 080 $460.06) FETINCA {ETTNIN] 158)3.043
Frobil | loss LTI R $499.407 LTS ] LABAAIE shdu TS 180 e

REVENUE 1097 Jan-9T Fab-87 Mo -97T Agar-97 bay 87 Jun-97






